
 
 

 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY 
COMMITTEE  

 

TUESDAY 10 OCTOBER 2006 
7.30 PM  

 
COMMITTEE AGENDA 

 
COMMITTEE ROOMS 1&2    
HARROW CIVIC CENTRE 

 
 

 
  MEMBERSHIP    (Quorum 3)  
 
    
 
  Chairman: 

 
Councillor Jean Lammiman 

 
Councillors: 

 
Salim Miah 
Mrs Myra Michael 
Richard Romain 
Anthony Seymour 
Mark Versallion 
 

B E Gate 
Mitzi Green (VC) 
Jerry Miles 
Mrs Rekha Shah 
 

Christopher Noyce 
 

 
 

Reserve Members: 
 

1. Dinesh Solanki 
2. Julia Merison 
3. Narinder Singh Mudhar 
4. – 
5. Jeremy Zeid 
6. Yogesh Teli 
 

1. Ms Nana Asante 
2. Phillip O'Dell 
3. Archie Foulds 
4. Navin Shah 
 

 

 
Issued by the Democratic Services Section, 

Legal Services Department  
 
Contact:  Daksha Ghelani, Committee Administrator 
Tel:  020 8424 1881    E-mail:  daksha.ghelani@harrow.gov.uk 



 

 

 
  HARROW COUNCIL 

 
OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE  
 
TUESDAY 10 OCTOBER 2006 
 

 
 

  AGENDA - PART I   
 

1. Attendance by Reserve Members:    
 To note the attendance at this meeting of any duly appointed Reserve 

Members. 
 
Reserve Members may attend meetings:- 
 
(i) to take the place of an ordinary Member for whom they are a reserve; 
(ii) where the ordinary Member will be absent for the whole of the 

meeting; and  
(iii) the meeting notes at the start of the meeting at the item ‘Reserves’ that 

the Reserve Member is or will be attending as a reserve; 
(iv) if a Reserve Member whose intention to attend has been noted arrives 

after the commencement of the meeting, then that Reserve Member 
can only act as a Member from the start of the next item of business 
on the agenda after his/her arrival. 

 
2. Declarations of Interest:    
 To receive declarations of personal or prejudicial interests, arising from 

business to be transacted at this meeting, from: 
 
(a) all Members of the Committee, Sub Committee, Panel or Forum; 
(b) all other Members present in any part of the room or chamber. 
 

3. Arrangement of Agenda:    
 To consider whether any of the items listed on the agenda should be 

considered with the press and public excluded on the grounds that it is 
thought likely, in view of the nature of the business to be transacted, that 
there would be disclosure of confidential information in breach of an 
obligation of confidence or of exempt information as defined in Part 1 of 
Schedule 12A to the Local Government (Access to Information) Act 1972 (as 
amended). 
 

4. Minutes:    
 The minutes of the special meeting held on 5 June 2006 and the ordinary 

meeting held on 18 July 2006 to be taken as read and signed as correct 
records. 
 

5. Public Questions:    
 To receive questions (if any) from local residents/organisations under the 

provisions of Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 8. 
 

6. Petitions:    
 To receive petitions (if any) submitted by members of the public/Councillors 

under the provisions of Overview and Scrutiny Procedure Rule 9. 
 



 

 

7. Deputations:    
 To receive deputations (if any) under the provisions of Overview and Scrutiny 

Procedure Rule 10. 
 

 8. Appointment of Members to the Scrutiny Sub-Committees for the 
remainder of the Municipal year 2006/07:   

 
9. Reports from Other Committees:    
 (if any). 

 
10. Financial Position - Item placed on the agenda at the request of a 

Member of the Committee:  (Pages 1 - 20) 
 

 Report of the Director of Financial and Business Strategy (Business 
Development) 
 

11. Medium Term Budget Strategy:  (Pages 21 - 34)  
 Report of the Director of Financial and Business Strategy (Business 

Development) 
 

12. Action in response to Scrutiny Review of the Middle Management 
Review:  (Pages 35 - 40) 

 

 Report of the Director of People, Performance and Policy (Business 
Development) 
 

13. Business Transformation Partnership:  (Pages 41 - 48)  
 Report of the Director of Business Transformation (Business Development) 

 
14. Progress Report following Recommendation of the HSE Inspection 

January 2005:  (Pages 49 - 54) 
 

 Report of the Director of Financial and Business Strategy (Business 
Development) 
 

15. Consultation Draft of the refreshed Community Plan:  (Pages 55 - 78)  
 Report of the Director of People, Performance and Policy (Business 

Development) 
 

16. Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel:  (Pages 79 - 98)  
 Report of the Director of People, Performance and Policy (Business 

Development) 
 

17. Scopes for Scrutiny Reviews:  (Pages 99 - 122)  
 Report of the Director of People, Performance and Policy (Business 

Development) 
 

18. Scrutiny Work Programme:  (Pages 123 - 148)  
 Report of the Director of People, Performance and Policy (Business 

Development) 
 

19. Business Continuity Management Update:  (Pages 149 - 156)  
 Report of the Director of Financial and Business Strategy (Business 

Development) 
 



 

 

20. Procurement Update:  (Pages 157 - 172)  
 Director of Financial and Business Strategy (Business Development) 

 
21. Scrutiny Discussion Forum:  (Pages 173 - 178)  
 Report of the Director of People, Performance and Policy (Business 

Development) 
 

22. Any Other Business:    
 Which the Chair has decided is urgent and cannot otherwise be dealt with. 

 
  AGENDA - PART II   

 
23. Business Transformation Partnership:  (Pages 179 - 186)  
 Report of the Director of Business Transformation (Business Development) 

 



 

 

 
 
 

 
Meeting:   
 

Cabinet 

Date: 
 

3 August 2006 

Subject: 
 

Financial Position 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Myfanwy Barrett 

Contact Officer: 
 

Myfanwy Barrett 

Portfolio Holder:  
 

David Ashton 

Key Decision: 
 

No 

Status: 
 

Part I 

 
Section 1: Summary 
 
Decision Required 
 

•  To approve the proposed action plan, with the exception of the items that 
are subject to statutory consultation, to achieve the savings required in 
2006-07. 

•  To approve the statutory consultation on the proposals in paragraph 17. 
•  To approve, subject to the outcome of consultation, the lowering of 

subsidies (Appendix 2) 
•  To approve the changes to fees and charges (Appendix 3). 

 
 
Reason for report 
 
To ensure that the savings target of £19m in 2006-07 is achieved. 
 
 

Agenda Item 10
Pages 1 to 20

1



 

 

 
 
Benefits 
 
To establish a balanced budget for 2006-07 as another step towards restoring 
financial stability within the council. 
To ensure that key services are protected. 
 
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
The report sets out how the Council’s 2006-07 budget’s proposed but 
unallocated savings will be achieved this year, and how the identified risks and 
pressures will be managed, and identifies subsidies that can be reduced. 
 
 
Risks 
 
The Council only has £2.5m in general balances, and, given the level of savings 
built into the budget (both allocated and unallocated) and the other risks and 
pressures identified, there is a high risk of an overspend this year.   Agreeing the 
savings plan is critical to mitigating this risk. 
 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
Failure to agree the savings plan could potentially result in the Council spending 
beyond its means in 2006-07 and exhausting its remaining reserves.  This would 
result in the statutory chief finance officer taking action under the relevant 
legislation and would leave the council in an untenable position with key services 
placed at risk. 
 
Section 2: Report 
 
Brief History 
 
1. The Council is in a very difficult financial position.  A report to cabinet on 29 

June set out the situation in some detail. 
 
2. In total the Council needs to achieve savings of £19.1m in the current year. Of 

this sum, £9.7m has already been allocated to specific service areas or 
distributed to budget holders.  This paper sets out the detailed plan for 
delivering the remaining £9.4m. 

 
Principles 
 
3. Given the scale of the savings required this year and in future years, 

Members will need to consider which services and subsidies the Council 

2



 

 

should provide in future and at what level.  Value for money is a key 
consideration. 

 
4. It is recognised that some short term measures are required to meet this 

year’s budget.  However, many of the proposals included in the savings plan 
are ongoing and contribute towards the medium term targets. 

 
5. It is important to balance the statutory duties of the Council against the need 

to manage within resources. 
 
Savings Plan 
 
6. The attached savings plan (Appendix 1) includes a variety of measures.  The 

plan delivers the required savings in 2006-07.  The plan gives a brief 
description of the proposals, the start date, and the saving that will be 
achieved in 2006-07 and 2007-08. 

 
7. Every effort has been made to reflect implementation costs in the figures, 

however there is still some detailed work to do in this area. 
 
8. The individual savings projects have been evaluated for their impact on the 

Council’s ongoing performance and priorities. Specifically the projects have 
been evaluated for their impact on the following criteria: 

 
•  Ability to deliver against Corporate Priorities 
•  Ability to deliver Residents’ priorities that the Council understands 

through the Mori process and from the Open Budget 
•  Commitments to the Harrow Strategic Partnership and LAA 
•  Key performance indicators and key lines of enquiry which are 

impacting the Council’s CPA position 
•  Risk to other major projects across the Council, e.g. delivery of BTP 
•  Consultation requirements 
•  Impact on morale and the Council’s workforce 
•  Probability of statutory intervention by the Government 

 
9. The Council has recently completed a major value for money study to assess 

the Council’s spend and relative performance against our comparator 
Councils in London. This analysis has informed where our services are 
relatively high and low spenders and whether we are achieving the level of 
performance that is appropriate for our level of spend. The analysis is based 
on 2005-06 spend data and indicates areas where savings may be possible.  
However the analysis needs to be updated to reflect current spending levels 
and performance.  The data will be reviewed against the savings achieved 
during 2005-06, the savings built into the original 2006-07 budget, and the 
savings contained in this plan as these all affect spending levels.  The 
cumulative impact of these savings is £20m, however there has been growth 
in some service areas over the same period. 

 

3



 

 

10. The plan shows a number of proposals to cut costs across different divisions 
of the Council (“cross-cutting”).  The cross-cutting items will affect all 
Directorates – hence the total reduction in their budgets will include their 
share of these items. 

 
11. Examples of the items included in the plan are set out below: 
 

•  Reductions in subsidies for services provided by the borough 
•  Savings generated by the Business Transformation Partnership 
•  Reductions in staff costs (eg, better controls in relation to overtime 

working, vacancy management, review of senior structure, review of PA 
and Administrative staff structure) 

•  “Harrow Saves” – a scheme to promote savings on smaller budgets such 
as catering and conferences 

 
Business Transformation Partnership (BTP) 
 
12. The contract with Capita includes a detailed cost model which sets out the 

phasing of capital and revenue payments and savings over a ten year period.  
The 2006-07 budget reflects this contractual model and therefore includes a 
savings target of £3.4m this year. 

 
13. The contract has now been operating for 9 months and Harrow and Capita 

have jointly reviewed the cost model in light of this experience.  Whilst both 
parties are confident that the full savings can be achieved over the life of the 
contract, the timing of the savings being delivered has been reviewed.  This 
has resulted in the target for the current year being reduced by £2.1m to 
£1.3m.  At the same time the allocation of payments between capital and 
revenue and the phasing of those payments has been reviewed to ensure 
that the net cost/benefit of the contract over the 10 year period is unchanged. 

 
14. The revised target of £1.3m will be achieved through the implementation of 

new systems – Enterprise Resource Planning (ERP), which is an integrated 
finance, HR and procurement solution, and Management Information (MI) – 
the Access Harrow project, and strategic sourcing (i.e., more effective 
procurement). A detailed analysis of the savings from these areas has been 
agreed between Harrow and Capita and this means the Council is confident 
that the new target will be achieved. 

 
Subsidies and Fees and Charges 
 
15. The plan includes a number of proposals to reduce subsidies for those able to 

pay.  These are set out in Appendix 2.  Proposed changes to fees and 
charges are set out in Appendix 3. 

 
Consultation 
 
16. The plan will be widely communicated and there will be consultation with 

service users, residents, staff, unions, and other stakeholders. 

4



 

 

 
17. In particular, statutory 12 week consultation with service users will be carried 

out on the following proposals: 
 

•  Home Care Subsidies  
•  Changes to the meals on wheels service 
•  Merger of Amner and Millmans Day Centres 

 
Capitalisation 
 
18. The plan involves capitalisation of £543k this year.  This figure is reflected in 

the revised capital programme. 
 
Ongoing monitoring during 2006-07 
 
19. It is vital that progress against the savings in particular and achievement of 

the budget in general is monitored closely this year. 
 
20. In addition to the regular monthly and quarterly reporting cycle, challenge 

sessions will be introduced – each Directorate will have to attend a meeting 
with the Deputy Leader, Chief Executive and Director of Financial and 
Business Strategy to discuss its forecast position against budget in detail. 

 
Summary 
 
21. The review of savings, economies and subsidy reductions summarised in 

Appendix 1 falls short of the goal of £9.4m by approximately £580,000. This 
shortfall is reflected in the fact that reserves will not be built up to the desired 
level by March 2007, and will, in fact, remain marginally below the minimum 
level approved by Council in February. 

 
22. The overall position is summarised in the table below: 

 
 2006-07 

£m 
Savings allocated in existing budgets 9.7 
Unallocated savings and anticipated pressure on cost 
and resources 

9.4 

Savings presently identified for 2006/7 8.8 
Shortfall in build-up of reserves 0.6 
 

 
23. The ongoing savings reviews referred to in the Cabinet Report of June 29 will 

continue to look for the substantial savings required in 2007-08 and 2008-09 
to balance the budgets contained in the existing MTBS. It must be borne in 
mind that the MTBS contains the assumption of Council Tax increases in 
each year of 5%. Further savings of  £4.5m in each year would be required if 
Council Tax were to be held at existing levels. 

5



 

 

 
24. The position for 2007-08 and 2008-09 is summarised below: 
 

 2007-08 
£m 

2008-09
£m

Unallocated savings and anticipated pressure on 
cost and resources 

9.3 4.2

Additional savings required if Council Tax is held 
at present levels and not increased by 5% 

4.5 4.5

Total additional savings required in each year, 
over and above those for 2006/7, if Council Tax 
is held at existing levels 

13.8 8.7

 

 
Financial Implications 
 
25. Financial matters are integral to the report. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
26. Section 32 of the Local Government Finance Act requires the Local Authority 

to calculate its budget requirement (i.e. the difference between the 
expenditure and income) for each financial year.   Section 28 of the Local 
Government Act 2003, imposes an obligation on the Authority to monitor and 
review its budget throughout the financial year using the same figures for 
reserves (unless they have been used to meet the financial shortfall of a 
previous financial year).   The authority must take appropriate action to deal 
with any deterioration in the financial position revealed by the review.  This 
action would for instance involve agreeing savings elsewhere in the budget to 
mitigate the situation. 

 
27. Under S114 (3) of the Local Government Finance Act 1988 the chief finance 

officer of a relevant authority shall make a report if it appears to her that the 
expenditure of the authority incurred (including expenditure it proposes to 
incur) in a financial year is likely to exceed the resources (including sums 
borrowed) available to it to meet that expenditure.  This report must be 
prepared in consultation with the Chief Executive and the monitoring officer.  
A report under this legislation would be the last resort and all possible steps 
should be taken to avoid this situation. 

 
Equalities Impact 
 
28. The impact of individual savings proposals on access to services should be 

considered as part of the decision. 
 

6



 

 

Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Considerations 
 
29. The impact of individual savings proposals on the Council’s ability to meet the 

requirements of Section 17 should be considered as part of the decision. 
 
 
 
Section 3: Supporting Information/Background Documents 
 
Appendix 1 – Savings Plan 
Appendix 2 – Reduced Subsidies 
 
Background Documents: None. 
 

 

7



 

 

 
Appendix 1 

 
Savings Plan 2006-07 
 
Ref Description Start 

Date 
Saving 

2006-07 
 

£000 

Full year impact
2007-08

£000

 Pressures   
 Contribution to reserves (to restore balances to £4m)  1,500 
 Risk around PCT  1,500 
 Risk around capital financing, LPSA, LAGBI  1,000 
 Unallocated savings   
 Corporate Procurement target  2,000 
 BTP savings as per original budget  3,365 
 New Spending   
 Prosperity Action Teams  5 
 Council and cabinet meetings  30 
 By-election  10 
 Events  20 
 Total to find  9,430 
    
 PROPOSALS   
    
 BTP Savings   
1 Review of revenue/capital payments under contract  2,084 1,500
2 ERP  479 939
2 MI  104 178
2 Access Harrow  256 444
2 Access Harrow - do not proceed with service access 

points across the borough 
 avoidance 

saving 
avoidance 

saving
    
3 Strategic Sourcing   
 Integrated print solution  63 136
 Travel  18 27
 Postage  24 48
 Catering  16 48
 Temporary staff  50 55
 Telecoms  73 83
 Mobile phones  34 52
 PCs and Laptops  40 60
 Networking, cabling  24 36
 Recruitment advertising  6 12
 Taxi services  100 240
      
 BTP TOTAL  3,371 3,858
    
    
    
    

8



 

 

Ref Description Start 
Date 

Saving 
2006-07 

 
£000 

Full year impact
2007-08

£000

    
    
 Cross-cutting items   
    
 Strategic savings project - property   
4 Rateable value appeals/audit 01-Aug 100 
    
 Staff terms and conditions   
5 Civic Centre Car Parking subsidies for staff @ £3 per 

day, based on Harrow & Wealdstone Station daily cost 
01-Oct 60 160

    
6 Optional unpaid leave for staff, eg at Christmas 01-Sep 100 100
7 Move payroll date to last day of month 01-Oct 40 80
8 Review staff catering at Civic, Depot and Teachers 

centre 
 avoids 

overspend 
avoids 

overspend
9 Improve management controls over overtime  250 500
    
 Permanent and Temporary staff   
10 Review of senior structure 01-Sep 250 500
11 Review of PA and admin staff (and take out agency 

staff) 
01-Sep 500 2,000

12 Vacancy freeze (already assumed by Directorates)   
13 Recruitment advertising - lower volume and use internet 

rather than newspapers/journals 
 200 

    
 "Harrow Saves"   
 No catering for officer meetings 01-Jul } 
 No catering for members meetings  } 
 No conferences or seminars  } 
 No fancy stationery, eg post it notes  } 
 Minimise number of hard copies of publications  } 
 Use double sided/black and white printing  } 
 No new furniture or equipment  } 
 No journals/subscriptions to be renewed  } 
 No new accommodation costs (rent, leases etc)  } 
 NO EXCEPTIONS!   
14 = top slice across Directorates  300 
    
 Miscellaneous   
15 Review of duplicate payments (no win no fee) 01-Jul 50 
      
 CROSS CUTTING TOTAL  1,850 3,340
    
    
    
    
    
    

9



 

 

Ref Description Start 
Date 

Saving 
2006-07 

 
£000 

Full year impact
2007-08

£000

    
    
 CE/Business Development   
16 Review function and structure of procurement team  50 100
17 Focus clothing grants on real need 01-Sep 85 170
18 Amend Trade Union Facilities budget to bring Harrow's 

costs into line with other boroughs 
 30 60

19 Vacancy management - FBS  60 
19 Vacancy management - BS  50 
19 Vacancy management - PPP  60 
19 Vacancy management - BTP Apr-Dec 65 
20 Capitalise 75% of BTP Director and on-costs  90 90
21 Reduce canvassing for Electoral roll/merge with C Tax  20 20
22 Reduce legal support to committees  45 45
23 Reduce democratic services support  45 45
24 Use internal post in HRES/ cut down external mailing  2 10
25 Registrar income/photography  10 10
26 Communications unit to provide core functions only  15 15
    
 Misc CE budgets  3 
27 Reduce subsidised legal support to schools  10 10
      
 CE/BD TOTAL  640 575
    
 Urban Living   
 ENVIRONMENT SERVICES   
28 Sell advertising wherever possible 01-Oct 23 30
29 Extension of existing Parking Enforcement Service 

activities 
01-Dec 65 280

30 Retaining vacancies within Community Safety Service immediately 129 129
31 Traffic Management immediately 59 nil

32 Increased fee recovery from capital 01-Apr 200 dependant
33 Highways (carriageway & footway) planned 

maintenance 
immediately 77 nil

34 Street lighting maintenance immediately 250 nil
35 Peel House Car Park, Wealdstone-reduce opening 

hours to 8.30pm 
within 4 wks 10 20

36 Drainage - Focus on main river watercourse 
maintenance 

immediately 75 nil

37 Public Realm maintenance - Revise management 
structure 

01-Oct 65 100

38 Public realm maintenance - review of working 
arrangements 

01-Oct 0 200

39 Increase Exclusive Rights of Burial, Interment & 
Memorial Rights Fee 

dependent 
on Cabinet 

dates 

15 36

    

10



 

 

Ref Description Start 
Date 

Saving 
2006-07 

 
£000 

Full year impact
2007-08

£000

    
40 Recycling Income 01-Dec 50 70
41 Public Realm maintenance - Removal of Flower 

bedding 
01-Oct 15 50

42 Public realm maintenance - soft landscaped areas 
including sponsored roundabouts etc 

01-Dec 0 0

43 Public realm maintenance - create biodiversity areas in 
some parks 

01-Oct 10 30

44 Public Realm maintenance - Parks locking 01-Oct 30 60
 ENVIRONMENT SERVICES sub total  1,073 1,005
    
 PROPERTY SERVICES   
45 Vernon Lodge voids - Reduce the budget immediately 40 nil
45 Sanctuary Project - Reduce the budget immediately 20 nil
45 Finders Fee - Reduce the budget immediately 20 nil
45 Retaining vacant posts within Housing Services immediately 41 41
46 Withdraw from Town Centre Management initiative 01-Sep 40 75
47 Stop subsidising building control charges 01-Sep 70 115
47 Reduce subsidies - introduce planning advice charges 

& introduce in S106 agreements requirement to pay for 
monitoring & administration of agreements 

01-Sep inc above inc above

47 Stop indemnity insurance cover provided for building 
control surveyors 

01-Apr 7 17

47 Reduce agency staff in Development Control and Policy 
& Research 

01-Jul 60 90

47 Reduce contract & Permenant Staff within conservation 
& design 

01-Jul 100 130

48 Energy Conservation Officer - Capital funding of salary 01-Aug 40 40
49 Increase income from Commercial Lettings During 2006 42 nil
50 Capitalise Design & Build costs immediately 100 100
 PROPERTY SERVICES sub total  580 608
    
 STRATEGY & BUSINESS SUPPORT   
51 Review of Civic Centre and Depot                                 

Catering & MOW - vacant posts   
01-Jul 25 45

52 Special Needs Transport-Review of overtime claims & 
agency staffing hours 

01-Jul 30 50

53 Rationalisation of business support staff across Urban 
Living 

01-Oct 25 50

 STRATEGY & BUS SUPP SERVICES sub total  80 145
      
 URBAN LIVING TOTAL  1,733 1,758
    
    
    
    
    
    

11



 

 

Ref Description Start 
Date 

Saving 
2006-07 

 
£000 

Full year impact
2007-08

£000

    
 People First   
    
 Adults   
54 Reducing Home Care subsidies  Jan-07 275 1,100
55 Remove Joint Funded posts by transfer of staff to other 

vacancies 
Aug-06 250 370

56 Contain spend on carers and apply grant to other parts 
of service 

Jul-06 40 80

57 Convert hot meals service into a frozen meals service Jan-07 0 350
58 Merge Amner and Millmans Day Centres Jan-07 35 141
59 Restructuring Community Care Jan-07 25 100
    
 Sub Total Community Care  625 2,141
    
 Childrens   
60 Make Playschemes commercially viable Dec-06 15 75
61 Reduce Hospital Social Work Service and reduce 

subsidies to other Boroughs 
Dec-06 15 50

62 Childrens Services Management - do not fill 1/2 post Jul-06 30 0
63 Childrens Centre Grant - use for Service Manager post Jul-06 50 0
64 Firs - Temp freeze on RSW Hours Jul-06 5 0
    
 Sub Total Childrens  115 125
    
 Lifelong Learning   
65 Move Brent & Harrow Education Business to Teachers 

Centre 
Sep-06 5 12

66 Eliminate Teachers Centre Subsidy Sep-06 8 15
67 Close Harrow Teachers' Centre Library Sep-06 14 36
68 Use LSC Grant for Adult Community and Family 

Learning 
Sep-06 20 38

69 Libraries - Redeploy resources from Lifelong Learning 
to employ Bookstart Coordinator 

Jul-06 12 12

70 Savings on Wellstoc Library stock purchases Sep-06 13 21
71 Remove security staffing budget for Bob Lawrence 

Library 
Jul-06 4 4

72 Reduce Library services printing/publicity Jul-06 5 5
73 Increase Library staff vacancy rate Jul-06 9 9
74 Wealdstone Centre Service Support Budget Jul-06 20 20
75 Deletion of Leisure and Admin post Jul-06 10 10
76 Cease Music Teaching Subsidy Sep-06 25 50
77 Cancel involvement in Community Sports Coaching 

Scheme 
Sep-06 13 13

    
 Sub Total Lifelong Learning  158 245
    
    

12



 

 

Ref Description Start 
Date 

Saving 
2006-07 

 
£000 

Full year impact
2007-08

£000

    
 Strategy   
78 Capitalise Policy Officers working on capital projects Apr-06 103 150
79 Contracts Unit Efficiencies (Frameworki Finance) Jan-07 20 100
80 Grant Review - use catering and 14-19 grant to offset 

salary costs 
Apr-06 65 65

81 Special Schools PFI - Affordability saving Apr-06 170 170
    
 Sub Total Strategy  358 485
    
 PEOPLE FIRST TOTAL  1,256 2,996
    
 TOTAL SAVINGS IDENTIFIED  8,850 12,527
    
 Shortfall  580 
    
 Reduce contribution to reserves in year  580 
    
 Net shortfall  0 
 

13



 

 

 
 

Appendix 2 
 
Reduced Subsidies 
 

Charge 
 

Current 
Rate 

Current 
Subsidy 

Proposed 
rate 

Proposed 
Subsidy 

Client 
Numbers
% 

Staff Parking Free £5 per 
day 
 

£2 per day £3 per 
day 

N/A 

Home Care – 
clients 
assessed to 
make no 
contribution 
 

Free £18.10 
per hour 

Free £18.10 
per hour 

40% 

Home Care – 
clients 
assessed to 
make a 
contribution 
 

Clients 
pay part 
of costs 
only 

Between 
£8.60 
and 
£18.10 
per hour 

Clients will 
pay part of 
costs only 

Between 
£2.10 and 
£18.10 
per hour 

34% 

Home Care – 
clients 
assessed to 
pay full 
charge 
 

£9.50 £8.60 per 
hour 

£16.00 £2.10 26% 

 
Notes: 
 
Parking Charges 
 
The current subsidy shown above is based on average daily rates for Harrow’s 
public car parks. 
 
Home Care Subsidies 
 
One important subsidy relates to Home Care.  Harrow Council has the second 
most expensive home care costs in West London and has been subsidising this 
heavily in order to provide the lowest charges, more than £3 lower than any other 
authority in that area.  It is therefore proposed that the subsidies be reduced for 
those able to pay them, to bring them into line with other boroughs. 
 
In order to ascertain whether people will continue to qualify for the subsidy, a 
financial assessment will be carried out for all clients to determine their ability to 
pay. 

14



 

 

 
Based on the current figures, as of March 2006, this would mean the following: 
 

 The 40% of clients who are currently receiving the service free of charge 
will continue to do so. 

 
 The 34% of clients who pay a reduced amount are likely to continue to pay 

a reduced amount, albeit with a lower subsidy reflecting their ability to pay. 
 

 The 26% of clients who are currently able to pay the full rate will now have 
a significantly lower subsidy from the Council. 

 
It is extremely important to note that due to this financial assessment process 
approximately 40% of clients will pay nothing. 
 
Cost of Home Care  
 
The current charging arrangements for Harrow’s home care service were 
introduced in April 2002, when a maximum charge of £81 was set with an hourly 
rate of £9.00 established. These rates were increased from April 2006 this year 
to a revised £85 maximum charge and £9.50 hourly rate. 
 
Service users are visited in their own homes by a member of Harrow Joint Team 
and the service user’s financial information is collected and verified. At the same 
time the service user will receive a full benefit check and forms relating to 
disability or other benefits are also completed to maximise their income. 
 
In the group of North/North West London Councils, Harrow’s current subsidies 
are the highest by a significant margin.  Harrow’s cost at 2004-05 prices is 
£17.10 per hour.  At 2006-07 prices this would be approximately £18.10.  As 
charges have only increased by £0.50 in this period, the current subsidy is 
estimated to be £8.60 per hour. 
 
The average cost for the boroughs (including Harrow) is £15.50.  If this is inflated 
by 2.95% (in line with pay inflation) for 2006-07 this equates to £15.95 per hour. 
 
If Harrow reduced its subsidy in line with the average for the other 8 boroughs 
(excluding Harrow) and allowing for inflation, the new charge would be 
approximately £16.00 per hour. 
 
It is therefore proposed that the Harrow charge is increased to £16 per hour with 
effect from 1 January 2006.  This still represents a subsidy of £2.10 an hour. 
 
Value for Money 
 
Harrow’s average unit costs have been adversely affected by the former TUPE 
transfer of its directly provided service to an independent agency. Our contracts 
and commissioning team are engaged in negotiations with the agency to bring 
these down and work across all the local Home Care agencies to try and reduce 
the unit cost wherever possible.  

15



 

 

 
The Council’s Assessment and Care Management Teams work in close 
partnership with contracts/commissioning and Home Care agencies to try and 
ensure that care commissioned is the minimum possible for the tasks/outcomes 
to be achieved in order to get best value for money. This is an ongoing process. 
 
Current capital threshold 
 
In determining the extent to which an individual’s capital assets count as income 
for charging purposes Harrow uses the C.R.A.G guide for Residential 
Accommodation in line with the majority of Local authorities. This is currently 
£21,000 and the figure is reviewed annually be the Department of Health.  
Property is excluded in determining the value of capital assets. 
 
 
ANALYSIS OF PROPOSED CHANGES  
 
MOVE TO 100% OF DISPOSABLE INCOME FOR ASSESSMENT PURPOSES 
 
Service users with less than the current CRAG capital threshold of  £21,000 
(excluding their residential property) are assessed individually to see how much, 
if anything, they should pay. 
 
Current subsidies are calculated on the basis of 75% of disposable income, after 
taking into account income and expenditure. (Allowances for Disability 
expenditure are made when a client is in receipt of a disability benefit Attendance 
Allowance / Disability Living Allowance.)  The net figure is called the disposable 
income for the service user - this is the amount of income that is taken into 
account when calculating the service user’s ability to pay. 
 
In Harrow we currently take into account 75% of a service user’s disposable 
income.  However, 6 other boroughs in North West London use 100% and one 
uses 90-95%.  Therefore Harrow is out of step with its neighbours. 
 
It is proposed that subsidies should be calculated on the basis of 100% of 
disposable income, in line with almost every other relevant authority. 
 
 DECREASE THE HOURLY SUBSIDY 
 
The council can no longer afford to subsidise the service to the extent it has 
previously, given increased demand for support with no matched central increase 
in funding levels.  
 
It is proposed that there is a change to the hourly subsidised rate moving to a 
new hourly charge of £16.00 (as referred to above).  This implies an amended 
subsidy of £2.10. 
 
As is the practice currently, every service user would be assessed to determine 
their level of needs and subsequently their financial contribution to the costs of 
their care (and offered a benefits check).  

16



 

 

 
Each case would need to be considered following this assessment to establish 
whether the service user would prefer to make private arrangements without 
further recourse to the council thereby incurring no charges. Or alternatively 
knowing the level of their contribution they could consider the option of a direct 
payment (net of charges) which would enable them to arrange their own care or 
the council could arrange for care to be put in place using its block contracts. 
 
 REMOVE 10 HOUR CAP 
 
There is currently an £85 per week maximum charge for the service regardless of 
the amount of care that is provided and at this level the service continues to be 
subsidised significantly.  
 
A number of Local Authorities charge users who can afford to pay the full actual 
costs of the service they receive or they have determined an agreed unit cost for 
the service which is set at a more realistic higher rate than Harrow currently 
operates. 
  
This is another area where Harrow is considerably out of step with other councils.  
It is proposed that the cap on the maximum level of charge for people who have 
difficulties that require more than 10 hours of support each week is removed as 
happens currently in Barnet, Brent, Ealing and Enfield. 
 
For people with savings in excess of  £21,000 (excluding the property value of 
the home they live in) this would mean these people would receive a reduced 
subsidy based on the difference between the cost and hourly charge of £2.10 per 
hour. 
 
If, following a period of consultation and comments being considered, the 
proposals were to be adopted, and taking a prudent approach and allowing 15% 
for non-recovery of income, the combined impact of the steps outlined above is 
additional income in a full year of £1.1m and the current year of £275k. 
 
 

17



 

 

 
Appendix 3 

Changes to Fees and Charges 
 
The main items are summarised below – more details will be published 
separately. 
 
 Current Proposed  
 2005-2006 2006-2007  Change  
 £ £  %  
    
Pre Application Advice   
(i) Formal Advice (followed up in writing) on 
major scale/complexity 

 1,000.00  

(ii) Formal Advice (followed up in writing) on 
medium scale/complexity 

 500.00  

(iii) Follow up charges based on hourly rates 
for officer attendance 

 Hourly rate 
of officer 

 

(iv) Planning Advice Team written advice per 
item 

 100.00  

(v) Repeat requests for advice  75.00  
    
Administration and Monitoring of S106 
Agreements 

   

(i) When a monetary contribution is included 
in the agreement 

 5% of the 
overall cost 
value of the 
agreement 

up to a 
maximum  of 

£50,000.00 

 

(ii) In the absence of any monetary 
contribution 

 500.00  

    
    
Building Control    
   
Small Domestic Buildings Building Control   
Garages < 40m2   

Plan (inc VAT) 43.00 50.00                 16 
Inspection (inc VAT) 129.00 150.00                 16 
Building Notice (inc VAT) 172.00 200.00                 16 
Regularisation Application (No VAT) 175.66 198.50                 13 

   

18



 

 

Extensions < 10m2   
Plan (inc VAT) 345.00 100.00  
Inspection No Charge 300.00  
Building Notice (inc VAT) 345.00 400.00                 16 
Regularisation Application (No VAT) 352.34 398.00                 13 

   
Extensions 10-40m2   

Plan (inc VAT) 130.00 150.00                 15 
Inspection (inc VAT) 390.00 450.00                 15 
Building Notice (inc VAT) 520.00 600.00                 15 
Regularisation Application (No VAT) 531.06 600.00                 13 

    
Extensions 40-60m2   

Plan (inc VAT) 170.00 195.00                 15 
Inspection (inc VAT) 510.00 585.00                 15 
Building Notice (inc VAT) 680.00 780.00                 15 
Regularisation Application (No VAT) 694.47 748.75                    8 

    
   

   

   

   

   

 
 

19



 

 

 
 Current Proposed 
 2005-2006 2006-2007 Change 
 £ £ % 
Cemetery Fees  
  
Cemetery Fees will increase by an average of 2%.  
Some examples are shown below.  The full list of 
new charges will be published separately. 

 

Lawn and Traditional Sections And Cremation 
Plots Exclusive right of burial inc. Deed of Grant 
and Number Tablet 

 

Over 12 Years old(Resident) 907.00 928.00 2 
Over 12 Years old ( Non Resident) 1,814.00 1,856.00 2 
Interment Fee  
Over 12 Years old ( Resident) 354.00 362.00 2 
Over 12 Years old ( Non Resident) 708.00 724.00 2 
  
Memorial Rights  
Lawn Section  103.00 105.00 2 
Traditional Section ( Over 12 years old) 206.00 211.00 2 

  
Cremation plots - exclusive right of burial inc. Deed 
of Grant and Number Tablet 

 

Resident 231.00 236.00 2 
Non-resident 462.00 472.00 2 

  
Interment Fee  

Resident 118.00 121.00 2 
Non-resident 236.00 242.00 2 
Memorial Rights Resident & Non-resident 103.00 105.00 2 

 

20



 
Meeting:   
 

Cabinet 

Date: 
 

4 October 2006 

Subject: 
 

Medium Term Budget Strategy 

Key Decision Yes 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Myfanwy Barrett 
Director of Financial and Business Strategy 
 

Portfolio Holder:  
 

David Ashton, Deputy Leader and 
Portfolio Holder for Business Development 
 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures 
 

None 

 
SECTION 1 – SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
This report sets out the context for the next medium term budget strategy, the 
current funding gap, some proposed budget principles, an update on the five 
strategic savings projects, and the next steps. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  

The Cabinet is requested to: 
•  Consider the factors that will influence the medium term budget for 2007-

08 to 2009-10, the scale of the funding gap, and the proposed next steps 
in the process. 

•  Agree the principles that will underpin the budget process (para 33). 
•  Agree the new fees and charges for the cemetery, subject to consideration 

of comparative data for other London boroughs (this is a correction to the 
report on the financial position which went to cabinet on 3 August) 

 
REASON:  To ensure Cabinet members are fully engaged in the development of 

the new medium term plan, and that information is in the public domain 
prior to the Question Time evening on 27 September. 

Agenda Item 11
Pages 21 to 34

21



 
Section 2: Report 
 
Context 
 
The Council’s longer term vision 
 
1. Whilst financial and corporate planning covers a three year period, it is 

important for the Council to have a clear vision for the longer term future.  The 
following has been developed in discussion with Portfolio Holders to articulate 
that vision: 

 
Harrow 2020 

 
 

Harrow will be a place which offers the best of capital and country and is 
loved by its residents.   It will: 
 

•  Have a choice of housing in distinctive neighbourhoods 
•  Be entrepreneurial and an ideal place to set up high skill business 
•  Have the lowest crime and fear of crime in London 
•  Celebrate what we have in common and capitalise on our diversity 
•  Be a place where people are healthy and stay healthy 
•  Where children and young people are healthy and safe, fulfil their potential 

and help others 
•  Have vibrant neighbourhood centres and the Premier Town Centre in NW 

London 
•  Be family friendly and promote older peoples independence 
•  Be easy to get around for everyone and offer the best commuter 

experience by public transport in the south east 
•  Protect its green spaces 

 
In short it will be a desirable place to live, work and play 
 
The key public, private and voluntary sector organisations in Harrow will deliver 
this vision and ensure value for money in the services we provide to you. 
 
To deliver this vision we also need all our residents to play their part by: 
 

•  Recycling more waste 
•  Considering alternatives to using the car 
•  Being tolerant and welcoming as the Borough grows 
•  Considering voluntary work which gives something back to the local 

community 
•  Taking advantage of local leisure and culture facilities. 
•  Behaving responsibly in public spaces 

 
In the shorter term Harrow Council wants residents to be delighted by their 
Council.   Our immediate priorities in support of the 2020 vision are: 
 

22



•  Making Harrow safe, sound and supportive 
•  Getting Harrow moving 
•  Protecting our precious environment  
•  Tackling waste and giving real value for money 
•  Empowering Harrow youth 
•  Giving more choice in sport, leisure and amenities 

 
2. The new medium term budget strategy (MTBS) will be developed in the 

context of this vision. 
 
Financial Overview 
 
3. In the current financial year the Council is planning to spend £510m on day to 

day service delivery, £23m on managing and maintaining it’s housing stock, 
and £86m on capital projects (including projects carried forward from last 
year). 

 
4. The revenue spending of £510m can be analysed as follows: 
 
Gross Revenue Expenditure 
 

£m %

Schools 137 27
Housing Benefit and Council Tax Benefit 95 19
People First 146 29
Urban Living 90 18
Corporate 42 7
Total  510  100
 
5. This is funded as follows: 
 
Gross Funding 
 

£m %

Dedicated Schools Grant 119 23
Housing/Council Tax Benefit Grant 95 19
Other specific grants 25 5
Formula Grant 59 11
Fees and charges 58 11
Other sources (interest and recharges) 64 13
Council Tax 90 18
Total  510 100
 
6. Both the dedicated schools grant and benefits grant are ring-fenced.  Hence 

the controllable budget is £296m.  The figures above also include support 
services and capital financing costs which further reduce the controllable 
figure to around £250m. 

 
7. Council tax accounts for 18% of the Council’s gross funding.  The current 

Band D council tax for Harrow Services is £1,067.19 and the GLA precept is 
£288.61 giving a total charge of £1,355.80. 

 

23



8. The London Average Band D council tax for 2006-07 excluding the precept is 
£926.19. 

 
The low spend and high council tax conundrum 
 
9. Harrow has relatively high council tax levels and relatively low spending 

levels.  The recent value for money study shows that: 
 

•  Using 2005-06 data, Harrow’s net spend is £273m1 and the population 
is 214,000 giving a net spend per head of £1,273 which is lower than 
both the nearest neighbour2 average of £1,402 per head and the 
London borough average of £1,610 per head. 

 
•  For 2005-06, formula spending shares3 were used to determine grant 

levels.  Harrow spends £5.9m or 2.4% above it’s formula spending 
share.  This compares with 0.8% above FSS for nearest neighbours 
and 1.8% below FSS for London Boroughs on average. 

 
•  Harrow’s 2006-07 government grant (formula grant) equates to £275 

per head of population, below the nearest neighbour average and 
London borough average of £298 per head and £480 per head 
respectively. 

 
•  Harrow’s allocation of special and specific grants, excluding Dedicated 

Schools Grant, equates to £378 per head of population, below the 
nearest neighbour average and London borough average of £464 per 
head and £631 per head respectively. 

 
•  Across all grants, ie formula grant plus special and specific grants, 

Harrow receives an average of £145 per head less than its nearest 
neighbours and £572 per head less than the London average. 

 
•  Across all grants, ie formula grant plus special and specific grants, 

Harrow receives around £30m less than its nearest neighbours and 
around £120m less than the London average. 

 
10.  Essentially, the very low grant levels mean that, despite low spending, the 

council tax is still quite high in Harrow.  Clearly this is an area that requires 
further investigation and action, which will be covered in a future report. 

 
Balance between service delivery and council tax levels 
 
11. The forthcoming medium term planning round presents considerable 

challenges.  There is already a significant funding gap identified, which is 
                                                 
1 The net spend figure is taken from the Revenue Account Return produced for CIPFA.  This is different 
from the budget requirement for 2005-06 of £253m – gross spend less special and specific grants, fees and 
charges and other income sources, leaving the net balance to be funded from formula grant and council tax 
2 Nearest neighbours are the boroughs chosen by the Audit Commission as being comparable with Harrow, 
they are mostly outer London boroughs 
3 Formula spending share is the notional level of spending used by the government to calculate the grant 
level 

24



explained in more detail below.  However, given that Harrow is already 
spending at relatively low levels, and that much of the budget is outside the 
Council’s direct control, it is very challenging to find further reductions in 
spending in order to deliver low council tax increases, or hold council tax 
steady. 

 
12. Whilst the Council is seeking to improve efficiency in all areas, for instance by 

implementing new computer systems, many reductions in spending have a 
direct impact on service levels. 

 
13. The Council has a range of statutory duties and must provide an adequate 

level of service to vulnerable people whilst also maintaining the universal 
services which are highly valued by the public.  Councillors will have to 
consider carefully the “social cost” of achieving very low council tax increases 
or avoiding any increase. 

 
14. In reality, it may be necessary to scale back or discontinue some 

discretionary services to bridge the gap between spending and funding. 
 
The funding gap 
 
15. There is considerable pressure on the MTBS for the following reasons: 
 

•  Inflation and additional pension fund contributions will cost around £6m 
a year, but the forecast increase in formula grant is only around £1.2m 

•  The situation is compounded by adverse changes in specific grants 
•  The capital programme is putting a lot of pressure on the revenue 

budget 
•  It is anticipated that demand for social care services will continue to 

grow far more quickly than resources 
•  The PCT’s actions to reduce spend are having an adverse impact on 

the Council 
•  Pressure is being created by the medium term revenue implications of 

major initiatives such as PFI deals and Children’s Centres 
•  It is essential that the Council builds up reserves and provisions to 

provide stability in the future, given the very low current level of 
reserves 

 
16. If Councillors take the view that a council tax increase below inflation, or 

holding council tax steady, is desirable then the pressure is compounded. 

25



 
17. The report to Cabinet on 29 June on the Council’s financial position 

suggested that for the medium term plan the Council needs to ensure that it 
identifies specific savings to cover the following items: 

 
 2007-08 

£m 
2008-09

£m
Unallocated savings in the current MTBS 3.5 1.9
Additional BTP savings 1.3 0.3
New pressures (not yet in MTBS) 2.0 2.0
Contribution to general reserves 1.0 
Contingency 0.5 
Provision for litigation 0.2 
Provision for bad debts 0.3 
Collection fund 0.5 
  
TOTAL 9.3 4.2

 
 
18. However, the current MTBS assumes council tax increases of just under 5% 

in 2007-08 and 2008-09.  The second cabinet report on the Council’s financial 
position (3 August) showed that the anticipated funding gap for 2007-08 and 
2008-09 was: 

 
 2007-08 

£m 
2008-09

£m
Unallocated savings and anticipated pressure on 
cost and resources (as per 29 June report) 

9.3 4.2

Additional savings required if council tax is held at 
present levels and not increased by 5% 

4.5 4.5

Total additional savings required in each year, 
over and above those for 2006/7, if council tax 
is held at existing levels 

13.8 8.7

 

26



 

19. More detailed work has now been carried out on some aspects of the MTBS, 
particularly some of the more technical areas.  The latest position is shown in 
the table below and some explanatory notes follow the table. 

 
 2007-08 

£m 
2008-09

£m
Balance from 3 August 13.8 8.7
Potential deficit on collection fund this year 0.5 
Further reduction in target collection rate in 
2008-09 

 0.5

Revised grant assumption in light of 
comprehensive spending review 2007 

 0.5

Full year effect of 2006-07 savings plan 
agreed on 3 August 

(3.0) 

Capital financing costs in line with current 
approved programme 

 0.5

Savings in current MTBS that cannot be 
delivered 

1.7 0.2

Technical issues including PFI and 
capitalisation 

0.4 0.7

Review of inflation provision including utilities 1.1 1.7
  
TOTAL 14.5 12.8
Risk 3.5 
Revised Total 18.0 

 
20. Given all the developments during 2005-06, many of which were outside the 

Council’s control, and the level of unallocated savings, the current MTBS is 
relatively high risk. 

 
21. At this early stage, the draft MTBS for 2007-08 to 2009-10 has been prepared 

on the basis that the majority of risk should be removed.  This is also adding 
to the pressure, as it effectively means a shift from a relatively high risk 
budget to a low risk budget in one go.  However, this is appropriate when the 
Council has such low balances.  This approach does enable the Council to 
consider the worst case scenario. 

 
22. There is a funding gap for 2007-08 of between £14.5m and £18m.  There is a 

further funding gap for 2008-09 of around £12.8m and the indications are that 
the gap for 2009-10 is of the order of £8m. 

 
23. A more prudent assumption has been made about the collection fund at this 

stage in the planning process, both in terms of the state of the collection fund 
and the target collection rate. 

 
24. The grant assumption for 2008-09 has been revised to reflect an increase of 

only 2% rather than 3% in light of some of the statements that have been 
made about the forthcoming comprehensive spending review.   

 

27



25. The spending plan agreed on 3 August for 2006-07 has a net full year effect 
(excluding the BTP) of £3m.  The plan will deliver £8.5m in total but £5.5m of 
this is being applied as follows: 

•  Delete corporate procurement target (£2m) 
•  Provide for risk associated with PCT situation (£2m) 
•  Provide for risk associated with LABGI (£0.3m) 
•  Cover capital financing costs (£1.2m) 

 
26. Some of the items in the 2006-07 savings plan are of course subject to 

statutory consultation and hence there is risk and lack of certainty around the 
delivery of these savings. 

 
27. There are some savings in the current MTBS that cannot be achieved in the 

light of legal advice, particularly in relation to asylum seekers.  There are also 
some items that have effectively been brought forward into 2006-07 as part of 
this year’s savings plan and have therefore already been taken. 

 
28. The inflation provision has been reviewed to ensure that a prudent view has 

been taken of pay, pension contributions, and other costs including utilities.  
An estimate of 3% has been used for the pay award.  However, there have 
also been some statements about containing public sector pay increases at 
2% in future which have not been factored in at this point as it is not clear 
whether or when this would take effect. 

 
29. A view has been taken of the degree of risk in the budget to ensure that the 

worst case scenario is reflected at this stage.  The risk contained in the draft 
MTBS has been quantified as shown below: 

 
Risk £m 
LPSA Reward Grant (still awaiting confirmation) 0.2 
Land Charges 0.3 
Specific Grant changes 0.5 
Inflation (CPI and concessionary fares) 0.5 
Achievement of 2006-07 savings plan 2.0 
Total Risk 3.5 

 
30. A full risk assessment will be carried out as part of the budget development 

process. 
 
31. The potential gap could be reduced in a number of ways: 

•  Take out the £2m provision for new growth 
•  Ensure the BTP savings are achieved 
•  Ensure 2006-07 savings plan is achieved 
•  Bring in further savings from 2007-08 identified through the strategic 

savings projects 
•  Consider council tax increase 
•  Take a less risk averse approach 

 
32. However, at this stage a figure of £14.5m to £18m for 2007-08 is prudent for 

planning purposes. 

28



 
Budget principles 
 
33. Given the Council’s financial position which has been well documented in 

recent months, it is important to agree some principles for the medium term 
budget strategy.  The proposed principles are as follows: 

 
i) No unallocated savings should be included in the final budget in 

February.  All savings, including those arising from the BTP, 
must be itemized and allocated to the relevant service area and 
budget holder. 

 
ii) A prudent view should be taken for all grants and other income 

streams to ensure that these items do not create pressure in the 
year. 

 
iii) The medium term budget should allow the Council to build up 

reasonable levels of reserves and provisions. 
 

iv) A contingency should be included in the revenue budget each 
year to allow the council to deal with unforeseen pressures 
without using reserves. 

 
v) The medium term revenue budget should reflect the full revenue 

cost of the approved capital programme. 
 

vi) The medium term budget should reflect a realistic assessment 
of demand for services. 

 
vii) The medium term budget should reflect the forecast outturn for 

the current year. 
 

viii) A relatively low risk approach should be taken given the current 
financial position of the Council. 

 
The five strategic projects 
 
34. Once the reports from the 5 strategic savings projects have been finalised the 

financial implications of their findings will be incorporated in the MTBS. 
 
35. The organisational structure review is looking at the senior structure, 

administrative support, use of agency staff, controls over overtime, and 
opportunities to work more efficiently.  The savings are to an extent already 
built into the MTBS. 

 
36. The objectives of the land and property review were to: 

•  Establish a clear relationship between service priorities and property 
management 

•  Rationalise the portfolio 
•  Reduce annual running costs 

29



•  Generate capital receipts to deal with backlog maintenance and provide 
funds for future investment 

 
37. Alongside the implementation of SAP, and the development of the Asset 

Management Plan, a comprehensive database of the Council’s property has 
now been developed.  This is already producing benefits and will support 
much more effective decision making in future. 

 
38. The review is likely to generate capital receipts rather than direct revenue 

savings (although there may be some savings on maintenance and some 
additional income from rents etc).  However, a £10m capital receipt which is 
used to reduce borrowing will reduce annual revenue costs by approximately 
£900k. 

 
39. The service delivery review was designed to map and review the Council’s 

services, looking at 
 

•  the level of spend 
•  the split between statutory and discretionary provision 
•  the level of provision 
•  the extent to which services have been subject to challenge either through 

procurement or benchmarking 
•  the impact of any changes to or reductions in service 

 
40. The mapping exercise is largely complete and the review is now moving into 

the more detailed analysis of services. 
 
41. The value for money review was launched in March and had three key 

objectives: 
•  Develop a new value for money framework for the Council 
•  Compare and benchmark Harrow cost and performance position against 

three comparator groups 
•  Agree a set of value for money indicators to monitor and challenge 

performance going forwards. 
 

42. The value for money review is largely complete and very detailed information 
about cost and performance of all services is now available.  

 
43. The service review alongside the VFM project will provide the detailed 

information that Councillors will need to make decisions about service 
strategies in the medium term  and identify areas where services can be 
stopped altogether or scaled back.  This is the critical area given the size of 
the funding gap. 

 
44. The finance review is looking at fees and charges, support charges, zero 

based budgeting, the capital/revenue split, optimal use of grants and 
concessionary fares: 
•  This year’s savings plan includes increases in home care charges and the 

introduction of new charges such as pre-planning advice and there is 
limited additional scope around fees and charges. 

30



•  The new support charges system will be implemented with effect from 1 
April 2007. 

•  There is potential for a rolling programme of zero based budget reviews 
commencing next financial year. 

•  The review suggests that the Council is capitalising the right amount of 
expenditure and using grants optimally 

•  However, as noted above there is a need for further investigation of 
Harrow’s grant levels relative to other London authorities 

•  Concessionary fares is the area with the most potential to save money in 
the medium term and a project team has been set up to take this forward.   
However, Cabinet members have indicated that they regard the Freedom 
Pass as a critical right for those who are eligible. 

 
 
Next Steps 
 
45. Directorates are due to complete their High Level Service Plans by the end of 

October.  More detailed financial and service planning will take place during 
November.  There will also be a challenge process to ensure that the plans 
are robust.  The draft revenue, HRA and capital budgets will be presented to 
cabinet in December.  There will be a consultation period between December 
cabinet and the final decision making in February. 

 
46. Where decisions on savings or growth require consultation this will take 

around four months to complete.  Therefore, if consultation commences in 
early January and a decision is taken to proceed once the outcome of the 
consultation is known, the implementation date will be late May/early June.  
Hence the saving or growth will have a part year effect in 2007-08. 

 
Fees and Charges 
 
47. The report on the financial position to cabinet on 3 August included the 2006-

07 savings plan and some changes to fees and charges.  Unfortunately there 
was an error in the table for cemetery fees.  The correct proposed fees are 
shown at Appendix A.  It is anticipated that these changes will generate 
additional income of £15k this year. 

 
48. Comparative data about charges in other London Boroughs will be tabled at 

the meeting to inform this decision. 
 

31



 
SECTION 3 - STATUTORY OFFICER CLEARANCE 
 
   
 Chief Finance Officer  Name:…Myfanwy Barrett 
    

Date: 22 September 2006 
   
Monitoring Officer  Name: …Hugh Peart………… 
   

Date: 22 September 2006….. 
 
 
 
SECTION 4 - CONTACT DETAILS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
Contact: Myfanwy Barrett, Director of Financial and Business Strategy, 
  020 8420 9269 
 
Background Papers:   
 

Report to Cabinet on Financial Position, 29 June 2006 
Report to Cabinet on Financial Position, 3 August 2006 
 

 
IF APPROPRIATE, does the report include the following considerations?  
 
 
1. Consultation  YES 

2. Corporate Priorities  YES  

3. Manifesto Pledge Reference Number N/A 

 
 

32



 Appendix A 
 
Fees and Charges 
 
Correction of figures reported to cabinet on 3 August 
 
 Current Proposed 
 2006-2007 2006-2007 Change 
 £ £ % 
Cemetery Fees  
  
Cemetery Fees will increase by an average of 21%.  
Memorial rights will  rise circa 62% which is 
accounted by the increased management costs in 
monitoring memorial construction to ensure safe 
erection.   
 
Some examples are shown below.  The full list of 
new charges will be published separately. 

 

Lawn and Traditional Sections And Cremation 
Plots Exclusive right of burial inc. Deed of Grant 
and Number Tablet 

 

Over 12 Years old(Resident) 928.00 1,120.00 21% 
Over 12 Years old ( Non Resident) 1,856.00 2,240.00 21% 
Interment Fee  
Over 12 Years old ( Resident) 362.00 440.00 22% 
Over 12 Years old ( Non Resident) 724.00 880.00 22% 
  
Memorial Rights  
Lawn Section  105.00 170.00 62% 
Traditional Section ( Over 12 years old) 211.00 335.00 59% 

  
Cremation plots - exclusive right of burial inc. Deed 
of Grant and Number Tablet 

 

Resident 236.00 286.00 21% 
Non-resident 472.00 572.00 21% 

  
Interment Fee  

Resident 121.00 146.00 21% 
Non-resident 242.00 292.00 21% 
Memorial Rights Resident & Non-resident 105.00 170.00 62% 

 
 
 

33



34

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Meeting: 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 
 

10th October 2006 

Subject: 
 

Action in response to Scrutiny Review of the 
Middle Management Review 
 

Key Decision: 
(Executive-side only) 
 

No  

Responsible Officer: 
 

Paul Najsarek, Director of People, 
Performance and Policy 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

David Ashton 

Exempt: 
 

No 

Enclosures: 
 

None 

 
 
SECTION 1 – SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 

 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
That the report be noted. 
 
This report sets out the action taken by the Council in response to the 
recommendations from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee Review of the 
Council’s Middle Management Review. 
 

 

Agenda Item 12
Pages 35 to 40

35



 

SECTION 2 - REPORT 
 
In July 2005 the Overview and Scrutiny Committee established a Group to conclude 
its review the council’s Middle Management process. The MMR Phase 2 Review 
Group reported its findings to Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 27 March 2006 
and made a series of recommendations, which were subsequently endorsed by 
Cabinet on 6 April 2006. 
 
The Review Group recommendations are set out below together with the action 
taken in response  
 
1. The organisation immediately recognises and acknowledges the 

significant impact that the MMR process has had on the staff who have 
been through it. 

 
Cabinet formally acknowledged this when it considered the O&S report at its 
meeting on 6 April 2006 and resolved that: 
 
(1) the impact that the MMR process has had on middle managers in the 

Council be acknowledged and that these managers be thanked for their 
continued commitment and professionalism during the review; 

 
(2) the action already being taken which responded to the recommendations 

made by the Review be endorsed; 
 
  (3) the further actions suggested in the report be noted; 
  

(4) recommendations 4, 5, 6, 9 and 10, as set out in the report of the Review 
Group, be used to guide the future Management of Change in the 
organisation. 

 
2. The organisation immediately addresses the growing confusion 

surrounding the service manager and senior professional roles. 
 

Directors and middle managers have received additional guidance so that 
they are clear on the principles and purpose that underpin service manager 
and senior professional roles.  Advice and draft role profile templates are also 
available on the intranet. 

 
3. The organisation brings the process to a conclusion in accordance with 

its own published timescale of 31st March 2006. 
 

The MMR process formally concluded on 31st March 2006.  The change 
management team remained in place for a further 3 months to support 
employees who had been displaced.  Currently17 members of staff have 
been displaced i.e. either not applied or failed to be appointed to one of the 
new Management roles.  All but three have now been offered redundancy; 
redeployment or a temporary assignment intended to last upwards of six 
months.   
 

36



 

4. The lessons to be learnt from the MMR process are captured and applied 
to future reorganisation – in particular the BTP.  These would include: 

 
•  A blueprint for change 
•  Clear project planning and risk assessment 
•  Effective project and risk management 
•  Effective two-way communication 
•  Assured adherence to agreed protocols 
•  Timely completion 

 
The most significant re-organisation undertaken since the O&S report has 
been the BTP change management programme associated with implementing 
Access Harrow.  The change process directly affected 64 staff, with a further 
40 indirectly affected, and followed the project planning and communication 
principles set out in the O&S recommendations and has been recognised by 
both staff and trade unions as being a well managed process. 

  
5. The organisation ensures that all future negotiations/ communications 

with the trade unions follow agreed formal protocols and all are formally 
logged by both sides. 

 
The BTP change management programme included setting up a formal 
consultative framework and a log where issues are recorded and signed off 
when resolved. 
 
Consultation with the trade unions on the savings plan for 2006/07 is also 
being managed through formally recorded meetings. 
 

6. The organisation monitors the potential impact of the MMR process on 
other staff and on the council’s wider reputation.  We expect this 
information, including information regarding absenteeism and voluntary 
leavers, to be incorporated into the annual HR report submitted to the 
Overview and Scrutiny committee and to form part of the portfolio 
holder’s 6-monthly presentation to the committee.  The information 
should also be provided on a quarterly basis in the information circular 
to the Overview and Scrutiny committee.  

 
The absenteeism and turnover figures are reported as part of the council’s 
strategic performance report, which Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
receive.  They are also key indicators, which will be included in the portfolio 
holder’s report.  

 
7. An audit process be put in place urgently to monitor of the costs of the 

MMR project and for all future such projects.  Information from this to be 
made available in an appropriate format, for all councillors on a monthly 
basis.  Details of the audit process to be reported to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee at the earliest opportunity. 

 
A review of the financial impact of MMR has been carried out. 

 
The underlying principles were: 

37



 

o Old M grade posts were classified as either managerial or professional in 
nature 

o Directorates were to lose the budget for the old managerial posts and 
receive a budget for agreed Group Manager and Service Manager posts, 
based on the average cost 

o This was expected to deliver a net saving 
o Directorates were to manage any remaining costs associated with new 

Senior Professional roles themselves 
 

For a number of reasons, the net cost over time is slightly higher than 
anticipated 
o There were more GM higher and SM higher posts than expected 
o There was some grade drift (in other words some of the new Group and 

Service Managers were appointed above the mid-point of the grade) 
o The final number of posts that were classified as managerial was lower 

than expected, for instance because they were grant funded 
 

The 2005-06 budget included an anticipated saving arising from the 
restructuring of £0.7m.  The additional cost of the structure and this saving 
were both managed by allocating targets to Directorates.  Each Directorate 
then reviewed its entire structure to meet the target. 
 
The Business Transformation Partnership is currently the largest project being 
undertaken by the Council. It provides a monthly update to the Portfolio 
Holder, and reports to Cabinet on a quarterly basis. Members are also 
represented on the overall Partnership Board with Capita. In addition it reports 
to Overview and Scrutiny committee on a monthly basis, where it reports 
payments made to Capita under the agreed payments process. A report has 
been presented to the October Committee. These reporting arrangements are 
in addition to normal internal progress reports to Directors.  A comprehensive 
benefits management process has been established to track the delivery of 
the agreed savings from the project. 

 
8. Further investigation of the cost effectiveness of the MMR process be 

undertaken by the Overview and Scrutiny committee as part of its 
proposed review of the overall value for money delivered by the New 
Harrow Project.  This review is proposed for 2006/07. 

 
This is considered in an item elsewhere on this agenda 
 

9. Monitoring of the use of external consultants, at an appropriate level, be 
introduced in order to ensure there is compliance across the 
organisation with the following principles: 

 
•  A clear business case for the use of external consultants has been 

established 
•  Clear terms of reference and objectives for each specific project have 

been established 
•  An appropriate, internal managerial structure is in place to ensure the 

consultants’ direct accountability to the organisation and the chief 

38



 

officer and portfolio holder responsible for the management of this 
should be clearly stated 

•  Cost of the use of consultants is closely monitored 
 

The council has introduced a proforma for monitoring the use of consultants, 
which complies with the principles set out in the O&S recommendations.  The 
council makes all consultants aware that they are bound by the council’s code 
of conduct and what delegations they may have.  The new Enterprise 
Resource Planning system enables detailed monitoring of expenditure on 
capital projects and against revenue  budgets. 

 
10. Steps are taken to ensure that the MIS stream being developed as part of 

BTP is able to furnish councillors with financial and other monitoring 
information they require to undertake their role. 

 
The MI project went live on September 18th.  This project delivers significant 
improvement in the capability to monitor service, HR and financial 
performance.  Discussions are planned with members about the best way for 
councillors to use this new capability. 

 
 
SECTION 3 - STATUTORY OFFICER CLEARANCE 
 
   
 Chief Finance Officer ✓  Name:………………………………….
    

Date: …………………………………..
   
Monitoring Officer ✓  Name: …………………………………
   

Date: …………………………………..
 
 
 
IF APPROPRIATE, does the report include the following considerations?  
 
 
1. Consultation  YES/ NO 

2. Corporate Priorities  YES / NO  

3. Manifesto Pledge Reference Number  

 
 
 
 

39



40

This page is intentionally left blank



1 

 
 
 

 
Meeting: Overview & Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 10 October 2006 

Subject: Business Transformation Partnership 

Responsible Officer: Director of Business Development 

Contact Officer: Director of Business Transformation 

Portfolio Holder:  Finance and Performance Management 

Key Decision: No 

Status: Part I   
 
Section 1: Summary 
 
Decision Required 
 
None – The report provides Overview and Scrutiny with an update on the 
performance of Business Transformation Partnership and its early Projects It 
also outlines issues and developments in HITS in their transformation plan. 
 
Reason for report 
 
Part of the regular reporting requirement. 
 

Agenda Item 13
Pages 41 to 48

41



2 

Benefits 
 
N/A Report for Update only 

 
Cost of Proposals  
 
N/A Report for review of performance only 
 
Risks 
 
The summary of key risks currently being managed are: 
 

•  The potential adverse impact of other Council Projects on the BTP 
•  The impact of large amounts of business change on the Council 
•  The required amount of benefits to be delivered by BTP 

 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
N/A 

 
Section 2: Report 
 
1 Programme Overview 
 
 The programme is managing its most difficult period as Access Harrow 

moves to its second phase and ERP and MIS go live.  As a result 
development teams are leaving the programme, and teams responsible for 
stabilisation and new projects are being mobilised. 

 
This is complex at a technical and organisational level as to some degree a 
new programme teams are being created at a time of maximum output.  In 
parallel the benefits flowing from the new systems need to be harvested. 

 
2 Access Harrow (formally First Contact) 
 

The project is addressing areas of poor performance in the One Stop Shop 
and Contact Centre.  This is primarily related to ‘call’ and waiting times for 
Housing Benefit enquiries.  More active management has resulted in 
resources being more accurately matched to demand at busy times of the 
day.  Regular break times for staff are an essential requirement in such an 
environment, but were creating a problem during peak periods.  Greater 
flexibility in taking breaks will eliminate these problems and allow the 
Council to improve its response.  The Committee will receive a full report on 
the Service Improvement Plan at its next meeting. 
 

42



3 

 
3 Access Harrow – Phase 2 

 
The key documents related to the plans for phase two are being cleared 
internally. The programme team have agreed a revised delivery profile that 
reflects the priority of the Council to enable and realise benefits across the 
organisation. This revised approach has been developed following a 
discovery phase carried out by the BPR/Benefits team which has indicated 
those areas that will provide most benefit. 

 
The whole Access Harrow project is now scheduled to complete in 
September 2007. The team required to deliver the 9 workstreams within this 
project are being engaged this month. It is expected that a further 25 
resources will be brought on to the team by Capita. 
 
The first three blueprints have been delivered for review to the Partnership 
management team. 
 
Targets for the coming period: 
 

•  Complete resourcing (End September) 
•  Blueprint for Complaints, LLPG/ECC, Service Area Improvement 

(End September) 
•  Blueprint for Change of Address automation (October) 

 
 
4 ERP 
 
 The ERP system went live on 4 September.  In completing such a 

deployment in 11 months the Partnership has achieved one of the quickest 
implementations in local government of a system of this size and 
complexity.  Following “go live” a large stabilisation team was mobilised to 
help the Council through its expected early difficulties.  This team will 
maintain this level of support for 6-10 weeks, and will progressively hand 
over responsibilities to the Council to manage and support the system.  
Capita will continue to carry responsibility for key elements of the service. 

 
Early problems included desktop deployment and the provision of user id’s 
but HITS have helped to resolve these issues in a timely manner. A 
concerted effort has been made by the team to increase attendance rates 
at training courses.  
 
After two weeks of operation about 150 staff members (including support 
staff) are using the system per day. This is low when compared to the 
number of expected users. The month end finance activity and the 
completion of procurement training will show a significant step change in 
the numbers of users. 
 
Targets for the coming period: 

43



4 

 
•  Completion of project training (End September) 
•  Stabilisation (Early November) 
•  Benefits cards (Early November) 

 
 
4.1 Training 
 
 The ERP training plan was the largest single training activity ever 

undertaken by the Council.  It encountered early technical problems as the 
performance of the training environment (the computer based systems) was 
unsatisfactory, resulting in the need to cancel and rearrange training 
courses.  In addition the courses had a disappointing attendance rate of 
66%, again resulting in a need to lay on additional courses.  The original 
training plan ran until the end of September, with essential users being 
trained in August.  This was revised to ensure that “business critical users” 
received their training within 2 weeks of the system going live.   

 
 Feedback on training continues has improved week by week.  At 8 
September 1517 have responded and described the course, training and 
administration as “good”, in contrast to the early period when it was 
described as “fair” to “good”. 

 
Following the return of schools, nurseries and colleges in September, 
arrangements were made for training week commencing 18 September. 

 
 The Council is now considering options for incorporating the training 

requirements in its normal processes of induction and skills training. 
 
5 MI 
 
 It was decided to delay the launch of the MI system to 18 September.  This 

was to allow more time to complete system testing and to resolve a link into 
the framework-i social care system.  The decision to delay the launch was 
based on a view that there were no benefits lost to the Council, and that the 
additional time would significantly increase confidence in the performance 
of the system.  An additional benefit has been the further time available for 
training and refinement of the key scorecards. 

 
 Targets for the coming period: 
 

•  Final go-live (18th September) 
•  Training completion (End September) 

 

44



5 

6. Benefits realisation 
 

Benefits are reviewed weekly and considered at the Programme’s 
Operational Board. They are managed through the development, and 
agreement to Benefits Cards. The cards progress through a series of 
stages before the Council will sign them off as agreed. This table monitors 
progress on the current series of benefits cards. 
 

 

 
 
7.   UNISON consultation 
 

GMB requested 2 days facility time on BTP projects. This was considered 
at the Joint Consultative Forum on 14th September, where it was agreed to 
quantify more exactly resource requirements.  
 
Unison and GMB have raised concerns about the management of health 
and safety within Access Harrow. This has culminated in a Hazard Notice 
being issued by Unison at the end of November. The BTP operational and 
project management teams have now responded to the notice, and will 
discuss its content urgently. 

 
The issues log has been circulated to Members of the Committee. 

 
8. Risks and issues 
 

Risk is managed at Strategic, Programme, and Project levels. These have a 
process of escalation and management.  
 
The strategic risks are regularly reviewed, and integrated into the Council’s 
wider risk management processes.   
 
The significant Programme risks currently being managed are as follows: 
 
a) Competing programmes, projects and initiatives across the Council may 

impact BTP in terms of resource availability at critical times during the 
implementation. The mitigating action is to coordinate a schedule of all 
programmes highlighting key dependencies and for BTP to regularly 
communicate resource impacts across the Directorates. 

 Total 
Benefit 
Oppor-
tunities 

Stage 1 
Identified 

(no. of 
SID’s) 

Stage 2 
Under 

validation 

Stage 3 
Presented 

Stage 4 
Enable- 

ment 

Stage 5 
Testing 

Stage 6 
Full 

Sign off 

ERP 36 6 8 18    
Procurem’t 42 9 8  14 7 4 

Access 
Harrow 

22 10 12     

MI 1 0 1     
Cross Cut 12 12      

45



6 

 
b) The level of change within the Council in relatively short timescales may 

have an adverse impact on morale affecting new operational processes. 
The mitigating action is to continue with rigorous change and 
communication activities across all Council Directories. 

 
c) The BTP may not deliver all anticipated benefits. The mitigating action is 

to effectively monitor, track and review all benefit cards as part of the 
governance process as part of the deployment of the new approach on 
benefits management.   

 
9.  Financial Implications 
 
BTP Budgets relating to Capital and Revenue continue to be closely monitored. 
We have made Milestone Payments to Capita of £11.2m.  
 
10. HITS Update 
 
ERP Go-Live 
 
Understandably, ERP/MIS go-live has been the main focus of HITS’ endeavours in 
recent months.  Staff across the department have been involved to a greater or 
lesser extent but the project had a particular impact on the Infrastructure and 
Customer Service teams who, even with extra temporary resource providing 
support, were very stretched during the final 4-6 weeks.  Both teams continue to 
play a significant part in the stabilisation phase although current pressures are 
down from the extreme highs experienced in the run-up to go-live.  
 
HITS Transformation Plan 
 
The Transformation Project Initiation Document was signed off by the Project 
Board in July (copies were subsequently circulated to members of Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee).  Progress is being made (most notably with the 
communications workstream) but the speed of progress elsewhere has suffered as 
a result of allocating resource to the ERP go-live project.  With that now out of the 
way, resource has been reallocated to the Transformation project and the speed of 
progress will pick up significantly throughout September and beyond. 
 
HITS Restructure 
The last three MMR posts were filled on 23 August.  Three members of staff at risk 
of displacement are currently going through the clearing house procedure.  None 
is expected to give rise to particular problems. 
 
Once those three members of staff have been placed/displaced, several key 
vacancies can be filled (subject to securing an exemption from the general 
vacancy freeze in place across the Council).  Filling these vacancies would allow 
HITS to return to normal levels of support resilience (some applications currently 
have only a single member of staff supporting them) and to establish better 
systems for managing future projects. 
 

46



7 

Service Desk Improvements 
 
Performance levels continue at a high level with first-line Service Desk staff 
routinely closing more than 95% of calls within SLA.  In July, three permanent 
members of staff were recruited (before the vacancy freeze was announced) to fill 
vacancies previously covered by contractors/temps.  All staff, new and old, played 
a major part in the successful ERP go-live.  
 
Workload/Resource Management 
 
The procedures adopted earlier this year to help manage the flow of work coming 
from BTP colleagues enabled HITS to respond in a timely fashion and helped fulfil 
HITS’ obligations to the ERP project.  However, having operated the procedures 
for some time, managers and staff have identified a number of ways in which they 
could be improved.  Work is currently under way to refine the procedures with the 
aim of applying them to all work requests. 
 
 
Legal Implications 
 

None  
 
Equalities Impact 
 

None  
 
Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Considerations 
 

None 
 
 Supporting Information/Background Documents 
 

None 
 
 
 

47



48

This page is intentionally left blank



 

 
Meeting: 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee. 

Date: 
 

10.10.06 

Subject: 
 

Follow up report progress report following 
recommendation of the HSE inspection Jan 
2005. 
 

Key Decision: 
(Executive-side only) 

No 
 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Myfanwy Barrett, Director of Finance and 
Business Strategy. 
 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

David Ashton, Portfolio Holder for Business 
Development. 

Exempt: 
 

No  

Enclosures: 
 

none 

 
 
SECTION 1 – SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
This report sets out activities undertaken to meet recommendations in the HSE 
inspection report of Jan 2005. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
The Committee is requested to: 
 
Note the progress being made with respect to meeting the HSE inspection of 
January 2005 recommendations. 
 
REASON:  Request for an update from the Overview and Scrutiny Committee of 

April 2006. 
 
 

Agenda Item 14
Pages 49 to 54

49



 

 
SECTION 2 – REPORT 
 
 
2.1 Brief History 
 
The overarching reason for the HSE’s inspection and audit programme is built 
around central governments “Revitalizing Strategy” and government targets for 
reductions in cases of work-related ill health and injury. Harrow Council, along with 
other local authorities in London has been targeted for audit by the HSE because we 
are; 
 

•  A major employer of labour. 
•  Enforcers of health and safety legislation in the community.   
•  A major client of other sectors as a procurer of goods and services. 

 
Hence Harrow Council is in a strong position to influence and to lead businesses in 
their communities, particularly small and medium sized organizations to help them 
improve their own health and safety standards.  
 
A comprehensive inspection was carried out by the HSE during a two week period in 
January and February of 2005. The inspectors gave feedback to the organization in 
a series of seminars during February 2005. 
 
Post Inspection Action Plan. 
 
This document details the work that has been done to meet the recommendations in 
the HSE inspection feedback of 2005. The action plan has been structured in 
accordance with the HSE document “HSG 65 Successful Health and Safety 
Management” and sets out work done as at October 2006.  A summary of some of 
the key work done is set out below. 
 
They key driver to meet most of the recommendations in the HSE feedback is the 
successful implementation of the Group Health and Safety Plan template across the 
whole organisation. This was echoed by the HSE during their re-inspection of April 
2006. 
 
HSE revisit on the 13.04.06 
 
A follow up visit by the HSE visit took place on the 13th of April where two inspectors 
met with the Acting Chief Executive and Health and Safety Service Manager. This 
visit was followed up with a letter from Mark Farrell of the HSE. The letter states:  
 
“……..…it is clear that much effort has gone into revitalising your Health and safety 
management System.  
 
You have achieved much, but as I said there is still work to do in terms of rolling out 
or implementing the new policies and putting in place the Group Plans. Of course the 
Health and safety partnership Board has a key role in monitoring the implementation 
plans and also in monitoring performance against your detailed Service Plan 
objectives. I would welcome an update in due course on how the partnership Board 
is developing this aspect of its role”. 
 

50



 

The main activity that has taken place to meet the requirement in Mark Farrell’s 
request is the development of a health and safety scorecard. This corporate 
scorecard will monitor performance across the organisation in key performance 
areas with particular reference to the effective implementation of Group Health and 
Safety Pans. 
 
 
Update of work done since the HSE inspection of 2005. 
 
Some of the key work done since the original inspection is as follows: 
 

•  The structure and date of current health and safety documents has been 
reviewed. A revised format of documentation has been agreed which is - 
policy, codes of practice and guidance modelled along similar lines to that 
produced by the HSE. 

 
•  Policy, Code of Practice (COP) and Guidance documents issued since the 

inspection and available on both the intranet and the London Grid for 
Learning are listed as follows; 

 
- Corporate Health and Safety Policy 
- Executive Directorate Health and Safety 
  Policy People First 
- Executive Directorate Health and Safety 
  Policy Business Development 
- Executive Directorate Health and Safety 
  Policy Urban Living 
- Executive Directorate Health and Safety 
  Policy Chief Executives. 
- Group Health and Safety Plan template. 
- Legionella Policy.  
 -Stress Policy 

       -Control of Contractors Policy 
- Management of contractors COP 

      - Permit to work procedures COP 
      - Contractor assessment and selection COP 

- Risk assessment COP 
- Manual handling COP 
- Fire safety Risk Assessment COP 
- COSHH COP 
- Stress Risk Assessment COP 
- Personal safety COP 
- Personal safety in Council premises COP 
- Display screen equipment COP 
- Legionella risk assessment COP 
- Accident reporting COP 
- Lone Working COP 
- PAT COP 
- Work at height – risk assessing means of  
  access COP 

      - Agency workers COP 
       -Construction Design and management  regulations Guidance note 
       -General safety rules for contractors 

51



 

 
•  Two mandatory health and safety training courses for new staff and new 

managers are now in place and running successfully.  A 25-page health and 
safety guide has been issued to assist managers to understand their health 
and safety duties. 

 
•  The Health and safety Service in conjunction with Organisational 

Development successfully launched a specific Harrow Rules module called 
“Risky Business”. This focuses on both health and safety management and 
business continuity. 

 
•  A half-day training session was undertaken for all senior managers was 

delivered during September and was found very useful. 
 

•  In May 2006 the Health and Safety Service was presented with a destination 
Harrow performance award for its efforts. 

 
•  A number of lunchtime health and safety sessions have been run for staff on 

various subjects including stress and legionella. 
 

•  A training matrix has been developed to identify a comprehensive training 
programme for all staff. Approved suppliers have been chosen and a full 
training calendar for 06/07 is in place. Over 2000 staff took part in health and 
safety training delivered or facilitated by the Health and Safety Service during 
05/06. 

 
•  Health and safety was included in the annual staff satisfaction survey and the 

2005 results found that 58% of respondents agree that their job provides a 
safe working environment.  Overall 52% of respondents feel that their 
workloads are generally reasonable, while 25% disagree and the remainder 
take a neutral view.   

 
•  Through the BTP projects work related sickness absence, cause and duration 

of absence information is beginning to be captured. This data will help to 
inform the Council of key areas of concern and inform the health at work 
programme that is being developed.   

 
•  A Health at Work Group has been formed. This group will develop a 

comprehensive strategy to effectively coordinate the future direction of health 
at work issues at Harrow.  

 
•  The HSE management standards have been used in HITS and an action plan 

is being implemented to address the issues raised.  
 

•  The Health and Safety Partnership Board and Executive Directorate Groups 
have been meeting to drive forward health and safety issues within 
Directorates. 

 
•  The 05/06 Annual Health and Safety Report was presented to the Health and 

Safety Partnership Board, Employees Consultative Forum and Corporate 
Management Team. The report also went as an information item to Cabinet 

 
 

52



 

HSE Inspection development meeting. 
 
The Health and Safety Service Manager arranged a liaison meeting of London 
Boroughs safety Representatives and Ron Wright the Principal Inspector of Health 
and Safety in London. Ron and his colleagues found the meeting very useful and will 
clearly help inform their future inspection work in Local Authorities across London. 
 
Assuring Harrow  
 
In summary, the main future activities to ensure continued improvement in health 
and safety standards and to achieve the objectives set out in the post inspection 
action plan are: 
 

•  The effective implementation of the Group Health and Safety Plan across the 
organisation with all areas defined in the plan template under control. 

 
•  Regular and effective meetings of the bodies that oversee and develop 

management of health and safety at Harrow. This includes the Health and 
Safety Partnership Board, Executive Directorate Health and safety Groups, 
The Education Health and Safety Forum and the Health at Work Group. 

 
•  Further development of policy, codes of practice and guidance on behalf of 

Harrow that is then effectively implemented at an operational level. 
 
The scorecard that has been developed to track effective implementation of the key 
requirements as detailed in the update information is available on request. The full 
tabulated post inspection action plan is also available. 
 
Financial Implications 
 
Staff in directorates will implement the proposals with the assistance of the 
Health and Safety Service within existing budgets. 
 
Legal Implications 
 
The Council’s responsibilities to its employees and others for their health, safety 
and welfare are set out in the Health and Safety At Work etc. Act 1974 and other 
legislation. 
 
Equalities Impact 
 
Since initial development of the post inspection action plan, a review of Health and 
Safety under the Race Equality Scheme and an Equality Impact assessment have 
been carried out and these are currently being consulted on. The feedback and 
recommendations arising from those will be incorporated into the plan along with 
targets for service delivery. 
 
Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Considerations 
 
The purpose of this report is to highlight the action that the Council is taking to 
reduce risk from health and safety hazard, some of which will have crime and 
disorder connotations. 
 

53



 

 
 
SECTION 3 - STATUTORY OFFICER CLEARANCE 
 
   
 Chief Finance Officer  Name:………………………………….
    

Date: …………………………………..
   
Monitoring Officer  Name: …………………………………
   

Date: …………………………………..
 
 
 
SECTION 4 - CONTACT DETAILS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
Contact:  P Williams, Health and Safety Service Manager, x2362 
 
 
 
 

54



 
 
Meeting: Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 10 October 2006 
Subject: Consultation draft of the refreshed Community Plan 
Responsible Officer: Paul Najsarek 
Contact Officer: Mike Howes 
Portfolio Holder: David Ashton 
Key Decision: No 
Status: Public  
 
 
Section 1: Summary 
 
Decision Required 
 
The Committee is asked to consider the consultation draft of the refreshed 
Community Plan and make comments. 
 
 
Reason for report 
 

All Scrutiny Sub-Committees have been invited to consider the consultation 
draft of the refreshed Community Plan to ensure that it reflects the interests 
and needs of key groups in the community. 

 
 
Benefits 
 

The aspirations in the existing Community Strategy have either been 
achieved or have been overtaken by events.  Harrow Strategic Partnership 
Board therefore commissioned a refresh and agreed to a new structure.   
 
After consultation, the adopted plan will help to align the priorities of the 
organisations that make up the Partnership and achieve better outcomes for 
Harrow. 

 
 

Agenda Item 15
Pages 55 to 78

55



Cost of Proposals  
 

There costs of producing the Community Plan are contained within existing 
budgets.  There are no costs arising directly from the content of the plan. 

 
Risks 
 

•  The medium term ambitions contained in the plan have been developed in 
consultation with the constituent members of the Partnership and reflect 
their aspirations and forecast capacity to deliver.  There is a risk that these 
ambitions may not be met but as they are deliberately aspirational and are 
intended to guide activity rather than act as targets to be achieved, this is 
not considered to be a serious risk. 

 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
If the Committee does not comment, the Community Plan will be less complete 
than it could be.   

 
Section 2: Report 
 
Brief History 
 
The existing Community Strategy was adopted in May 2004.  The process of 
building the strategy was as important as the document itself as it developed a 
partnership style of working and an appreciation of other organisations’ 
perception of Harrow, its communities and their needs.  Because of this, the plan 
was deliberately comparatively short-term and the actions it contained have now 
either been achieved or have been overtaken by events.   
 
The original strategy was based on the outcomes of a series of public meetings 
and the knowledge of the agencies in the partnership.  This refreshed strategy 
has built on this beginning and taken it forward through a further Summit held at 
Kodak in July this year.  The outcomes of the Summit have shaped most of the 
medium term ambitions in the new Plan.   
 
In addition, the new Plan brings in targets from the Local Area Agreement which 
constitutes a significant proportion of the Partnership’s workload. 
 
Consultation 
 
As mentioned earlier, the medium term ambitions contained in the Plan are 
largely drawn from the outcomes of the Summit which involved 70 or so local 
groups and community leaders.  The early drafts of the Plan have been seen and 

56



improved by the Chairs of the LAA Management Groups and the services 
responsible for delivering the ambitions. 
 
This is a consultation draft which has been sent, together with a summary of the 
issues and options for the Local Development Framework, to almost 3,000 
groups and individuals in the Borough.  It is hoped that the Community Plan will 
also be publicised on the council’s and partners’ websites, and will be available in 
libraries and other public buildings.   
 
Financial Implications 
 
There costs of producing the Community Plan are contained within existing 
budgets.  There are no costs arising directly from the content of the plan.  
 
Legal Implications 
 
There are no legal implications arising from this report 
 
Equalities Impact 
 
The draft Community Plan seeks to improve the quality of life for all sections of 
the community but recognises that different groups have differing needs and 
seeks to address these explicitly. 
 
Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Considerations 
 
Much of the draft Plan is devoted to making Harrow safer.  There are no other 
crime and disorder considerations arising from the report. 
 
Section 3: Supporting Information/ Background Documents 
 
Appendices 
 
The consultation draft Community Plan for Harrow 2006 – 2020 is attached. 
 
 

57



58

This page is intentionally left blank



Page 1  
V9 

 

September 2006

A Community Plan for Harrow
2006 - 2020

Draft Consultation Document

Closing date for comment Friday 27 October 2006

59



Page 2  
V9 

 

 

Consultation exercise 
 
 
This is a draft Community Plan produced for consultation.  Comments, suggestions, ideas and 
proposals are welcome from everyone in Harrow’s community.   
 
If you would like to comment on this Community Plan, you can  
 
 
•  email Mike Howes at mike.howes@harrow.gov.uk  
 
•  send a fax to 020 420 9254, headed Community Plan Consultation 
 
•  send by mail to Policy and Partnerships, Harrow Council, PO Box 57, Civic Centre, Station 

Road, Harrow HA1 2XF 
 
•  if you would like to speak to Mike Howes, you can contact him on 020 8420 9637 
 
 
 
The closing date for your comments on this Plan is Friday 27 October 2006 
 
 
 
 

60



Page 3  
V9 

 

Contents  
 
 
          Page 
 
Harrow in 2020         4 
 
Introduction          4 
 
Vision           4 
 
Harrow now          6 
 
Sustainable Communities in Harrow     8 
 
Safer Harrow         10 
 
Stronger Communities in Harrow     12 
 
Healthier Harrow        14 
 
Young Harrow         16 
 
Harrow Strategic Partnership      18 
 
Partnership Governance       19 

61



Page 4  
V9 

 

Harrow in 2020 
 
 
By 2020 much will have happened in 
the world, in London and in Harrow. 
 
Memories of the London Olympics may 
have faded, although the legacy 
facilities will still be used across the 
Capital.  The pattern of work will have 
continued to change with ever fewer 
jobs in manufacturing but more in 
services.  Life expectancy will have 
continued to increase with growing 
numbers reaching 90 years and more.  
The effects of climate change are likely 
to be more dramatic.   
 
This plan shows how the organisations 
making up Harrow Strategic 
Partnership will try to shape the effects 
of global, national, regional and local 
trends and events to work towards 
successful outcomes for Harrow.   
 
Introduction 
 
This is a community plan – it belongs 
to the community.  Everyone - 
residents, voluntary and community 
organisations, businesses, the police, 
the health service and the council – 
has a part to play in making sure that 
the aims of the plan are achieved.   
 
The plan is in three parts, but only 
Parts One and Two are included in this 
Consultation Draft.   
 
Part One - Vision 
 
Harrow will be a place which offers the 
best of capital and country and is loved 
by its residents.  It will: 
 

•  Have a choice of housing in 
distinctive neighbourhoods 

•  Be entrepreneurial and an ideal place 
to set up high skills businesses 

•  Have the lowest crime and fear of 
crime in London 

•  Celebrate what we have in common 
and capitalise on our diversity 

•  Be a place where people are healthy 
and stay healthy 

•  Be a place where children and young 
people are healthy and safe, fulfil 
their potential and help other people 

•  Have vibrant neighbourhood centres 
and the Premier Town Centre in 
North-West London 

•  Be family friendly and promote older 
people’s independence 

•  Be easy to get around for everyone 
and offer the best commuter 
experience by public transport in the 
south east and 

•  Protect its green spaces. 
 
In short, Harrow will be a desirable place to 
live, work and play 
 
The key public, private and voluntary 
organisations in Harrow will deliver this 
vision and ensure value for money in the 
services we provide for you. 
 
But we also need all our residents to play 
their part by: 
 

•  Recycling more of your waste 
•  Considering alternatives to using your 

car 
•  Being tolerant and welcoming as the 

Borough grows 
•  Considering voluntary work which 

gives something back to the local 
community 

•  Taking advantage of local leisure and 
cultural facilities and  

•  Acting responsibly in public spaces. 

62



Page 5  
V9 

 

Part Two – Medium Term Ambitions 
 
This is the most important part of the 
plan as it sets out the partnership 
priorities for the next four to six years.  
Although the plan talks about Harrow 
in 2020, it is very difficult to project 
detailed actions that far into the future.  
Instead, we aim to update this plan 
every four or five years so that it takes 
account of progress made and 
refreshes the challenges for the next 
period.   
 
The ideas contained in this section 
were mostly generated at a summit for 
local groups and community leaders 
held in July 2006 and our thanks go to 
those involved.  These ideas have 
been added to by looking at the 
Harrow Vitality Profiles which are 
Harrow’s vital statistics and provide 
very localised information about who 
lives here, how services are developed 
and relative deprivation. The plan also 
takes into account the results of the 
2006 Quality of Life survey which gives 
information about the services people 
in Harrow most value and those that 
they want to see improved.  
 
Part 3 – Three Year Action Plan 
 
Finally, there will be a rolling three-year 
action plan which will be updated every 
year and made available with the Plan.   
 
The three-year action plan will draw 
from the numerous existing partner 
plans such as the council’s Corporate 
Plan and the borough Policing Plan.  
Actions from these plans will be pulled 
together to help achieve collectively 
the communities’ medium term 
ambitions. 
 
Context 
 
This plan follows on from the first 
Community Strategy for Harrow 

published in May 2004.  That document 
established a sense of partnership and a 
sense of direction for the Borough.  It was, 
deliberately, fairly short-term and the actions 
it proposed have now either been achieved 
or overtaken by events.  One such event is 
the Local Area Agreement between the 
partnership and Central Government which 
focuses attention on performance against 48 
key outcomes covering sustainable 
communities, safer communities, stronger 
communities, healthier communities and 
children and young people in Harrow.  
These key outcomes can only be achieved 
through partnership work and, as they form 
a major part of our work plan, we have built 
this plan around the same framework. 
 
At the same time as we are preparing this 
plan about the sort of place we want Harrow 
to be in the future, we are also working on 
the Local Development Framework which is 
concerned with where change and 
development will take place in Harrow and 
how it should be managed over the next 15 - 
20 years. It will be the most important 
planning document the council prepares, 
and all other statutory planning documents 
the council prepares will need to be 
consistent with it. 
 
 

63



Page 6  
V9 

 

Harrow now 
 
 
Harrow is an outer London Borough in the 
northwest of the capital.  It has an estimated 
population of more than 211,000, a 
comparatively high average standard of 
living, low unemployment, good public 
transport links into the centre of London and 
road links to the rest of the country.   
 
The most distinctive aspect of Harrow is the 
diversity of its population.  Over 40% of the 
people living in Harrow are from minority 
ethnic communities. (Census 2001). The 
population includes people from at least 137 
different countries and based upon the 
seven religions listed in the standard tables 
from the census, Harrow has the highest 
level of religious diversity of any local 
authority in England and Wales.  This gives 
Harrow both a fascinating range of 
experience, cultures and skills but also 
challenges around communication and 
cohesion.   
 
Social and cultural cohesion is measured 
through surveys which collect information 
about how people get on together.  
Currently, (June 20061) 52% of Harrow 
residents agree or strongly agree that 
people from different backgrounds get on 
well together in their local neighbourhood 
and 15% disagree.  This gives the area a 
strong base level of engagement, tolerance 
and respect to build on in continuing to 
strengthen our communities. 
 
Harrow is also justly famous for the quality 
and quantity of green belt land in the 
borough.  Not only does this provide easy 
access to nature and recreation for many 
local people, complimenting the borough’s 
range of urban parks and open spaces, but 
also encourages visitors. 
 
                                            
1 Quality of Life Survey – June 2006 

Outside the green belt, Harrow is intensively 
built up with little or no vacant land.  Whilst it 
has good quality housing, schools and 
shopping facilities, development pressure 
for housing is changing the character of 
parts of the borough. 
 
Harrow has many of the characteristics of a 
typical outer London borough. Many 
residents work elsewhere, in particular in 
other parts of west London and central 
London where earnings are higher.  Harrow 
has an increasing population including a 
growing number of older people and a richly 
diverse and changing child population.  It 
has a continuing need for more homes, 
partly to meet the needs of the increasing 
population and partly due to the increase in 
the number of households. 
 
Employment levels and household earnings 
are relatively high, skill levels are impressive 
and people work predominantly in sectors 
and types of job where demand is growing.  
This can create an image that is attractive in 
many respects but off-putting in others, not 
least because housing is relatively 
expensive to buy. 
 
Harrow’s overall health indicators are good 
and people born in Harrow can expect to 
live longer than the London and England 
averages.  However Harrow does have 
areas of relative deprivation with residents 
who have serious health needs.  The 
biggest killers in Harrow, accounting for over 
half of all deaths, are circulatory diseases 
and cancers, which disproportionately affect 
the poorest. 
 
The 2006 Quality of Life survey conducted 
by Harrow Strategic Partnership found that 
67% of people in the borough are satisfied 
or very satisfied with Harrow as a place to 
live, with just 16% disagreeing.  Within that 

64



Page 7  
V9 

 

encouraging picture, however, there are 
geographical variations with as many as 
25% dissatisfied in Central Harrow.  This is 
an area which corresponds to the wards 
with the highest levels of deprivation in the 
borough.  Members of Black and Minority 
Ethnic Communities are more likely to be 
satisfied with their neighbourhood and much 
more likely to be satisfied with Harrow as a 
place to live.   
 
The 2006 Quality of Life survey also gave 
information about the issues of most 
concern to Harrow residents and highlighted 
road and pavement repairs, the level of 
traffic congestion, the cleanliness of streets 
and health services for improvement.  Crime 
was also a priority as, in common with most 
areas of the country, it has a high profile 
with Harrow residents.  Although Harrow 
has the lowest crime rate amongst all 
London Boroughs, the fear of crime still 
plays a significant part in shaping residents’ 
attitudes and social activities.   
 
The fear of crime is falling compared to 
2005: 6 in 10 residents feel unsafe in their 
neighbourhood after dark and 1 in 4 
residents feel unsafe in their home if they 
are alone after dark.  People felt less safe in 
parks than on public transport or in their 
town centre.  The extent of fearfulness was 
measured against a scale of 1 - crime has 
no effect on quality of life - to 10 – crime has 
a total effect.  The overall score in Harrow 
was just below 5. 

Finally, residents are more likely to be 
positive about both the future and recent 
change than they were in 2005.  The 
proportion that say overall quality of life in 
their local area has got worse in the last 
three years has fallen from 34% to 29%, 
while there has been an increase in the 
proportion who think that things will improve 
in the next three years from 17% to 21%.  
As in 2005, residents tend to be more 
optimistic about the future than the past 
three years; twice as many people think 
their local area will improve in the next three 
years as say it has got better over the 
previous three years.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

65



Page 8  
V9 

 

Sustainable Communities in Harrow 
 
 
A sustainable community is a place where 
people want to live and work now and in the 
future, meets the needs of the present and 
builds a basis for a sustainable future.   
 
Sustainable communities meet the diverse 
needs of existing and future residents; are 
sensitive to their environment; and 
contribute to a high quality of life.  They are 
safe and inclusive, well planned, built and 
run, and offer equality of opportunity and 
good services for all.  A sustainable 
community balances and integrates the 
social, economic and environmental 
components of their community; and 
respects the needs of other communities in 
the wider region.   
 
Locally, creating a sustainable borough 
means moving towards sustainable 
construction involving carbon neutral 
buildings; harnessing the use of  energy 
from renewable sources; reusing grey water, 
and seeking to use partnerships to address 
climate change.  It also means protecting 
environmentally sensitive areas while 
accommodating development for housing 
and employment in accessible locations; 
reducing domestic and business waste, 
promoting recycling, and public transport 
while recognising that the car is an integral 
part of life.   
 
The Harrow Strategic Partnership has a 
responsibility to encourage businesses and 
residents to reduce emissions, to find cost 
effective measures to tackle climate change 
and to respond to extreme weather events 
through emergency planning. 
 
Around 60% of Harrow’s working population 
travel out of the borough to their job.  This 
section of the workforce earns, on average, 
more than the workers who remain in 
Harrow.  It is important that this proportion 

does not change too drastically in the 
coming years, since a decline in the in-
borough workforce could lead to fewer 
spending opportunities in the borough and, 
as a result, less of the money earned 
outside Harrow being spent here.   
 
Locally, most employment is in retailing, the 
public sector, the service sector and the 
growing number of small businesses.  In the 
medium term, there is very little scope for 
growth in public sector employment, and 
competition from surrounding areas 
suggests that, unless Harrow town centre is 
modernised, which is part of the long term 
plan, retail employment will decline.  The 
service sector depends largely on the 
success of other enterprises, some of which 
fall into the small business category.  It is 
here that there is the best chance for 
increased employment.   
 
Recent history suggests that expanding 
small businesses move out of Harrow, 
taking with them the benefits that would 
have accrued to the local economy.  To 
counteract this tendency, there needs to be 
suitable premises and support available.  
Retaining a larger proportion of expanding 
businesses would also support the service 
and retail sectors. 
 
There is also scope for employment growth 
in tourism-related businesses – perhaps 
mostly through accommodation for visitors 
seeking the best of capital and country. 
 

66



Page 9  
V9 

 

Locally, in the next four to six years, the 
partnership will aim to 
 
•  achieve and conserve a balance and 

variety of well managed green spaces, 
bring half of the borough’s parks up to 
Green Flag standard and protect and 
improve bio-diversity; 

•  prevent anti-social behaviour in parks;  
•  retain in Harrow a greater proportion of 

small business enterprises which start 
here and support them to recruit local 
people; 

•  encourage affordable housing to be 
developed in accessible locations; 

•  continue to improve the rates of both 
domestic and business recycling and 
reduce litter in the borough; 

•  promote sustainability in new buildings, 
through efficient energy use, increasing 
the amount of energy produced from 
renewable sources, and the use of grey 
water and rain water; 

•  make traffic improvement through 
schemes for walking and cycling to 
reduce reliance on private cars and 
reduce congestion; 

•  create a positive and cohesive identity 
for the borough that welcomes, involves 
and satisfies the visitor; 

•  promote the regeneration of Harrow 
Town Centre by increasing its retail offer, 
creating a distinctive public realm and 
securing a 21st century transport hub. 

•  work towards Unesco world heritage 
status for Harrow on the Hill 

•  have in place comprehensive emergency 
plans in response to climate change. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

67



Page 10  
V9 

 

Safer Harrow 
 

 
Harrow currently has the lowest recorded 
crime rate of all the boroughs in London.  
This is recognised locally because fewer 
than one resident in ten say that they live in 
a high crime area.  It is also demonstrated 
by a reduction in the number of people who 
identify crime as increasing in 2006 
compared to 2005. 
 
Compared to 2005, the Quality of Life 
survey records: 
 
•  a reduction in the number of people who 

feel unsafe at night when alone at home 
or walking alone in their local area. 

•  a nine percentage point reduction in the 
numbers identifying crime levels as an 
issue that needs improving in Harrow, 
down from 53% to 44%.   

 
Nevertheless, the fear of crime is real and 
has a significant impact on people’s lives. 
 
The most recent figures available show 
crime in both London and Harrow falling by 
between 4% and 5%.  The data on crimes 
that people in Harrow have experienced 
suggests that it could mostly be categorised 
as anti-social behaviour rather than serious 
or violent crime.   
 
The fear of crime does not, therefore, 
appear to be strongly related to people’s 
actual experience of crime or anti-social 
behaviour.  Fear might, therefore, be 
addressed by targeted neighbourhood 
activity that provides reassurance as well as 
action to reduce further the incidence of 
crime and anti-social behaviour.  This is one 
of the motivations for the formation of Safer 
Neighbourhood Teams.  There will be 21 
teams of Police Officers and Community 
Support Officers each dedicated to policing 
single wards in the borough.  Officers 

working in Safer Neighbourhood Teams will 
get to know residents in their area and will 
respond to neighbourhood concerns 
reported by residents about areas which 
attract crime or anti-social behaviour.  By 
the end of 2006/07, each Safer 
Neighbourhood Team in Harrow should be 
fully staffed and operational. 
 
The Council’s efforts to ensure a cleaner, 
greener and tidy built environment also 
contribute to increasing feelings of security.  
Abandoned cars, fly tipping, graffiti, litter and 
the effects of low-level criminal damage can 
give an impression of an area being uncared 
for and run down.  The council has focused 
on addressing these issues and has 
achieved significant increases in the 
proportion of the public who say issues like 
control of litter are improving (from 21% in 
2003/4 to 40% in 2006) 
 
Locally, Community Safety is managed by 
Safer Harrow, which comprises the Police, 
the Council, the Primary Care Trust, and the 
Fire Service amongst others.  Safer 
Harrow’s current priorities are: 
 
•  to improve the quality of life by reducing 

the impact of crime and anti-social 
behaviour; 

•  to reduce violent crime and increase 
detection rates; 

•  to reduce property crime and increase 
detection rates; 

•  to reduce the number of young people 
who are victims of crime and the number 
of young people who commit crime; 

•  to target prolific and priority offenders 
and so reduce crime ; 

•  to increase access to treatment for those 
misusing drugs and alcohol; and 

•  to increase community involvement in 
enhancing community safety. 

68



Page 11  
V9 

 

 
Broadly, Safer Harrow seeks to work with 
specific groups of people, those who are 
offenders or are at risk of offending and in 
specific places which have a history of 
particular crime types.  Safer Harrow also 
uses education and awareness to help 
prevent crime from occurring.  In 
combination with the reassurance work of 
Safer Neighbourhood Teams, Safer Harrow 
has an integrated approach to addressing 
crime and the fear of crime.   
 
In addition to the work that is already 
planned and proposed for future years, the 
Partnership will, over the next four to six 
years, aim to 
 
•  focus on the quality of the built 

environment by tackling litter, graffiti and 
fly tipping to improve the quality of life; 

•  ensure that data is shared between 
partners to inform the planning of 
activities and services; 

•  implement controlled drinking zones 
where appropriate to address anti-social 
behaviour; 

•  reduce the fear of crime amongst the 
population of Harrow; 

•  reduce the percentage of people who 
regard anti-social behaviour as a big or a 
fairly big problem; 

•  increase the number of Neighbourhood 
Watch schemes; 

•  reduce the level of non-residential 
burglary in the borough; 

•  reduce the level of residential burglary 
where the victim is over 75 years of age; 

•  increase the number of sites accepting 
third party reports of crime, particularly 
sites accessible to the BME 
communities; 

•  promote building design and layout that 
discourages crime and disorder; and  

•  deliver the targets of the Local 
Safeguarding Children Board together 
with the voluntary and community sector, 
to ensure sound multi-agency 

communication and practice around 
protecting children from harm and 
promoting their welfare. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

69



Page 12  
V9 

 

Stronger Communities in Harrow 
 
Stronger communities are the product of 
neighbourhoods where people feel they 
belong, where people look out for one 
another, where local people have a greater 
voice and influence over local decision-
making, where people from different 
backgrounds get on well together and where 
the most disadvantaged are valued.  
Stronger communities increase the quality of 
life for residents and make an area the sort 
of place where people want to live.   
 
Harrow has a very diverse population, with 
just over 40% of residents being from 
minority ethnic communities and home to 
people from at least 137 different countries.  
Nonetheless, Harrow’s people have a lot in 
common.  For a start, more than twice as 
many people feel that they strongly belong 
in their neighbourhood compared to those 
who feel only a loose association with their 
area.  Residents who live in East and 
Central Harrow are least likely to feel a 
strong sense of belonging to their area.  
Those feeling a strong sense of belonging 
come equally from the Black and Minority 
Ethnic (BME) and non-BME communities.   
 
It should not be surprising that people 
identify with their neighbourhood in Harrow 
as 38% of residents have lived in their 
current area for 21 years or more and seven 
out of ten people have lived in their current 
area for between six and ten years.  This 
compares with an average length of tenure 
of only four years nationally.  This stability 
provides underlying strength to Harrow’s 
communities and provides the confidence to 
welcome new people. 
 
This can be seen in that, currently: 
 
•  52% of Harrow residents agree or 

strongly agree that people from different 
backgrounds get on well together in their 

local neighbourhood with 15% 
disagreeing2.   

•  54% of residents say that, in their area, 
people respect ethnic differences with 
12% disagreeing.   

•  just 6% of residents say that they do not 
regularly meet and talk to people from 
different ethnic origins.   

 
One of the hallmarks of a strong community 
is the degree to which people feel that they 
have influence over decisions that affect 
their area.   In Harrow, 13% of residents feel 
that they can influence decisions as an 
individual but 42% feel that by working 
together, the community can make its voice 
heard.  An example of an initiative to help 
improve people’s influence over decisions is 
the creation of Prosperity Action Teams 
(PATs) by the council.   
 
The PAT’s will be a vehicle for residents to 
influence physical improvement to their 
neighbourhood.  There are also 
opportunities for Partnership agencies to 
increase cohesion and local influence by 
joined up consultation and resident 
involvement in setting priorities.  For 
example, there is scope for joint working 
between Safer Neighbourhood Panels 
established by the Police and Prosperity 
Action Teams being developed by the 
council. 
 
An active and focused voluntary and 
community sector, including the faith sector, 
is vital for a healthy and cohesive 
community.  Not only does the sector 
provide a wide variety of services to people 
in the borough but offers the opportunity for 
residents to participate in voluntary work.  
One in five Harrow residents over the age of 
18 say that they take part in voluntary work 
for an average of two or more hours a week.  
                                            
2 Quality of Life Survey – July 2006 

70



Page 13  
V9 

 

This is a total of more than 35,000 people, 
which demonstrates strength within 
Harrow’s communities.  Volunteering gives 
individuals self-esteem, a different 
perspective on life and a feeling that they 
are helping to shape the direction of their 
neighbourhood.  At the same time, 
volunteering adds to the social capital and 
infrastructure of a community.  
 
Over the next four to six years, the 
partnership will aim to  
 
•  ensure that a further 1,500 volunteers 

are recruited; 
•  increase, by six percentage points, the 

proportion of residents who report that 
their area is a place where people from 
different backgrounds get on well 
together; 

•  work to co-ordinate support for the 
voluntary and community sector and 
fund groups that help to deliver the 
ambitions in this strategy; 

•  devise joined up opportunities for local 
communities to influence the direction of 
their neighbourhood’s development and 
the pattern of local services; 

•  put in place improved methods of 
sharing information between partners 
and making it accessible to the public; 

•  identify further opportunities for people to 
participate in sport and leisure activities 
which support community cohesion; 

•  help to develop skills in the voluntary and 
community sector; 

•  ensure continuous improvement in the 
quality of housing, affordability and 
choice of type, size, and tenure; and 

•  deliver a Community Development 
Strategy. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

71



Page 14  
V9 

 

Healthier Harrow 
 
Harrow is a very healthy place.  For 
example, a female child born in 2006 in 
Harrow would have an average life 
expectancy of 82.7 years and a male child 
78 years.  These are the second highest life 
expectancy figures in North West London 
and higher than the London or England 
averages.  Health is linked with affluence.  
As a whole, Harrow is ranked 5th most 
affluent borough in London and so above 
average life expectancy could be 
anticipated. 
 
These results hide disparities within the 
borough.  Male life expectancy varies by 6.4 
years between Wealdstone at 73.9 years 
and Pinner South and Headstone North both 
at 80.2.  For women, the highest life 
expectancy is 85.7 years in Pinner South 
compared with 78.9 years in Wealdstone.   
 
These differences are due to the effects of 
relative affluence and deprivation.  The less 
well off have significantly higher mortality 
rates from nearly all causes of mortality.  
The reasons for this include lifestyle issues 
such as the prevalence of smoking, dietary 
factors and employment, education and 
transport.   
 
One of the main aims of Harrow Primary 
Care Trust is to address health inequalities. 
This will require the efforts of all members of 
the partnership.  This is because these 
inequalities are not due, for the most part, to 
the quality of or access to General 
Practitioners or acute health services and 
therefore extend beyond the remit of the 
health service alone.   
 
One of the social rather than clinical reasons 
for health inequalities is smoking.  The 
partnership is committed to reducing 
smoking through increasing the number of 
people signing up to smoking cessation 
courses and being smoke-free four weeks 

later.  The partnership is also encouraging 
smoke free environments, domestic as well 
as business, to protect non-smokers from 
the smoke of others.  A ‘Smokefree Homes’ 
initiative particularly aims to protect the 
health of children and older people.  Other 
examples of preventative action are: a 
series of targets to address obesity including 
the Healthy Schools Programme, increasing 
Body Mass Indicator screening and 
increasing adult participation in sport and 
active recreation.   
 
It is recognised that there are groups for 
whom access is an issue   Therefore, a 
targeted approach aimed at removing 
barriers to information and services is a key 
objective of the partnership. 
 
A function of increasing good health and life 
expectancy is that Harrow has a growing 
number and proportion of older people.  As 
people live longer, they tend to need more 
clinical and social care, particularly as they 
become frail.  There are a number of actions 
that the council, the health service and the 
voluntary and community sector can take to 
improve the quality of life and independence 
of older people. These include reducing the 
waiting time for assessments, providing 
intensive homecare where necessary and 
making direct payments so that older people 
control their own care packages.   
 
One of the ambitions of both service 
providers and consumers is better 
integration of clinical and social care to 
overcome boundary issues and questions of 
responsibility.  Joint planning and 
commissioning arrangements between the 
Primary Care Trust and the Council are 
addressing this issue.  This means 
individuals’ needs can be met by one 
provider even where the needs change over 
time between clinical and social care.  
 

72



Page 15  
V9 

 

Over the next four to six years, the 
partnership will aim to: 
 
•  decrease harm from smoking and 

second-hand smoke and reduce the 
number of adults smoking; 

•  increase integration of services for older 
people to improve quality, access and 
efficiency; 

•  increase the range of preventative health 
measures in place to promote healthy 
lifestyles; 

•  improve health outcomes for all 
communities and people with disabilities; 

•  support independent living for older 
people; 

•  develop and deliver programmes to 
tackle alcohol abuse; 

•  develop and deliver a multi-agency 
programme to prevent and tackle 
obesity; and 

•  improve access to open space and 
sports and leisure facilities. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

73



Page 16  
V9 

 

Young Harrow 
 

 
There are 52,000 children and young people 
up to 19 years of age in Harrow of which, 
29,000 are pupils at Harrow’s schools.  
Specific services for young people are 
provided by the council, the Primary Care 
Trust and the voluntary and community 
sector.  Children and young people also use 
a wide range of general services such as 
transport and policing.   
 
The providers of specific services and 
representatives of some of the general 
services have formed a Children and Young 
People’s Strategic Partnership.  This 
partnership is taking forward the issues 
highlighted in the Government’s strategy 
“Every Child Matters”, namely: 
 
•  being healthy 
•  staying safe 
•  enjoying and achieving 
•  making a positive contribution 
•  achieving economic well-being.   
 
The partnership is investigating a Children’s 
Trust approach to planning and providing 
services to make progress on each of these 
issues so that all services are delivered from 
a single, integrated body. 
 
The partnership will focus its efforts on the 
delivery of the targets in the Children and 
Young People’s Plan. 
 
The partnership addresses needs across 
the children and young people’s age range.  
This includes the above average number of 
children with low birth weights; improving 
nutrition from schools meals; making sure 
play areas are safe and secure; supporting 
schools in developing their provision for 
young people’s personal and social 
development; providing access to 
Connexions’ education, training and 

employment advice to hard to reach young 
people amongst many other specific 
proposals.  
 
As well as addressing the quality and reach 
of general services, the partnership has 
special responsibility for Children Looked 
After and children on the At Risk Register.  
The partnership will work closely with the 
Local Safeguarding Children Board.  To 
improve the life chances of Looked After 
Children, the partnership will work with 
schools to improve their academic 
attainment by reducing exclusions, 
improving attendance and creating flexible 
pathways and personalised learning 
opportunities.  For children on the At Risk 
Register, the partnership will improve the 
tracking of young people at risk at all stages 
in order to ensure targeted support is timely, 
relevant, sufficient and preventative where 
possible.   
 
Over the next four to six years, the 
partnerships will aim to: 
 
•  work to give children the best start in life 

by increasing the rate of breastfeeding; 
•  reduce school exclusions and improve 

attendance; 
•  improve the skills base of Harrow and 

the employability of residents;  
•  improve the life chances of young people 

by reducing the percentage of young 
people who are not in education, 
employment or training; 

•  identify ways of ensuring that children 
and young people have the social and 
emotional skills required for them to 
thrive in their communities; 

•  work to ensure that young people are 
respected by the wider population; 

•  increase the uptake  of sexual health 
services; 

74



Page 17  
V9 

 

•  reduce the rate of teenage pregnancies 
in areas of greatest need; and 

•  ensure the voice and views of young 
people are heard, and involve  them in 
designing services for themselves. 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

75



Page 18  
V9 

 

Harrow Strategic Partnership 
 

 
 
The Strategic Partnership Board comprises representatives of: 
 
Community Linkup 
Harrow Association of Voluntary Service 
Harrow Citizens Advice Bureau 
Harrow Council 
Harrow in Business 
Harrow Police 
Harrow Primary Care Trust 
Kids Can Achieve 
Kodak Limited 
Metropolitan Police Authority 
MIND in Harrow 
North West London Chamber of Commerce 
Stanmore College 
University of Westminster 
 
Additionally, the following organisations are members of the various management and reference 
groups that help to make the aspirations in the Community Plan a reality. 
 
 
(to be completed in later version) 
 
 
 

76



Page 19  
V9 

 

Harrow Strategic Partnership governance 
 

The Harrow Strategic Partnership brings together the public, private, business, community and 
voluntary sectors to deliver a shared vision for the future. 
 
The HSP joins up partners’ activities across a range of issues, enabling each of them to meet 
their own targets and goals and tackle common issues more effectively. 
 
The structure and the decision making process of the HSP 
  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
A major benefit of partnership working is the effective use of resources.  A future ambition of the 
partnership is to increase the number of budgets held by different organisations but which are 
aligned to achieve agreed outcomes and to pool funding to help achieve the aims of this Plan, 
delivering better value for money. 

Sustainable 
Development 
& Enterprise 

HSP 
BOARD

HSP 
EXECUTIVE

Older People’s 
Reference Group 

(Consultative) 

Voluntary & 
Community 

Sector Forum 
(Consultative) 

Safer 
Harrow 

Community 
Cohesion 

Adult 
Health & 
Social 
Care 

Children 
and 

Young 
People 

Adult Health & Social 
Care Integration Board 

DELIVERY/SUB GROUPS

Management 
Groups 

77



Page 20  
V9 

 
 

020 8420 9637

Punjabi 

78



 

 
Meeting: 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 
 

10th October 2006 

Subject: 
 

Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel  

Key Decision:  
 

 Not applicable 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Director People, Performance and Policy 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Strategic Overview and External Affairs 
Portfolio Holder 

Status: 
 

Part I  
 

Encs: 
 

Report of the Scrutiny Challenge Panel on 
the Corporate Assessment Self Assessment 

 
 
SECTION 1 – SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
 
This report sets out the findings of the challenge panel held by the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee to consider the council’s draft self-assessment for the 
forthcoming corporate assessment. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
 
Members of the Overview and Scrutiny committee are requested to: 
1. Note the findings of the challenge panel in the attached report 
2. Endorse the recommendations included in the attached report 

 
 

Agenda Item 16
Pages 79 to 98

79



 

SECTION 2 - REPORT 
  
Brief Background 
The council will undergo corporate assessment, a significant part of the 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment, in November and December of this 
year.  An important component of the corporate assessment is the self-
assessment, submitted by the council prior to the onsite work by the Audit 
Commission.  The challenge panel was set up to consider the rigour of the 
document that was being submitted to the Audit Commission and to ensure that 
the council presents a valid assessment of our strengths and weaknesses.  The 
panels findings are incorporated in the attached report 
 
Issue to be determined  
Councillors are being asked to endorse the findings of the panel. 
 
Benefits 
Acceptance of the recommendations of the panel will support the development of 
the final submission to the Audit Commission. 
 
Costs of proposals 
There are no costs associated with the recommendations in this report 
 
Resources, costs and risks associated with recommendation 
There are no costs associated with the recommendations in this report 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected  
If the reports recommendations are rejected the Overview and Scrutiny 
committee will have lost the opportunity to place on record its comments with 
regard to the self-assessment. 
 
Options considered  
Not appropriate to this report 
 
Option recommended and reasons for recommendation 
Not appropriate to this report 
 
Staffing/workforce consideration 
The capacity of the council to deliver its ambitions is a key line of enquiry for the 
corporate assessment.  The challenge panel has incorporated this into its 
deliberations. 
 
Equalities Impact consideration 
The capacity of the council to deliver its ambitions and thus the extent to which it 
recognises and reflects the diversity of its residents is a key line of enquiry for the 
corporate assessment.  The challenge panel has incorporated this into its 
deliberations. 
 
Current KPI’s and Likely impact of decision on KPI’s 
There are no specific performance indicators related to this report.   

80



 

 
Section 17 considerations 
The capacity of the council to integrate its crime and community safety work is a 
key line of enquiry under the ‘achievements’ block.  This challenge panel has 
incorporated this into its deliberations. 
 
 
SECTION 3 - STATUTORY OFFICER CLEARANCE 
 
   
 Chief Financial Officer √ Barry Evans 
   
   
Monitoring Officer √ Jill Travers 
   

 
 
 
SECTION 4 - CONTACT DETAILS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
 
Contact:   
Lynne McAdam, Service Manager Scrutiny, x 5387 
   
Background Papers:   
Draft Corporate Assessment Self Assessment 
CPA The Harder Test – Audit Commission 2006 
 
IF APPROPRIATE, does the report include the following considerations?  
 
 
1. Consultation  NO 

2. Corporate Priorities  YES  

3. Community Safety (s17 Crime & Disorder Act 1998)  YES  

4. Manifesto Pledge Reference Number All 

 
 

81



82

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 

September 2006 
 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 
 
 
 

Report of the Scrutiny Challenge Panel 
 
 
 

Corporate Assessment Self Assessment 
 
 
 
 

Members of the Review Group 
 

Cllr Brian Gate (Chairman) 
Cllr Jean Lammiman  
Cllr Margaret Davine 

Cllr Mitzi Green 
Cllr Richard Romain 
Cllr Mark Versallion 

 
 

83



84



TABLE OF CONTENTS 
 
 
ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS     Page 1 
 
INTRODUCTION      Page 2 
 
METHODOLOGY      Page 3 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS      Page 4 
 
FINDINGS       Page 5 
 
BACKGROUND INFORMATION    Page 8 
  
APPENDIX ONE 
Scope         Page 11 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

85



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
1 

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS 
The challenge panel would like to thank council officers and partners for the time they 
contributed to the challenge panel.  In particular the panel acknowledges the work that has been 
undertaken by Tom Whiting, Group Manager Strategy and Performance, Mala Kripalani, 
Corporate Assessment Project Manager and Paul Najsarek in producing the draft self 
assessment in time for our deliberations.  We are also grateful for the contribution of the 
following officers who attended the panel session: Heather Clements, Group Manager 
Achievement and Inclusion; Penny Furness Smith, Director Community Care; Michael Hart, 
Director of Strategy, Urban Living; John Kennedy, Area Manager, Area Developments; Gareth 
Llywelyn Roberts, Chief Environmental Health Officer; Jon Turner, Head of Human Resources.  
We are particulary pleased that our deliberations were assisted by 2 of our key external 
partners Bob Carr, Borough Commander, Metropolitan Police Harrow and Julia Smith, Chief 
Executive of Harrow Association of Voluntary Service.  Finally, our thanks to Lynne McAdam in 
the Scrutiny Team for her organisation and production of our report. 
 
This report has been compiled by the Members named on the front cover. The views expressed 
are solely ours. 
 

86



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
2 

INTRODUCTION 
In November this year Harrow Council will undergo its second corporate assessment.  The 
corporate assessment is a key component of the Comprehensive Performance Assessment 
(CPA) which was introduced in 2002 in order to draw together the significant elements of local 
authority audit and inspection work and to provide an overall view of councils’ performance and 
their capacity to improve services to the public.  The principle reference point of the corporate 
assessment is the self-assessment which helps to inform judgements made by inspectors and 
the decision made about the scope and focus of the inspection team’s onsite work.  The self-
assessment is evidence of the council’s self-awareness and needs to demonstrate a clear 
understanding of the challenges and opportunities faced by the council and a realistic 
evaluation of strengths and weaknesses.  The self-assessment should present a valid and 
balanced picture of performance. 
 
This is a crucial event in the life of the council and the preparation of a robust self-assessment 
is essential.  Although the self-assessment would be considered in a number of different 
forums, councillors felt that the Overview and Scrutiny committee should also contribute to the 
document before submission to the Audit Commission in order to add/offer a robust challenge 
and ensure its rigour.   
 
To this end the challenge panel was established comprising: 
Cllr Brian Gate (Chairman) 
Cllr Jean Lammiman  
Cllr Margaret Davine 
Cllr Mitzi Green 
Cllr Richard Romain 
Cllr Mark Versallion 
 
The panel met on 7th September and its findings and recommendations are included in the 
pages that follow. 

87



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
3 

METHODOLOGY 
Councilllors decided to undertake this project by means of a challenge panel as this approach 
was felt to be a more robust and challenging process than simply considering the document as 
an item on the committee agenda.  The Corporate Assessment is a significant event which will 
have long-term implications for the council.  The degree of inquiry offered by the challenge 
panel process was felt to be the most appropriate methodology for scrutiny to ensure that the 
associated self-assessment presents the most rigorous representation of the council to the 
Audit Commission.   
 
Challenge panels were introduced in July 2006.  On many occasions – particularly when a 
policy is being developed – officers appreciate feedback on proposals from members.  The 
committee environment may not be suited to this, mainly because of time constraints. Challenge 
panels comprise a small group of officers and members that are able to discuss a particular 
policy or strategy, or in this instance, the corporate assessment self-assessment, more 
informally and in more detail, They provide an opportunity for members to provide an 
alternative, ‘real time’ perspective to council business, and lend additional accountability to the 
policy development process.  This level of detailed challenge would not be possible as a single 
item on a packed committee agenda. 
 
An initial briefing document, outlining some of the basic principles of Comprehensive 
Performance Assessment and Corporate Assessment was prepared for councillors in order that 
they had a basis from which to challenge the content of an early draft of the self-assessment.  
The document was very lengthy – almost 3 times the permitted 25 pages – and in order to focus 
their deliberations in the time available and to ensure a strategic approach, councillors held a 
panel preparation meeting to decide on their approach to the investigation.  It was agreed that 
councillors would:  
•  Identify the key messages that they felt ought to drive each section of the self-assessment:  

•  Context within which the council operates 
•  What is the council, together with its partners, trying to achieve? 
•  What is the capacity of the council, including its work with partners, to deliver what it is 

trying to achieve? 
•  What has been achieved? 

•  Comment on the evidence that had been included in the document to support these 
messages.   

 
The panel took place on 7th September as a round table discussion between councillors, council 
officers and representatives of partner agencies. 
 

88



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
4 

RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
The Corporate Assessment challenge panel recommends: 
 
1. The general messages identified during discussion been reflected in the tone of the final 

document 
 
2. The specific points identified during discussion be considered as part of the overall edit of 

the document  (It is acknowledged that the challenge panel is one of a number of 
consultation processes and in some instances comments made by the panel have been 
superseded by further comments and by the necessity of reducing the document from 
the draft seen to the final 25-page submission). 

 
3. A final draft of the document be circulated to members of the panel 
 
4. The document is signed off by the Executive before submission to the Audit Commission 

89



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
5 

FINDINGS 
 
The principle points that the panel wished to emphasise are: 
With regard to content 
•  There should be more emphasis on innovative partnerships 
•  Community engagement should be a key feature – Harrow People should be highlighted 
•  The reconfiguration of the directorates is a key strength that will enhance leadership 
•  There has been a cultural shift in the organisation – Partnership is a key message, Harrow 

as part of London and commitment to ending isolation and to working with others 
•  Communication and engagement is a priority for the council  
•  Harrow is a learning organisation and the lessons learnt and their application should be 

highlighted 
•  Staff are a valued part of the organisation – the ambition to achieve corporate Investor in 

People status needs to be emphasised 
 
With regard to document design/structure 
•  The self-assessment should be signed off by the Executive 
•  All assertions in the document need to be substantiated 
•  The document should demonstrate main messages using case studies 
•  Thought should be given to ‘shadowing’ photographs into the background of the document 
•  Too many people have contributed to the document – a consistent style needs to be derived 
 
The self-assessment was considered in more detail under the following headings: 
•  Context  
•  What is the council, together with its partners, trying to achieve? 

This measures: 
•  Ambition for the community 
•  Prioritisation 

 
•  What is the capacity of the council, including its work with partners, to deliver what it is trying 

to achieve? 
This measures: 
•  Capacity 
•  Performance management  

 
•  What has been achieved? 

This measures achievement in terms of the shared priorities: 
•  Sustainable communities and transport 
•  Safer and stronger communities 
•  Healthier communities 
•  Older people 
•  Children and young people 

 
 
Context 
The general points with regard to this section were: 
•  The organisation has undergone significant change over the last 4 years, particularly in 

relation to children’s services and the impact of the New Harrow Project and the Middle 
Management Review  

90



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
6 

•  Community engagement has a growing importance for the council and the work around 
extended schools, the Hear/say scrutiny review and the community engagement strategy.  
There has been a cultural shift in the way councillors and officers work with local people with 
far more complex issues being dealt with on a ward basis. 

•  Resident express high fear of crime and there is an imbalance between the actual incidence 
of crime and residents anxiety. 

•  Partnership working in the borough is successful in particular the through the Safer Harrow 
Partnership, the safer neighbourhoods work and this offers the council and partners an 
excellent platform from which to expand neighbourhood working.  

 
What is the council, together with its partners, trying to achieve? 
The general points with regard to this section were: 
•  The section is not strong enough  - the council is a ‘flagship that is not waving’ 
•  Partnership is a key priority for the council and in particular partnership with local people – 

there should be greater emphasis on the community engagement principles and strategy 
•  Prosperity Action Teams offer another opportunity for revitalising the relationship between 

local people and the council.  
•  The diversity of the borough is its driving force.  It is being successfully replicated in the 

diversity of the political leadership of the council  
•  Vitality profiles have been an excellent resource which have enabled the council to 

successfully profile the borough and target resources appropriately 
 
What is the capacity of the council, including its work with partners, to deliver what it is trying to 
achieve? 
The general points with regard to this section were: 
•  The document needs to incorporate comment regarding the capacity of councillors – this has 

a growing importance in relation to the development of members and their increasing 
responsibilities for community leadership 

•  The successful procurement exercises and their strategic relevance should be emphasised 
•  Business Transformation Partnership will make a significant contribution to the capacity of 

the organisation 
•  The development of children’s centres and the opportunity they bring for enhanced 

partnership working will again increase the capacity of the organisation 
•  Partnership is a key component of the council’s capacity – not just in terms of business 

relationships but also within the organisation and between the council and other 
organisations 

•  The council has increased its capacity by learning from previous experience – e.g. learning 
from the MMR process 

•  The position of the Chief Executive/Acting Chief Executive needs to be addressed.  We note 
that there is now an official acting chief executive pending the new appointment. 

 
What has been achieved? 
Sustainable communities 
The general points with regard to this section were: 
•  The section feels ‘dry’ 
•  Case studies would benefit from being cross-sectional 
•  There are a number of useful examples that could be woven in to the document 
•  The examples could highlight – and link back to engagement of local people. 
 

91



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
7 

Safer and stronger communities 
The general points with regard to this section were: 
•  The section needs a better structure – Crime and Disorder Reduction Partnership and Local 

Area Agreement should be the drivers for the section 
•  Consistent statistics need to be used throughout the document – linking evidence in one 

section with another 
•  There is insufficient information re stronger communities – evidence could include 

successful community cohesion, community development officer, response to emergency 
situations 

 
Healthy communities 
The general points with regard to this section were: 
•  The vitality profiles should be the context around which this section is structured with case 

studies built in as illustrations 
•  There are good stories regarding supporting people 
•  The council still has an older people’s champion and reference should be made to the 

Partnership with Older People (POP) panel 
•  The positive contribution to public health should be highlighted but in a way that 

acknowledges current financial difficulties 
 
Older People  
The general points with regard to this section were: 
•  This section should not just be about statutory provision for older people but should be about 

how the council and partners contribute to the health, well being and quality of life of older 
people.  In this context the POP panel, the voice of older people on all matters relating to 
older people needs to be emphasised should drive the structure of the section 

•  The implications of ethnicity and age should be addressed 
 
Children and Young People 
Although the corporate assessment will not consider the provision of children’s services (this will 
be investigated through the concurrent Joint Area Review) the self-assessment may still wish to 
make reference to children’s experiences under some of the other headings. 

92



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
8 

 BACKGROUND INFORMATION 
WHAT IS COMPREHENSIVE PERFORMANCE ASSESSMENT? 
Comprehensive Performance Assessment was introduced in 2002 in order to draw together the 
significant elements of local authority audit and inspection work and to provide an overall view 
of councils’ performance and their capacity to improve services to the public.  The assessment 
is published annually and enables the relative performance of local authorities to be compared.  
Its predecessor, the Best Value regime, also made public announcements about services that 
were subject to Audit Commission inspection but did this only for specific services and not the 
council as a whole. 
 
CPA has been seen as an important driver for improvement which it has delivered by: 
•  Reporting publicly how well each local authority is performing overall 
•  Supporting councils to focus on their own improvement and targeting support for this 
•  Providing an independent challenge to local authorities and thus contributing to the 

improvement in public services 
 
CPA has 4 component parts the first 3 of which are summarised below, the 4th is the key focus 
of the challenge panel: 
•  Direction of Travel judgement 
•  Use of resources assessment 
•  Service assessment 
•  Corporate assessment 
 
The annual Direction of Travel assessment assesses an authority’s duty to make 
arrangements to secure continuous improvements.  There are 4 levels of judgement: 
•  Improving strongly 
•  Improving well 
•  Improving adequately 
•  Not improving adequately or not improving 
 
The direction of travel assessment is carried out by a council’s Audit Commission relationship 
manager using set key lines of enquiry to determine: 
•  What evidence is there of the council improving outcomes 
•  How much progress is being made to implement improvement plans to sustain future 

improvement 
 
The Use of Resources assessment is also conducted annually and examines an authority’s: 
•  Financial reporting 
•  Financial management 
•  Financial standing 
•  Internal control 
•  Value for money 
 
The assessment is carried out by the council’s auditors. 
 
Service assessment scores are also published annually and combine a score for the 
performance indicator set relevant to the service with the score from any relevant inspection 
published during the previous 3 years.  Where inspection information is used it is only the score 
on the performance of the service (how good is the service) that counts.  Annual assessment 
scores for children’s services, social care services for adults and benefits services are provided 
to the Audit Commission for the annual service assessment and overall CPA refresh by Office 

93



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
9 

for Standards in Education (OFSTED), Commission for Social Care Inspection (CSCI) and the 
Benefit Fraud Inspectorate (BFI) respectively. 
 
The Corporate Assessment 
‘Corporate assessment focuses on the importance of a sound corporate engine to drive good 
services.  It measures how effectively the council is working corporately and with its partners to 
improve services and deliver improved outcomes for local people………  Key Lines of Enquiry 
(KLOE) measure how well councils understand their local communities and neighbourhoods 
and provide community leadership; how this understanding of local people and places 
translates into council’s ambitions and priorities; their capacity to deliver these; and what, in 
practice, councils are achieving’1 
 
In its latest guidance, the Audit Commission has determined that all councils will undergo 
corporate assessment once in the period 2005 – 2008.  After this time there are proposals for a 
change in the means by which the relative performance of councils is assessed, the Audit 
Commission is currently consulting on arrangements to replace CPA2.  This means that this is 
likely to be the second and final time that the council will go through the process and that 
therefore the results of this assessment will last for the foreseeable future and it will possibly be 
what the council carries as its final reputation for many years – if the system is radically 
changed.  It is worth noting that the corporate assessment is now much tougher than at the 
council’s previous assessment in 2002 and the Audit Commission has placed much greater 
emphasis on how a council addresses the following issues: 
•  Community leadership 
•  Diversity 
•  User focus 
•  Value for money  
•  Partnership 
This tougher test will make it much harder for the council to improve on its current corporate 
assessment score of 2 (fair) and emphasises the importance of us being able to present a 
robust and well articulated assessment of our performance. 
 
Under corporate assessment a council is assessed against the following key lines of enquiry 
(KLOE): 
Question 1:  What is the council, together with its partners, trying to achieve 
This measures: 
•  Ambition for the community 
•  Prioritisation 
 
Question 2:  What is the capacity of the council, including its work with partners, to deliver what 
it is trying to achieve? 
This measures: 
•  Capacity 
•  Performance management  
 

                                            
1 CPA – the harder test framework for 2006 
2 Assessment of local services beyond 2008 – Corporate Discussion Paper August 2006, Audit Commission 

94



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
10 

Question 3: What has been achieved? 
This measures achievement in terms of the shared priorities: 
•  Sustainable communities and transport 
•  Safer and stronger communities 
•  Healthier communities 
•  Older people 
•  Children and young people 
 
Self-Assessment 
The key component of the corporate assessment is the submission, prior to the actual on site 
inspection period of a self-assessment of the council’s performance.  The self-assessment is 
the principal reference point for the corporate assessment and helps to inform judgements 
made by inspectors and the decision made about the scope and focus of the inspection team’s 
onsite work.  It is evidence of the council’s self-awareness and needs to demonstrate a clear 
understanding of the challenges and opportunities faced by the council and a realistic 
evaluation of our strengths and weaknesses.  The self-assessment should present a valid and 
balanced picture of our performance. 
 
The self-assessment is divided into two sections: 
Context and summary – outlining the general background of the authority, the challenges and 
opportunities it faces and the impact of these.  This section sets the scene providing information 
about the locality and the council’s structures and financial resources.  The corporate 
assessment now requires council to demonstrate its community leadership, the diversity of the 
community and how it focuses on the needs of the user.  This section of the self-assessment 
should demonstrate how well the council understands its community and how well this 
understanding underpins the decisions and choices made.  Information on the locality can 
include: 
•  Economic and business opportunities 
•  Major initiative, projects or pilots 
•  Key features of the communities – demography, deprivation 
 
Contextual information about the council can include: 
•  Information about decision-making structures 
•  Key partnerships 
•  Arrangements for consulting and engaging with residents/undertaking research 
•  Financial resources 
•  Areas of work which are not part of local or shared priorities but are nonetheless important to 

understanding the borough 
 
Corporate assessment – which should evaluate the performance of the council under the 
headline questions above.  It should ‘tell the story’ of the borough, demonstrating how we 
understand the locality as outlined in the context section and how this is translated into 
ambitions and priorities for the community and how the capacity of the council is being 
developed to turn these ambitions and priorities into real outcomes and achievements.  It should 
identify both strong performance and areas for improvement under each theme. 
 
The achievement theme needs to demonstrate how well the council balances local needs with 
national policy objectives.  In the achievements section, the self-assessment should show how 
and why priorities have been chosen and the rationale for how resources and activities are 
targeted. 
 

95



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
11 

APPENDIX ONE 
 
SCOPE FOR THE CORPORATE ASSESSMENT CHALLENGE PANEL 
 
1 SUBJECT Corporate Assessment 

 
2 COMMITTEE 

 
Overview and Scrutiny committee 
 

3 REVIEW GROUP Councillor Brian Gate – Chairman 
Councillor Jean Lammiman 
Councillor Margaret Davine 
Councillor Mitzi Green 
Councillor Richard Romain 
Councillor Mark Versallion 
 

4 AIMS/ OBJECTIVES/ 
OUTCOMES 
 

•  To challenge the integrity of the council’s self assessment for 
corporate assessment and ensure the most robust case for 
the council’s performance has been made 

•  To challenge the evidence base upon which the self-
assessment is based and to make sure good practice has 
been captured. 

 
5 MEASURES OF 

SUCCESS OF 
REVIEW 

•  Panel provides robust challenge to the self assessment 
•  Scrutiny input into the final self assessment document agreed 

6 SCOPE The panel will consider the council’s self-assessment under the 
key lines of enquiry of the corporate assessment: 
Context within which the council operates 
What is the council together with its partners trying to achieve? 
•  Ambition  
•  Prioritisation  
What is the capacity of the council, including its work with 
partners, to deliver what it is trying to achieve 
•  Capacity  
•  Performance management  
What has been achieved 
•  Sustainable communities and transport 
•  Safer and stronger communities 
•  Healthier communities 
•  Older people 
•  Children and young people 
 

96



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
12 

 
7 SERVICE 

PRIORITIES 
(Corporate/Dept) 

Making Harrow safe, sound and supportive 
Getting Harrow moving 
Protecting our environment 
Tackling waste and giving real value for money 
Harrow youth 
Sports, leisure and amenities 

8 REVIEW SPONSOR 
 

Acting Chief Executive 

9 ACCOUNTABLE 
MANAGER 
 

Corporate Assessment/Joint Area Review Board 
 

10 SUPPORT OFFICER Service Manager Scrutiny  
 

11 ADMINISTRATIVE 
SUPPORT 

Scrutiny Review Administrator 

12 EXTERNAL INPUT Borough Commander, Metropolitan Police Service 
Chief Executive, Primary Care Trust 
Chief Executive, Harrow Association of Voluntary Service 
 

13 METHODOLOGY Preparatory meeting  
•  To consider draft self assessment and identify key questions 
Panel meeting  
•  To receive presentation from officers 
•  To put key questions to officers under each of the key lines of 

enquiry and to ensure that the self assessment addresses: 
•  Community leadership 
•  Diversity 
•  User focus 
•  Value for money  
•  Partnership 

Panel report 
 

14 EQUALITY 
IMPLICATIONS 

Diversity and User focus are key components of the framework 
against which the council’s performance will be measured.  It is 
critical therefore that the self assessment addresses this 
effectively and that the panel highlights this in its investigation 

15 ASSUMPTIONS/ 
CONSTRAINTS 

The completed self assessment must be submitted to the Audit 
Commission by 16th October 2006.  Therefore the panel’s 
deliberations must be available for incorporation in accordance 
with this timetable. 

16 SECTION 17 
IMPLICATIONS 

The extent to which the council addresses section 17 of Crime 
and Disorder Act 1998 is one of the key lines of enquiry within the 
‘Safer and Stronger Communities’ achievement block.  This is 
being addressed by a challenge panel by the Safer and Stronger 
Communities scrutiny sub committee. 

97



__________________________________________________________________ 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel 

 
13 

 
17 TIMESCALE   Panel to meet on 7th September 2006 

Draft report to panel by 22nd September 2006 
Report to Corporate Assessment/Joint Area Review Board by 29th 
September 2006 
Self assessment submitted to the Audit Commission by 16th 
October 2006 

18 RESOURCE 
COMMIMTENTS 

See attached 

19 REPORT AUTHOR Panel members 
Lynne McAdam 
 

20 REPORTING 
ARRANGEMENTS 

Outline of formal reporting process: 
To CA/JAR Board   [√] By 29th September 
To Portfolio Holder  [  ] When………………….. 
To CMT   [  ] When………………….. 
To Cabinet   [  ] When………………….. 
To O&S committee  [√] 10th October 2006 
 

 FOLLOW UP 
ARRANGEMENTS 
(proposals) 

Corporate Assessment report to Overview and Scrutiny 
committee March 2007 

 

98



Scopev2 

 
 
Meeting:  Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 10th October 2006 
Subject: Scopes for Scrutiny Reviews 
Responsible Officer: Director People, Performance and Policy 
Contact Officer: Lynne McAdam 
Portfolio Holder: Business Development 
Key Decision: No 
Status: Public 
 
 
Section 1: Summary 
 
This report introduces scopes for the summer/autumn scrutiny reviews which have been agreed 
as part of the Overview and Scrutiny committee’s work programme for 2006 – 10.  It also 
identifies some of the methodological changes that have been introduced since the election in 
May 2006.  A full evaluation of these new methodologies will be reported to the January 
meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny committee. 
 
Decision Required 
  
Councillors are asked to: 
•  Agree the scopes for each of the following reviews: 

o Standing Scrutiny Review of NHS Finances (Overview and Scrutiny) 
o Budget Challenge Panel 
o Investor In People Challenge Panel 

•  Note the scope for the Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel which was undertaken in 
September 2006. 

 
 
Reason for report 
 
A number of items were agreed as part of the Overview and Scrutiny committee work 
programme at its last meeting in July.  These items were agreed in accordance with the 
Scrutiny Principles and Protocols (agreed September 2005).  In order for these projects to be 
undertaken, existing procedures state that the commissioning committee (in this case O&S) 
should agree the scope and methodology.   
 
Benefits 
 
Committee consideration and agreement of the scope and methodology of the agreed projects 
ensures that there is accountability in the delivery of the committee’s work programme 

Agenda Item 17
Pages 99 to 122

99



Scopev2 

 
Cost of Proposals  
 
Costs of delivering these projects will be met from within the existing scrutiny budget. 
 

 
Risks 
 
The scopes contain proposals with regard to the methodology for delivering each piece of 
work.  A number of new ways of working have been introduced and there may be unidentified 
problems in assigning particular methodologies to particular projects.  An appraisal of the 
effectiveness of the new methodologies will be included in both the final report from each 
project and in the overall evaluation report scheduled to be presented to Overview and 
Scrutiny committee in January 2007. 
 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
Not agreeing the scopes for the items included in the Overview and Scrutiny work programme 
projects may mean that either these projects are delayed or that accountability for their delivery 
is undermined 
 
Section 2: Report 
 
Brief History 
At its meeting in July, the Overview and Scrutiny committee gave initial consideration to the 
2006 – 10 work programme and identified a range of early projects that could be undertaken 
during the summer/autumn period of 2006.  The projects identified were: 
•  Corporate Assessment, self assessment challenge panel  
•  Standing review of NHS finances 
•  Budget challenge panel 
•  Investor in People challenge panel 
 
Scrutiny procedures direct that each piece of work commissioned by a scrutiny (sub) committee 
should have its scope and methodology agreed by the commissioning body in order to secure 
accountability. 
 
Because this is a new administration, it was agreed that each (sub) committee would try to carry 
out at least one project over the summer recess in order to familiarise new councillors with 
scrutiny processes.  For the Overview and Scrutiny committee this piece of work was the 
Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel, which took place on 7th September.  The scope for this 
review was agreed by the chairman of the committee and is attached for information as 
Appendix Four.  The scopes for the other projects are attached as follows: 
•  Standing review of NHS finances Appendix One 
•  Budget challenge panel   Appendix Two 
•  Investor in People challenge panel Appendix Three 
 

100



Scopev2 

Options considered 
Not appropriate to this report. 
 
Consultation 
Not appropriate to this report. 
 
Financial Implications 
The scrutiny budget for 2006/07 is £340,400 which is made up of £282,090 for salaries and 
£58,310 for projects and other expenditure.  These projects will be delivered within this 
provision. 
 
Legal Implications 
There are no legal implications associated with this report 
 
Equalities Impact 
The report introduces scopes for scrutiny reports which have been drawn up with an eye to the 
council’s performance.  Both the Investor in People and the Standing Scrutiny Review of NHS 
Finances can contribute to the council equalities performance both as an employer and 
thorough its work to challenge the financial performance of local health providers. 
 
Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Considerations 
There are none specific to this report. 
 
Section 3: Supporting Information/ Background Documents 
 
Appendices 
Appendix One: Standing review of NHS finances 
Appendix Two: Budget challenge panel 
Appendix Three: Investor in People challenge panel 
Appendix Four: Corporate Assessment, self assessment challenge panel 

101



Scopev2 

Appendix One: Standing review of NHS finances 
 
STANDING SCRUTINY REVIEW OF NHS FINANCES - DRAFT SCOPE 
 
1 SUBJECT Review of the financial recovery proposals of NW London NHS Trust 

and Harrow PCT, the strategic consequences and the impact on 
Harrow residents 
 

2 COMMITTEE 
 

Overview and Scrutiny committee 
 

3 REVIEW GROUP Councillor Myra Michael - Chairman 
Councillor Margaret Davine – Vice Chairman 
Councillor Jean Lammiman, Chairman Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee 
Councillor Chris Noyce 
Councillor Rekha Shah 
Councillor Stanley Sheinwald 
 

4 AIMS/ OBJECTIVES/ 
OUTCOMES 

The Standing Scrutiny Review of NHS Financial Performance will 
consider the financial performance and consequent strategic direction 
of the Harrow PCT and NW London Hospitals Trust and investigate the 
impact of the financial deficits and related recovery plans on the quality 
of life and well being of Harrow residents by:  
•  reviewing the effectiveness of respective financial recovery plans;  
•  receiving regular financial updates from the respective Chief 

Executives on the delivery of these plans;  
•  considering strategic proposals of the trusts 
•  gathering evidence of the specific experiences of local people; and 
•  investigating the impact of financial difficulties at the interface 

between health and social care 
 
The Standing Review will support local health providers to return to 
financial balance. 
 
The Standing Review will report its proceedings to the Overview and 
Scrutiny Committee 
 

5 MEASURES OF 
SUCCESS OF 
REVIEW 

•  Comments from review endorsed by health providers 
•  Impact of financial deficit minimised 
•  Indicators suggest Trusts returning to balance 
 

6 SCOPE •  Analysis of the trusts’ financial position 
•  Challenge of the proposed recovery plans – how robust are they?  

Have the real source(s) of financial difficulty been identified and 
effective solutions identified? 

•  Investigation of the strategic proposals resulting from the financial 
position.  Are they viable?  Will they deliver the sustainable financial 
savings needed? 

•  Investigation of the impact of the recovery plans and associated 
strategic proposals on the well-being of local residents. 

 
7 SERVICE PRIORITIES 

(Corporate/Dept) 
Making Harrow safe, sound and supportive 
Tackling waste and giving real value for money 
 

8 REVIEW SPONSOR 
 

Acting Chief Executive 

102



Scopev2 

 
9 ACCOUNTABLE 

MANAGER 
 

Chief Executive Harrow PCT 
Chief Executive NW London Hospitals NHS Trust 
 

10 SUPPORT OFFICER Service Manager Scrutiny 
 

11 ADMINISTRATIVE 
SUPPORT 

Scrutiny review administrator 

12 EXTERNAL INPUT Review group members to include: 
•  CfPS expert advisor 
•  Community experts 
•  Expert patients/PPI 
•  Group Manager People First Finance 
•  Director Community Care 
•  Director Children’s Services 
 
Advisors 
•  Health Care Commission 
 
Witnesses to include: 
•  Chief Executives and financial directors – NW London Hospital NHS 

Trust, Harrow PCT 
•  Director of Recovery 
•  NHS auditors 
•  Other NHS Trusts 
•  Other boroughs dealing with NHS deficits 
 

13 METHODOLOGY Background to Health Service financial systems and policy framework – 
desk top research and expert briefings 
 
Written and oral evidence of  
•  NHS policy and financial framework 
•  Financial situation 
•  Recovery plan and health impact assessment 
•  Methodology for development of recovery plan 
•  Strategic proposals – NWP and CMH hospital reconfiguration 
 
Challenge of evidence presented: 
•  Robustness of recovery plan 
•  Alternative approaches to restoring financial balance 
•  Comparison with other health providers. 
•  Expert witnesses – auditors opinion of recovery plan.  
Regular monitoring and update of financial information 
 
Case studies: 
Impact of recovery proposals and resultant reconfigurations on quality 
of life of local residents – care pathway analysis – separate specific 
scopes to be provided. 
•  NW London Hospitals Trust reconfiguration 
•  School Nursing 
•  Domiciliary Care 

103



Scopev2 

 
14 EQUALITY 

IMPLICATIONS 
Changes in the availability of health service may have a 
disproportionate impact upon the health and well being of the more 
vulnerable, elderly, less mobile members of the community or those 
whose first language is not English 

15 ASSUMPTIONS/ 
CONSTRAINTS 

Availability of expert advice to the review group 

16 SECTION 17 
IMPLICATIONS 

None 

17 TIMESCALE   18 months – 2 years 
18 RESOURCE 

COMMIMTENTS 
See attached 
 

19 REPORT AUTHOR Review group members 
Service Manager Scrutiny 

20 REPORTING 
ARRANGEMENTS 

Outline of formal reporting process: 
To accountable managers [  ] When January 2007 
To O&S   [  ] When  
Interim report    [√] When March 2007 
Quarterly updates  [√] When  from March 2007 
Final report   [√] When March 2008 (approx) 
To Portfolio Holder  [  ] When  
To CMT   [√] When June 2008 
To Cabinet   [√] When June 2008 
 

21 FOLLOW UP 
ARRANGEMENTS 
(proposals) 

Regular reports to O&S 

104



Sc
op

ev
2 

O
U

TL
IN

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

PL
A

N
 

  
A

ct
iv

ity
 

 
M

em
be

r I
np

ut
 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

O
ffi

ce
r R

es
ou

rc
e 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 

Pe
rs

on
  

Pr
e-

sc
op

e 
se

ss
io

n 
 

C
ha

irm
an

, V
ic

e 
C

ha
irm

an
, 

C
ha

irm
an

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

0.
25

 x
 3

 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

5 

 
27

th
 J

ul
y 

20
06

 
C

ha
irm

an
 

SM
S 

Fi
na

lis
e 

sc
op

e 
& 

ob
ta

in
 O

&S
/S

ub
-C

om
m

itt
ee

 
en

do
rs

em
en

t 
 

R
ev

ie
w

 g
ro

up
 m

em
be

rs
 

0.
25

 x
 6

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

0.
5 

D
ire

ct
or

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
ar

e 
G

ro
up

 M
an

ag
er

 
Pe

op
le

 F
irs

t 
Fi

na
nc

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 e

xp
er

ts
 

x 
4 

0.
25

 x
 7

 

Se
pt

em
be

r
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
06

 

C
ha

irm
an

 
SM

S 

R
es

ea
rc

h/
Pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
Pe

rio
d/

D
es

k 
to

p 
da

ta
 

ga
th

er
in

g 
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

5 

D
ire

ct
or

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
ar

e 
G

ro
up

 M
an

ag
er

 
Pe

op
le

 F
irs

t 
Fi

na
nc

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

0.
5 

x 
3 

Au
gu

st
/ 

Se
pt

em
be

r  
20

06
 

SM
S 

M
ee

tin
gs

/W
itn

es
se

s/
 V

is
its

 (s
pe

ci
fy

) 
  

12
 m

ee
tin

gs
 (e

st
im

at
e)

 
0.

5 
x 

6 
(x

12
) 

 
pl

us
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
–0

.2
5 

x 
6 

(x
12

) 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

5 
x 

12
 

pl
us

 p
re

pa
ra

tio
n 

–
0.

25
 x

 1
2 

D
ire

ct
or

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
ar

e 
G

ro
up

 M
an

ag
er

 
Pe

op
le

 F
irs

t 
Fi

na
nc

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 e

xp
er

ts
 

x 
4 

Ad
vi

so
rs

   

Fr
om

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
06

 

C
ha

irm
an

, 
Vi

ce
 

C
ha

irm
an

,
SM

S 
 

105



Sc
op

ev
2 

A
ct

iv
ity

 
 

M
em

be
r I

np
ut

 
W

ho
 is

 in
vo

lv
ed

? 
Es

tim
at

ed
 ti

m
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

 

O
ffi

ce
r R

es
ou

rc
e 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 

Pe
rs

on
  

0.
5 

x 
12

 x
 7

 
pl

us
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

n 
–

0.
25

 x
 1

2 
x 

7 
  

C
ol

la
tio

n 
& 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 d
at

a/
ev

id
en

ce
  

 
R

ev
ie

w
 g

ro
up

 m
em

be
rs

 
0.

5 
x 

6 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

0.
5 

D
ire

ct
or

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
ar

e 
G

ro
up

 M
an

ag
er

 
Pe

op
le

 F
irs

t 
Fi

na
nc

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 e

xp
er

ts
 

x 
4 

Ad
vi

so
rs

 
0.

5 
x 

7 

O
ng

oi
ng

 
bu

t b
y 

D
ec

em
be

r 
20

07
 

(a
pp

ro
x)

 fo
r 

fin
al

 re
po

rt 

C
ha

irm
an

, 
Vi

ce
 

ch
ai

rm
an

, 
SM

S 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
 d

et
er

m
in

es
 th

ru
st

 o
f r

ep
or

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

 
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
2 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

08
 

SM
S 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
 a

gr
ee

s 
ea

rly
 d

ra
ft 

of
 re

po
rt 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 g

ro
up

 m
em

be
rs

 
0.

5 
x 

6 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

 
0.

5 

D
ire

ct
or

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
ar

e 
G

ro
up

 M
an

ag
er

 
Pe

op
le

 F
irs

t 
Fi

na
nc

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 e

xp
er

ts
 

x 
4 

Ad
vi

so
rs

 
0.

5 
x 

7 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
08

 
C

ha
irm

an
, 

Vi
ce

 
ch

ai
rm

an
, 

SM
S 

Ea
rly

 d
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

le
 m

an
ag

er
 fo

r 
co

nf
irm

at
io

n 
of

 fa
ct

ua
l a

cc
ur

ac
y 

 

C
ha

irm
an

, V
ic

e 
C

ha
irm

an
 

0.
25

 x
 2

  
Se

rv
ic

e 
m

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

0.
25

 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

PC
T 

 

Ja
nu

ar
y 

20
08

 
C

ha
irm

an
, 

Vi
ce

 
C

ha
irm

an
 

106



Sc
op

ev
2 

A
ct

iv
ity

 
 

M
em

be
r I

np
ut

 
W

ho
 is

 in
vo

lv
ed

? 
Es

tim
at

ed
 ti

m
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

 

O
ffi

ce
r R

es
ou

rc
e 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 

Pe
rs

on
  

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

N
W

 L
on

do
n 

H
os

pi
ta

l N
H

S 
tru

st
 

 

SM
S 

R
ev

ie
w

 
G

ro
up

’s
 

in
fo

rm
al

 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
of

 
re

po
rt 

w
ith

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

/D
ire

ct
or

 (o
r N

H
S 

bo
dy

 if
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
) 

  

 
 

 
 

 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
 s

ig
n 

of
f r

ep
or

t &
 re

fe
r t

o 
O

&S
/S

ub
-C

om
m

itt
ee

 fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n/

ap
pr

ov
al

R
ev

ie
w

 g
ro

up
 m

em
be

rs
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
D

ire
ct

or
 C

om
m

un
ity

 
C

ar
e 

G
ro

up
 M

an
ag

er
 

Pe
op

le
 F

irs
t 

Fi
na

nc
e 

D
ire

ct
or

 C
hi

ld
re

n’
s 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 e
xp

er
ts

 
x 

4 
Ad

vi
so

rs
 

Fe
br

ua
ry

 
20

08
 

(a
pp

ro
x)

 

C
ha

irm
an

, 
Vi

ce
 

ch
ai

rm
an

, 
SM

S 

R
ev

ie
w

 
G

ro
up

’s
 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

re
po

rt 
to

 
C

M
T/

D
M

T 
 (i

f a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

) 
 

C
ha

irm
an

, V
ic

e 
ch

ai
rm

an
 

0.
25

 x
 2

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

0.
25

 

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
08

 
C

ha
irm

an
 

Vi
ce

 
C

ha
irm

an
 

SM
S 

Fi
na

l r
ep

or
t t

o 
ac

co
un

ta
bl

e 
m

an
ge

r 
 

 
 

 
 

Fi
na

l r
ep

or
t o

f G
ro

up
 to

 O
&S

/S
ub

-C
om

m
itt

ee
 

fo
r a

pp
ro

va
l (

if 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y)

  
 

C
ha

irm
an

, V
ic

e 
ch

ai
rm

an
 

0.
25

 x
 2

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

 
0.

25
 

 
M

ar
ch

 
20

08
 

(a
pp

ro
x)

 

C
ha

irm
an

, 
Vi

ce
 

ch
ai

rm
an

 
Fi

na
l 

re
po

rt 
to

 C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 H

ar
ro

w
 

PC
T 

an
d 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

of
 N

W
 L

on
do

n 
H

os
pi

ta
ls

 N
H

S 
Tr

us
t a

nd
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
 b

oa
rd

s 

C
ha

irm
an

, V
ic

e 
C

ha
irm

an
 

0.
25

 x
 2

 
 

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
8 

(a
pp

ro
x)

 
C

ha
irm

an
, 

Vi
ce

 
ch

ai
rm

an
 

Fi
na

l r
ep

or
t t

o 
C

M
T/

C
ab

in
et

 
C

ha
irm

an
, V

ic
e 

ch
ai

rm
an

 
0.

25
 x

 2
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
 

0.
25

 

 
Ap

ril
 2

00
8 

(a
pp

ro
x)

 
C

ha
irm

an
, 

Vi
ce

 
ch

ai
rm

an
 

C
on

si
de

r i
f t

he
re

 is
 a

 n
ee

d 
to

 p
ub

lic
is

e 
re

po
rt 

fin
di

ng
s 

 
 

 
 

 

107



Sc
op

ev
2 

A
ct

iv
ity

 
 

M
em

be
r I

np
ut

 
W

ho
 is

 in
vo

lv
ed

? 
Es

tim
at

ed
 ti

m
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

 

O
ffi

ce
r R

es
ou

rc
e 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 

Pe
rs

on
  

Fi
na

l r
ep

or
t p

ub
lis

he
d 

& 
re

fe
rre

d 
to

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
fo

r 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n*

 
(C

ab
in

et
/P

or
tfo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r/D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
– 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 i
ss

ue
s/

 
re

co
m

m
en

da
tio

ns
) 

    * f
or

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

   

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 
0.

25
 

 
Ap

ril
/M

ay
 

20
08

 
(a

pp
ro

x)
 

SM
S 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 re
vi

ew
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

 
R

ev
ie

w
 g

ro
up

 m
em

be
rs

 
0.

25
 x

 6
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

5 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

PC
T 

C
hi

ef
 E

xe
cu

tiv
e 

N
W

 L
on

do
n 

H
os

p 
Tr

us
t 

D
ire

ct
or

 C
om

m
un

ity
 

C
ar

e 
G

ro
up

 M
an

ag
er

 
Pe

op
le

 F
irs

t 
Fi

na
nc

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 e

xp
er

ts
 

x 
4 

Ad
vi

so
rs

 
0.

25
 x

 7
 

M
ay

 2
00

8 
SM

S 

Fo
llo

w
 u

p/
M

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 o

ut
co

m
es

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

TO
TA

LS
 

56
.2

5 
da

ys
 (a

ve
ra

ge
 9

.3
75

 
da

ys
 p

er
 c

ou
nc

ill
or

) 
19

.7
5 

da
ys

 
75

 d
ay

s 
(a

ve
ra

ge
 

10
.7

5 
pe

r p
er

so
n)

 
 

 

  C
on

ta
ct

 : 
Ly

nn
e 

M
cA

da
m

. S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 S
cr

ut
in

y,
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

U
ni

t, 
H

ar
ro

w
 C

ou
nc

il 

108



Scopev2 

Appendix Two: Budget challenge panel 
 
BUDGET CHALLENGE PANEL - DRAFT SCOPE 
 
1 SUBJECT Budget 

 
2 COMMITTEE 

 
Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 

3 REVIEW GROUP To be confirmed 
 

4 AIMS/ OBJECTIVES/ 
OUTCOMES 

To challenge the assumptions behind the budget setting process and 
analyse the impact of changes in the budget  
 

5 MEASURES OF 
SUCCESS OF 
REVIEW 

Scrutiny panel able to input into the budget setting process 

6 SCOPE •  Analysis of context within which the budget is being set – including 
policy drivers 

•  Analysis of service finances 
•  Investigation of particular areas of concern 

7 SERVICE PRIORITIES 
(Corporate/Dept) 

Tackling waste and giving real value for money 

8 REVIEW SPONSOR 
 

Director People, Performance and Policy 

9 ACCOUNTABLE 
MANAGER 
 

Director of Finance and Business Strategy 
 

10 SUPPORT OFFICER Service Manager Scrutiny  
 

11 ADMINISTRATIVE 
SUPPORT 

Scrutiny Review Administrator  

12 EXTERNAL INPUT External Auditor 
The committee might like to consider the involvement of the Open 
Budget Group and the cross cutting portfolio holders 

13 METHODOLOGY Pre panel meeting  
To receive:  
•  Contextual information regarding the budget including key policy 

drivers 
•  Analysis of service finance performance  

o What are the priorities 
o What are the ‘hot spots’ 
o How are ‘hot spots’ being addressed 
o What are the risks in the budget 
o How are these being addressed 
o Impact of previous year’s budget decisions 
o How does service measure value for money and how does it 

compare. 
•  Development of specific lines of enquiry for the panel meeting 
Panel meeting  
•  Information from auditor re use of resources judgement 
•  Presentation from Director of Finance and Business Strategy re 

context and key policy drivers 
•  Investigation of specific lines of enquiry 
Post panel meeting  
•  To consider evidence and formulate initial findings 
 

109



Scopev2 

 
14 EQUALITY 

IMPLICATIONS 
The panel should consider the impact that the budget has on equalities 
in its considerations  

15 ASSUMPTIONS/ 
CONSTRAINTS 

 

16 SECTION 17 
IMPLICATIONS 

The panel should consider the impact that the budget has on section 17 
responsibilities in its considerations 

17 TIMESCALE   October/November 2006 
18 RESOURCE 

COMMIMTENTS 
See attached 

19 REPORT AUTHOR Panel members 
Service Manager Scrutiny  
 

20 REPORTING 
ARRANGEMENTS 

Outline of formal reporting process: 
To Service Director  [√] When November 2006 
To Portfolio Holder  [  ] When………………….. 
To CMT   [√] When December 2006 
To Cabinet   [√] When January 2007 
  

21 FOLLOW UP 
ARRANGEMENTS 
(proposals) 

Annual event 

110



Sc
op

ev
2 

O
U

TL
IN

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

PL
A

N
  

 
 

 
A

ct
iv

ity
 

 
M

em
be

r I
np

ut
 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

O
ffi

ce
r R

es
ou

rc
e 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 

Pe
rs

on
  

Pr
e-

sc
op

e 
se

ss
io

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Fi
na

lis
e 

sc
op

e 
& 

ob
ta

in
 O

&S
/S

ub
-C

om
m

itt
ee

 
en

do
rs

em
en

t 
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

C
om

m
itt

ee
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

25
 

D
ire

ct
or

 F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 S

tra
te

gy
  

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

06
 

C
ha

irm
an

 
SM

S 

R
es

ea
rc

h/
Pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
Pe

rio
d/

D
es

k 
to

p 
da

ta
 

ga
th

er
in

g 
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

5 

D
ire

ct
or

 F
in

an
ce

 a
nd

 
Bu

si
ne

ss
 S

tra
te

gy
 

Se
pt

em
be

r/ 
O

ct
ob

er
 

20
06

 

SM
S 

M
ee

tin
gs

/W
itn

es
se

s/
 V

is
its

 (s
pe

ci
fy

) 
  

Pr
ep

ar
at

io
n 

m
ee

tin
g 

Pa
ne

l m
em

be
rs

  
0.

5 
x 

 
Pa

ne
l m

ee
tin

g 
Pa

ne
l m

em
be

rs
  

0.
5 

x 
 

Po
st

 p
an

el
 m

ee
tin

g 
Pa

ne
l m

em
be

rs
  

0.
5 

x 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
 

1.
5 

Pa
ne

l m
ee

tin
g 

• 
D

ire
ct

or
 F

in
an

ce
 

an
d 

Bu
si

ne
ss

 
St

ra
te

gy
 

 
0.

5 
• 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
D

ire
ct

or
s 

 
0.

5 
• 

D
ire

ct
or

s 
 

0.
5 

O
ct

ob
er

/ 
N

ov
em

b
er

 2
00

6 

C
ha

irm
an

 
SM

S 

C
ol

la
tio

n 
& 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 d
at

a/
ev

id
en

ce
  

 
Pa

ne
l m

em
be

rs
 

0.
5 

x 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

0.
5 

 
N

ov
em

b
er

 2
00

6 
SM

S 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
 d

et
er

m
in

es
 th

ru
st

 o
f r

ep
or

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

 
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
2 

 
N

ov
em

b
er

 2
00

6 
SM

S 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
 a

gr
ee

s 
ea

rly
 d

ra
ft 

of
 re

po
rt 

 
Pa

ne
l m

em
be

rs
  

0.
25

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

0.
25

 
  

 
 

C
ha

irm
an

 
SM

S 

111



Sc
op

ev
2 

A
ct

iv
ity

 
 

M
em

be
r I

np
ut

 
W

ho
 is

 in
vo

lv
ed

? 
Es

tim
at

ed
 ti

m
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

 

O
ffi

ce
r R

es
ou

rc
e 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 

Pe
rs

on
  

Ea
rly

 d
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

le
 m

an
ag

er
 fo

r 
co

nf
irm

at
io

n 
of

 fa
ct

ua
l a

cc
ur

ac
y 

 

C
ha

irm
an

 
0.

25
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

25
 

 
N

ov
em

b
er

 2
00

6 
SM

S 

R
ev

ie
w

 
G

ro
up

’s
 

in
fo

rm
al

 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
of

 
re

po
rt 

w
ith

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

/D
ire

ct
or

 (o
r N

H
S 

bo
dy

 if
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
) 

 

 
 

 
 

 

R
ev

ie
w

 
G

ro
up

 
si

gn
 

of
f 

re
po

rt 
& 

re
fe

r 
to

 
O

&S
/S

ub
-C

om
m

itt
ee

 fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n/

ap
pr

ov
al

 

 
 

 
 

 

R
ev

ie
w

 
G

ro
up

’s
 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

re
po

rt 
to

 
C

M
T/

D
M

T 
 (i

f a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

) 
 

C
ha

irm
an

 
0.

25
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

25
 

 
D

ec
em

b
er

 2
00

6 
C

ha
irm

an
 

SM
S 

Fi
na

l r
ep

or
t o

f G
ro

up
 to

 O
&S

/S
ub

-C
om

m
itt

ee
 

fo
r a

pp
ro

va
l (

if 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y)

  
 

C
ha

irm
an

 
0.

25
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

25
 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

07
 

C
ha

irm
an

 
SM

S 

C
on

si
de

r i
f t

he
re

 is
 a

 n
ee

d 
to

 p
ub

lic
is

e 
re

po
rt 

fin
di

ng
s 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Fi
na

l r
ep

or
t p

ub
lis

he
d 

& 
re

fe
rre

d 
to

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
fo

r 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

(C
ab

in
et

/P
or

tfo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r/D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

– 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 i

ss
ue

s/
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

) 
 

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 
0.

25
 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

07
 

SM
S 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 re
vi

ew
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

 
Pa

ne
l m

em
be

rs
 

0.
25

 x
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

5 

Al
l o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

tte
nd

in
g 

pa
ne

l 
0.

25
 x

  
 

Ea
rly

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

an
d 

as
 

pa
rt 

of
 

ev
al

ua
ti

on
 w

or
k 

sh
op

 in
 

N
ov

em
b

er
 

  

SM
S 

 
Se

ni
or

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 

112



Sc
op

ev
2 

A
ct

iv
ity

 
 

M
em

be
r I

np
ut

 
W

ho
 is

 in
vo

lv
ed

? 
Es

tim
at

ed
 ti

m
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

 

O
ffi

ce
r R

es
ou

rc
e 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 

Pe
rs

on
  

Fo
llo

w
 u

p/
M

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 o

ut
co

m
es

  
 

 
 

 
An

nu
al

 
ev

en
t 

 

TO
TA

LS
 

TB
A

 –
 d

ep
en

de
nt

 u
po

n 
nu

m
be

r o
f c

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
11

 d
ay

s 
TB

A
 a

dv
is

ed
 

de
pe

nd
en

t u
po

n 
nu

m
be

r o
f o

ffi
ce

rs
 

 
 

  C
on

ta
ct

 : 
Ly

nn
e 

M
cA

da
m

, S
cr

ut
in

y 
U

ni
t, 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

  

113



Scopev2 

Appendix Three: Investor in People challenge panel 
 
CHALLENGE PANEL INVESTORS IN PEOPLE - DRAFT SCOPE 
 
1 0 Corporate Investors in People Standard 

 
2 COMMITTEE 

 
Overview and Scrutiny committee 
 

3 REVIEW GROUP TBA 
 

4 AIMS/ OBJECTIVES/ 
OUTCOMES 

To ensure that the action plans for the delivery of corporate IIP 
accreditation are robust and that they are being effectively delivered 
 

5 MEASURES OF 
SUCCESS OF 
REVIEW 

Scrutiny panel able to contribute to successful corporate IIP 
accreditation 

6 SCOPE Consideration of the efficacy of each service area’s action plans for 
securing corporate IIP accreditation and the progress being made on 
each of these 
 

7 SERVICE PRIORITIES 
(Corporate/Dept) 

Tackling waste and giving real value for money 

8 REVIEW SPONSOR 
 

Chief Executive 

9 ACCOUNTABLE 
MANAGER 
 

Senior Professional Work Development 
 

10 SUPPORT OFFICER Service Manager Scrutiny  
 

11 ADMINISTRATIVE 
SUPPORT 

Scrutiny Review Administrator  

12 EXTERNAL INPUT  
 

13 METHODOLOGY Pre-panel meeting 
•  Detail of the IIP standard 
•  The gaps/problems in the accreditation process in Harrow. 
•  How effectively action plans will enable the council to meet the 

criteria for accreditation 
•  Progress on implementing the action plan 
•  Specific areas for more in-depth investigation – director/portfolio 

holder to be advised 
•  Specific lines of enquiry to be pursued – director/portfolio holder to 

be advised 
•  Other witnesses to be asked to attend to pursue specific lines of 

enquiry (e.g. if there appears to be a particular problem, there may 
be experience elsewhere which might help resolve) 

 
Panel meeting 
•  Presentation from Senior Professional Work Development re action 

required to deliver council-wide accreditation 
•  Presentation from strategic leads on progress made on 

implementation of action plans 
•  Specific lines of enquiry 
 
Post panel meeting 
•  Consideration of evidence 
•  Development of conclusions/findings/recommendations 

114



Scopev2 

14 EQUALITY 
IMPLICATIONS 

The effective consideration of equalities issues is a core criteria for 
corporate IIP accreditation 

15 ASSUMPTIONS/ 
CONSTRAINTS 

None 

16 SECTION 17 
IMPLICATIONS 

N/A 

17 TIMESCALE   November/December 2006 
18 RESOURCE 

COMMIMTENTS 
See attached 

19 REPORT AUTHOR Lynne McAdam 
 

20 REPORTING 
ARRANGEMENTS 

Outline of formal reporting process: 
To Senor Professional Work Development 
    [√] When December/January 07 
To Service Director  [√] When December/January 07 
To O&S   [√] When January 07 
To Portfolio Holder  [  ] When………………….. 
To CMT   [√] When February 07 
To Cabinet   [√] When February 07 
 

21 FOLLOW UP 
ARRANGEMENTS 
(proposals) 

Report on progress towards corporate accreditation to future O&S 

115



Sc
op

ev
2 

O
U

TL
IN

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

PL
A

N
  

  
A

ct
iv

ity
 

 
M

em
be

r I
np

ut
 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

O
ffi

ce
r R

es
ou

rc
e 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 

Pe
rs

on
  

Pr
e-

sc
op

e 
se

ss
io

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Fi
na

lis
e 

sc
op

e 
& 

ob
ta

in
 O

&S
/S

ub
-C

om
m

itt
ee

 
en

do
rs

em
en

t 
 

O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

06
 

SM
S 

R
es

ea
rc

h/
Pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
Pe

rio
d/

D
es

k 
to

p 
da

ta
 

ga
th

er
in

g 
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

 
2 

 
Se

pt
em

be
r/ 

O
ct

ob
er

 
20

06
 

SM
S 

M
ee

tin
gs

/W
itn

es
se

s/
 V

is
its

 (s
pe

ci
fy

) 
  

Pl
an

ni
ng

 m
ee

tin
g 

0.
5 

x 
Pa

ne
l m

ee
tin

g 
0.

5 
x 

Po
st

 p
an

el
 m

ee
tin

g 
0.

5 
x 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
1.

5 

Se
ni

or
 

Pr
of

es
si

on
al

 
W

or
k 

D
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
0.

5 
Se

rv
ic

e 
Ar

ea
 

Le
ad

s 
0.

5 
x 

 

N
ov

em
be

r
/ D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

 

SM
S 

C
ol

la
tio

n 
& 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 d
at

a/
ev

id
en

ce
  

 
Pa

ne
l m

em
be

rs
 

0.
5 

x 
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

5 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

 
SM

S 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
 d

et
er

m
in

es
 th

ru
st

 o
f r

ep
or

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

 
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
2 

 
D

ec
em

be
r 

20
06

 
SM

S 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
 a

gr
ee

s 
ea

rly
 d

ra
ft 

of
 re

po
rt 

 
Pa

ne
l m

em
be

rs
  

0.
25

 x
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

25
 

 
D

ec
em

be
r

/ J
an

ua
ry

 
20

06
 

SM
S 

Ea
rly

 d
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

le
 m

an
ag

er
 fo

r 
co

nf
irm

at
io

n 
of

 fa
ct

ua
l a

cc
ur

ac
y 

 

C
ha

irm
an

 
0.

25
 

SM
S 

0.
25

 
 

D
ec

em
be

r
/ J

an
ua

ry
 

20
06

 

C
ha

irm
an

 
SM

S 
   

116



Sc
op

ev
2 

A
ct

iv
ity

 
 

M
em

be
r I

np
ut

 
W

ho
 is

 in
vo

lv
ed

? 
Es

tim
at

ed
 ti

m
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

 

O
ffi

ce
r R

es
ou

rc
e 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 

Pe
rs

on
  

R
ev

ie
w

 
G

ro
up

’s
 

in
fo

rm
al

 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
of

 
re

po
rt 

w
ith

 H
ea

d 
of

 S
er

vi
ce

/D
ire

ct
or

 (o
r N

H
S 

bo
dy

 if
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
) 

 

 
 

 
 

 

R
ev

ie
w

 
G

ro
up

 
si

gn
 

of
f 

re
po

rt 
& 

re
fe

r 
to

 
O

&S
/S

ub
-C

om
m

itt
ee

 fo
r i

nf
or

m
at

io
n/

ap
pr

ov
al

 

 
 

 
 

 

R
ev

ie
w

 
G

ro
up

’s
 

pr
es

en
ta

tio
n 

of
 

re
po

rt 
to

 
C

M
T/

D
M

T 
 (i

f a
pp

ro
pr

ia
te

) 
 

C
ha

irm
an

 
0.

25
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

25
 

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
06

 
C

ha
irm

an
 

SM
S 

Fi
na

l r
ep

or
t o

f G
ro

up
 to

 O
&S

/S
ub

-C
om

m
itt

ee
 

fo
r a

pp
ro

va
l (

if 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y)

  
 

C
ha

irm
an

 
0.

25
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

25
 

 
Ja

nu
ar

y 
20

06
 

C
ha

irm
an

 
SM

S 

C
on

si
de

r i
f t

he
re

 is
 a

 n
ee

d 
to

 p
ub

lic
is

e 
re

po
rt 

fin
di

ng
s 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Fi
na

l r
ep

or
t p

ub
lis

he
d 

& 
re

fe
rre

d 
to

 E
xe

cu
tiv

e 
fo

r 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n 

(C
ab

in
et

/P
or

tfo
lio

 
H

ol
de

r/D
ire

ct
or

at
e 

– 
de

pe
nd

in
g 

on
 i

ss
ue

s/
 

re
co

m
m

en
da

tio
ns

) 
 

C
ha

irm
an

 
0.

25
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

25
 

 
Fe

br
ua

ry
 

20
06

 
C

ha
irm

an
 

SM
S 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 re
vi

ew
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

 
Pa

ne
l m

em
be

rs
 

0.
25

 x
  

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

5 

Al
l o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 

pa
rtn

er
s 

at
te

nd
in

g 
pa

ne
l 

0.
25

 x
  

 

M
ar

ch
 

20
06

 
SM

S 
Se

ni
or

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 

Fo
llo

w
 u

p/
M

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 o

ut
co

m
es

  
 

R
ep

or
t t

o 
O

&S
 o

n 
fin

al
 o

ut
co

m
e 

 
 

 
 

TO
TA

LS
   

TB
A

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 u

po
n 

nu
m

be
r 

of
 c

ou
nc

ill
or

s 
7.

75
 d

ay
s 

TB
A

 d
ep

en
de

nt
 

up
on

 n
um

be
r o

f 
of

fic
er

s 

 
 

  C
on

ta
ct

 : 
Ly

nn
e 

M
cA

da
m

, S
cr

ut
in

y 
U

ni
t, 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il 

117



Scopev2 

Appendix Four: Corporate Assessment, self assessment challenge panel 
 
CORPORATE ASSESSMENT CHALLENGE PANEL - DRAFT SCOPE 
 
1 SUBJECT Corporate Assessment 

 
2 COMMITTEE 

 
Overview and Scrutiny committee 
 

3 REVIEW GROUP Councillor Brian Gate – Chairman 
Councillor Jean Lammiman 
Councillor Margaret Davine 
Councillor Mitzi Green 
Councillor Richard Romain 
Councillor Mark Versallion 
 

4 AIMS/ OBJECTIVES/ 
OUTCOMES 

•  To challenge the integrity of the council’s self assessment for 
corporate assessment and ensure the most robust case for the 
council’s performance has been made 

•  To challenge the evidence upon which the self-assessment is based 
and to make sure good practice has been captured. 

 
5 MEASURES OF 

SUCCESS OF 
REVIEW 

•  Panel provides robust challenge to the self assessment 
•  Scrutiny input into the final self assessment document agreed 

6 SCOPE The panel will consider the council’s self-assessment under the key 
lines of enquiry of the corporate assessment: 
Context within which the council operates 
What is the council together with its partners trying to achieve? 
•  Ambition  
•  Prioritisation  
What is the capacity of the council, including its work with partners, to 
deliver what it is trying to achieve 
•  Capacity  
•  Performance management  
What has been achieved 
•  Sustainable communities and transport 
•  Safer and stronger communities 
•  Healthier communities 
•  Older people 
•  Children and young people 
 

7 SERVICE PRIORITIES 
(Corporate/Dept) 

Making Harrow safe, sound and supportive 
Getting Harrow moving 
Protecting our environment 
Tackling waste and giving real value for money 
Harrow youth 
Sports, leisure and amenities 

8 REVIEW SPONSOR 
 

Acting Chief Executive 

9 ACCOUNTABLE 
MANAGER 
 

Corporate Assessment/Joint Area Review Board 
 

10 SUPPORT OFFICER Service Manager Scrutiny  
 

11 ADMINISTRATIVE 
SUPPORT 

Scrutiny Review Administrator 

118



Scopev2 

 
12 EXTERNAL INPUT Borough Commander, Metropolitan Police Service 

Chief Executive, Primary Care Trust 
Chief Executive, Harrow Association of Voluntary Service 
 

13 METHODOLOGY Preparatory meeting  
•  To consider draft self assessment and identify key questions 
Panel meeting  
•  To receive presentation from officers 
•  To put key questions to officers under each of the key lines of 

enquiry and to ensure that the self assessment addresses: 
•  Community leadership 
•  Diversity 
•  User focus 
•  Value for money  
•  Partnership 

Panel report 
 

14 EQUALITY 
IMPLICATIONS 

Diversity and User focus are key components of the framework against 
which the council’s performance will be measured.  It is critical therefore 
that the self assessment addresses this effectively and that the panel 
highlights this in its investigation 

15 ASSUMPTIONS/ 
CONSTRAINTS 

The completed self assessment must be submitted to the Audit 
Commission by 16th October 2006.  Therefore the panel’s deliberations 
must be available for incorporation in accordance with this timetable. 

16 SECTION 17 
IMPLICATIONS 

The extent to which the council addresses section 17 of Crime and 
Disorder Act 1998 is one of the key lines of enquiry within the ‘Safer 
and Stronger Communities’ achievement block.  This is being 
addressed through a challenge panel carried out by the Safer and 
Stronger Communities scrutiny sub committee. 

17 TIMESCALE   Panel to meet on 7th September 2006 
Draft report to panel by 22nd September 2006 
Report to Corporate Assessment/Joint Area Review Board by 29th 
September 2006 
Self assessment submitted to the Audit Commission by 16th October 
2006 

18 RESOURCE 
COMMIMTENTS 

See attached 

19 REPORT AUTHOR Panel members 
Lynne McAdam 
 

20 REPORTING 
ARRANGEMENTS 

Outline of formal reporting process: 
To CA/JAR Board   [√] By 29th September 
To Portfolio Holder  [  ] When………………….. 
To CMT   [  ] When………………….. 
To Cabinet   [  ] When………………….. 
To O&S committee  [√] 10th October 2006 
 

 FOLLOW UP 
ARRANGEMENTS 
(proposals) 

Corporate Assessment report to Overview and Scrutiny committee 
March 2007 

119



Sc
op

ev
2 

O
U

TL
IN

E 
PR

O
JE

C
T 

PL
A

N
 

  
A

ct
iv

ity
 

 
M

em
be

r I
np

ut
 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

O
ffi

ce
r R

es
ou

rc
e 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 

Pe
rs

on
  

Pr
e-

sc
op

e 
se

ss
io

n 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Fi
na

lis
e 

sc
op

e 
& 

ob
ta

in
 O

&S
/S

ub
-

C
om

m
itt

ee
 e

nd
or

se
m

en
t 

 

Pa
ne

l c
ha

irm
an

 
(A

gr
ee

d 
by

 c
ha

irm
an

 O
&S

) 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

 
Au

gu
st

 0
6 

SM
S 

R
es

ea
rc

h/
Pr

ep
ar

at
io

n 
Pe

rio
d/

D
es

k 
to

p 
da

ta
 

ga
th

er
in

g 
 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

2 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 P
eo

pl
e,

 
Pe

rfo
rm

an
ce

 &
 

Po
lic

y 
– 

se
lf 

as
se

ss
m

en
t 

0.
5 

x 
3 

Au
gu

st
/ 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
06

 

SM
S 

M
ee

tin
gs

/W
itn

es
se

s/
 V

is
its

 (s
pe

ci
fy

) 
  

Pl
an

ni
ng

 m
ee

tin
g 

0.
25

 x
 6

 m
em

be
rs

 
Pa

ne
l m

ee
tin

g 
0.

5 
x 

6 
m

em
be

rs
 

 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 m
ee

tin
g 

0.
5 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
Pa

ne
l m

ee
tin

g 
0.

5 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

O
ffi

ce
rs

 P
PP

 x
4 

D
ire

ct
or

 
C

hi
ld

re
n’

s 
Se

rv
ic

es
 

D
ire

ct
or

 
C

om
m

un
ity

 C
ar

e 
D

ire
ct

or
 L

LL
 

C
ul

tu
ra

l S
er

vi
ce

s 
 

D
ire

ct
or

 S
tra

te
gy

 
U

rb
an

 L
iv

in
g 

PC
T,

 M
et

 P
ol

ic
e,

 
H

AV
S 

0.
5 

x 
12

 
  

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

06
 

C
ha

irm
an

  
SM

S 

120



Sc
op

ev
2 

A
ct

iv
ity

 
 

M
em

be
r I

np
ut

 
W

ho
 is

 in
vo

lv
ed

? 
Es

tim
at

ed
 ti

m
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

 

O
ffi

ce
r R

es
ou

rc
e 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 

Pe
rs

on
  

C
ol

la
tio

n 
& 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 d
at

a/
ev

id
en

ce
  

 
Pa

ne
l m

em
be

rs
 

0.
5 

x 
6 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

5 

 
7th

 
Se

pt
em

be
r 

20
06

 

Pa
ne

l 
C

ha
irm

an
 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
 d

et
er

m
in

es
 th

ru
st

 o
f r

ep
or

t 
 

 
 

 
 

 

D
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

 
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
2 

 
22

nd
 

Se
pt

em
be

r 
20

06
 

SM
S 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
 a

gr
ee

s 
ea

rly
 d

ra
ft 

of
 re

po
rt 

 
Pa

ne
l m

em
be

rs
 

0.
25

 x
 6

 
 

 
 

 

Ea
rly

 d
ra

ft 
re

po
rt 

to
 a

cc
ou

nt
ab

le
 m

an
ag

er
 

fo
r c

on
fir

m
at

io
n 

of
 fa

ct
ua

l a
cc

ur
ac

y 
 

 
 

 
 

 

R
ev

ie
w

 
G

ro
up

’s
 

in
fo

rm
al

 
di

sc
us

si
on

s 
of

 
re

po
rt 

w
ith

 
H

ea
d 

of
 

Se
rv

ic
e/

D
ire

ct
or

 
(o

r 
N

H
S 

bo
dy

 if
 a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
) 

 

 
 

 
 

 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
 s

ig
n 

of
f r

ep
or

t &
 re

fe
r t

o 
O

&S
/S

ub
-C

om
m

itt
ee

 fo
r 

in
fo

rm
at

io
n/

ap
pr

ov
al

 

 
 

 
 

 

R
ev

ie
w

 G
ro

up
’s

 p
re

se
nt

at
io

n 
of

 r
ep

or
t 

to
 

C
M

T/
D

M
T 

 (i
f a

pp
ro

pr
ia

te
) 

 

 
 

 
 

 

Fi
na

l r
ep

or
t t

o 
ac

co
un

ta
bl

e 
m

an
ge

r 
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
 

29
th
 

Se
pt

em
be

r  
SM

S 

Fi
na

l 
re

po
rt 

of
 

G
ro

up
 

to
 

O
&S

/S
ub

-
C

om
m

itt
ee

 fo
r a

pp
ro

va
l (

if 
ne

ce
ss

ar
y)

  
 

Pa
ne

l c
ha

irm
an

 
0.

25
 

Se
rv

ic
e 

M
an

ag
er

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
0.

25
 

 
10

th
 

O
ct

ob
er

  
SM

S 

121



Sc
op

ev
2 

A
ct

iv
ity

 
 

M
em

be
r I

np
ut

 
W

ho
 is

 in
vo

lv
ed

? 
Es

tim
at

ed
 ti

m
e 

co
m

m
itm

en
t 

 

O
ffi

ce
r R

es
ou

rc
e 

W
ho

 is
 in

vo
lv

ed
? 

Es
tim

at
ed

 ti
m

e 
co

m
m

itm
en

t 
 

W
he

n 
Le

ad
 

Pe
rs

on
  

C
on

si
de

r 
if 

th
er

e 
is

 a
 n

ee
d 

to
 p

ub
lic

is
e 

re
po

rt 
fin

di
ng

s 
 

 
 

 
 

 

Fi
na

l 
re

po
rt 

pu
bl

is
he

d 
& 

re
fe

rre
d 

to
 

Ex
ec

ut
iv

e 
fo

r 
co

ns
id

er
at

io
n*

 
(C

ab
in

et
/P

or
tfo

lio
 

H
ol

de
r/D

ire
ct

or
at

e 
– 

de
pe

nd
in

g 
on

 is
su

es
/ r

ec
om

m
en

da
tio

ns
) 

 * f
or

 in
fo

rm
at

io
n 

 

 
Sc

ru
tin

y 
O

ffi
ce

r 
0.

25
 

 
Af

te
r 1

0th
 

O
ct

ob
er

 
SM

S 

Ev
al

ua
tio

n 
of

 re
vi

ew
 p

ro
ce

ss
 

 
Pa

ne
l m

em
be

rs
 

0.
25

 x
 6

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
M

an
ag

er
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

0.
5 

Al
l o

ffi
ce

rs
 a

nd
 

pa
rtn

er
s 

at
te

nd
in

g 
pa

ne
l 

0.
25

 x
 1

2 
 

Ea
rly

 
O

ct
ob

er
 

an
d 

as
 p

ar
t 

of
 

ev
al

ua
tio

n 
w

or
k 

sh
op

 
in

 
N

ov
em

be
r 

SM
S 

Se
ni

or
 

Sc
ru

tin
y 

O
ffi

ce
r 

Fo
llo

w
 u

p/
M

on
ito

rin
g 

of
 o

ut
co

m
es

  
 

 
 

 
 

 

TO
TA

LS
 

10
.7

5 
da

ys
 (6

 c
ou

nc
ill

or
s 

– 
av

er
ag

e 
1.

8)
 

6.
5 

da
ys

 
10

.5
 d

ay
s 

(a
ve

ra
ge

 .8
75

 
pe

r p
er

so
n)

 

 
 

  C
on

ta
ct

 : 
Ly

nn
e 

M
cA

da
m

. S
er

vi
ce

 M
an

ag
er

 S
cr

ut
in

y,
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

U
ni

t, 
H

ar
ro

w
 C

ou
nc

il 

122



 
 
Meeting:  Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
Date: 10th October 2006 
Subject: Scrutiny Work Programme 
Responsible Officer: Director People, Performance and Policy 
Contact Officer: Lynne McAdam 
Portfolio Holder: Business Development 
Key Decision: No 
Status: Public 
 
 
Section 1: Summary 
 
This report outlines the proposed scrutiny work programme for 2006 – 10. 
 
Decision Required 
 
Members are asked to: 
•  Consider the proposed work programme for the Overview and Scrutiny 

committee, attached as Appendix One and agree those items they wish to 
pursue and the methodology they wish to use 

•  Note the work programmes for the Safer and Stronger Communities  and 
Sustainable Development and Enterprise sub committees attached as 
Appendices Two and Three respectively 

•  Note the full list of agenda items for the scrutiny committees attached as 
Appendix Four and refer it to Full Council for information 

•  Request that the work programmes for the Children and Young People and 
Adult Health and Social Care sub committees are presented to the meeting in 
November 

•  Identify chairmen for the budget and Investor in People challenge panels and 
for the procurement review programme 

•  Set up the working group to consider the cultural services inspection 
improvement plan 

 
 

Agenda Item 18
Pages 123 to 148

123



Reason for report 
 
It is a constitutional requirement that the work programme for the Overview and 
Scrutiny committee is agreed by the committee.  It is also a constitutional 
requirement that the scrutiny sub committees’ work programmes are considered 
by the Overview and Scrutiny sub committee 
 
 
Benefits 
 
The committee has the opportunity to contribute to the improvement of services 
for local people and the work of the council in a number of ways.  By carefully 
structuring the work programme, the committee has the opportunity to: 
•  Gain maximum benefit out of the value they can add.   
•  Target the areas of the most strategic importance. 
•  Consider its work levels and any resource implications that may be 

presented. 
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
The cost of delivering the scrutiny work programme will be met from within 
existing resources.  There are no additional costs associated with the 
recommendations in this report. 
 
 
Risks 
 
Failing to consider the work programme in detail may mean opportunities for 
scrutiny to contribute to the improvement of services for local people and the 
work of the council may be diminished. 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
The Overview and Scrutiny committee is required to agree a work programme 
each year.  Each sub committee contributes to this process by determining its 
own work programme and feeding this into the Overview and Scrutiny 
Committee.  Failure to agree its work programme would mean this committee 
would not be able to meet its constitutional responsibilities 

 

Section 2: Report 
 
Brief History 
The July meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny committee received a report 
outlining initial proposals regarding the scrutiny work programme for 2006 – 
2010.  This meeting was the first following the elections in May and given there 
had only been limited consultation on the proposals, it was recommended that 
the work programme be considered during the summer recess period and a final 
report brought to this October meeting. 
 

124



In September 2005, the Overview and Scrutiny committee agreed the ‘Principles 
and Protocols of Scrutiny’.  This document outlines the process by which the 
work programme will be developed.  In particular, the document states that items 
included in the committees’ work programme should: 
•  Be identified as a particular concern to residents (residents 

surveys/consultation exercises) and not necessarily solely within the remit of 
the council 

•  Focus on areas of poor performance (for example as highlighted by Best 
Value Performance Indicators (BVPIs)) 

•  Focus on areas of apparent high cost and poor performance 
•  Focus on the delivery of improved outcomes for local people not simply the 

internal structures or functions of local organisations 
•  Assist the council to achieve its corporate priorities  
•  Be identified by either senior officers or cabinet as a problematic area where 

the resources of overview and scrutiny would help identify service solutions 
•  Focus on the source of a high level of complaints 
•  Focus on an area in which the council wishes to develop policy 
•  Focus on an area in which government legislation is being developed and 

which would benefit from early consideration by overview and scrutiny 
committee/sub committees 

•  Be informed by the programme of inspection work to be undertaken by 
external inspectors in order to support rather than duplicate investigation (if 
appropriately programmed scrutiny could assist in identifying problematic 
areas, identifying solutions and thus contributing towards improved inspection 
score)  

•  Be informed by services own service improvement programme, adding value 
to this process by offering support to service investigations rather than 
duplicating. 

 
Members are asked to bear these principles in mind when agreeing the work 
programme. 

 
The projects included as Appendix One were identified through:   
•  Executive directorate service plans 
•  Meetings with the relevant directors/managers to discuss key issues in their 

areas 
•  Issues arising from performance monitoring – services requiring attention 

(poor performance) (council and partner) 
•  Joint priorities for the council and partners arising from the Local Area 

Agreement (LAA) 
•  Central government policy direction and areas identified by inspectorates.   
 
This report also includes the agreed work programmes for the scrutiny sub 
committees for consideration by the committee 
 

125



The report to the July committee included detail as to why the particular projects 
have been included in the work programme.  This information is reproduced 
below.  
 
•  Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel – the council is due to undergo its 

corporate assessment in November 2006.  At its July meeting the Overview 
and Scrutiny committee agreed to undertake this piece of work.  The report 
from the panel is included on the agenda of this evening’s meeting.   

 
•  Budget Challenge Panel – the Overview and Scrutiny committee has 

responsibility to scrutinise the council’s budget and budget setting process.  It 
has been suggested that scrutiny of the budget would be more effectively 
delivered outside of the formal committee structure.  It is therefore proposed 
that a ½ day session to which all appropriate officers, the Director of Finance 
and Business Services, the Leader and Deputy Leader are invited to discuss 
the budget is held.  It is proposed that this process be undertaken on an 
annual basis.  The scope for this project is included elsewhere on the agenda 
for this evening’s meeting.  Members are asked to identify a chairman for this 
project. 

 
•  Investors in People Challenge Panel – At its meeting in July, the Overview 

and Scrutiny committee agreed to hold a challenge panel to support the 
delivery of corporate Investor in People accreditation.  The scope for this 
project is included elsewhere on the agenda for this evening’s meeting.  
Members are asked to identify a chairman for this project. 

 
•  NHS Financial Situation – the financial crisis faced by the local health 

service trusts is serious and is having considerable impact upon services 
across the council.  In order to investigate the performance of local trusts, to 
monitor the delivery of the respective recovery plans and to identify the 
impact that this crisis has on residents in general, the Standing Scrutiny 
Review of NHS Finances (O&S) has been established.  The scope for the 
work of this review is included in the scoping report also on the agenda of this 
evening’s committee. 

 
•  Procurement Programme– there are a number of components to this 

programme of work, which could include the effectiveness of procurement 
arrangements as they currently exist, the management and monitoring of 
procurement arrangements and the exploitation of growing opportunities for 
extending procurement arrangements across partnerships.  Members are 
asked to identify a chairman for this programme of work. 

 

126



•  Culture Programme –The July meeting of the Overview and Scrutiny 
committee agreed to consider the detail of the cultural services inspection 
improvement plan to identify a programme of work.  It was agreed that a 
planning meeting would be held in order to support this proposal.  Members 
are asked to identify membership for this project. 

 
•  Community Strategy – A report introducing the council’s refreshed 

community strategy is on the agenda for this evening’s meeting. 
 
•  MORI Quality of Life Survey – the council is currently undertaking a survey 

of residents satisfaction with services, the area and quality of life in general.  
This is an important piece of research which should be used to help shape 
the longer term work programme of the committee and the sub committees 

 
•  Local Area Agreement refresh – the council will need to consider refreshing 

the Local Area Agreement targets.  Scrutiny might like to hold a specific 
challenge panel to consider this in the light of progress made so far and the 
findings of the MORI survey and the refreshed community strategy 

 
•  Community Engagement strategy – councillors may wish to revisit the 

implementation of the council’s recently agreed community engagement 
strategy through a report to committee 

 
•  Power enquiry – members might like to consider the final report and 

response to the council’s ‘Open Budget’ process, which took place in 2005.  It 
is suggested that this takes the form of a report to committee 

 
•  HR Programme – a number of pieces of work have been suggested during 

discussions with officers, which should contribute to the effective 
development of staff and staff processes and may also address some of the 
issues raised in the 2006 staff survey. 

 
•  Olympic programme – this is an item that has been carried over from the 

previous committee’s work programme.  Members have agreed a programme 
of work to ensure that the benefits that can accrue to the local community 
from the London Olympics and Paralympics are maximised and the negative 
impacts are minimised. 

 
•  Audit and Risk – this is a regular item on the committee’s agenda.  It is 

suggested that a focussed challenge panel will deliver a more effective 
analysis of the council’s performance in this important area.  It is suggested 
that this is held on an annual basis. 

 

127



•  Community Calls to Action – Both the ‘Our Health, Our Care’ White Paper 
and the Police and Justice Bill have proposed the introduction of ‘community 
calls to action’ and an enhanced role for scrutiny.  As these proposals are 
clarified, particularly in the light of the anticipated Local Government White 
Paper, a report on the implications for the organisation of the scrutiny 
committees and potential impact on the work programme will be presented to 
councillors. 

 
•  Ombudsman’s Annual Report – each year the Local Government 

Ombudsman produces a report on the number of complaints received and 
investigated and the findings with regard to these complaints.  It is important 
that the committee is made aware of trends with regard to the level and 
outcome of Ombudsman’s investigations in order that any potential more 
systemic issues are identified at an early stage.  

 
•  Services for People with Special Educational Needs – the review of adult 

and community learning which was undertaken by the Lifelong Learning sub 
committee last year identified concerns with regard to how adults with special 
educational needs access services.  A number of issues around strategic 
thinking and priority setting have also been raised.  This project would 
probably need to be undertaken via in depth review and would not be able to 
start before the next municipal year and then subject to prioritisation 
alongside other items included in the work programme for 2007/09  

 
•  New Harrow Project – the Overview and Scrutiny committee has for some 

time proposed to undertake a review of the value for money of the New 
Harrow Project and the phase 2 review of MMR recommended also 
recommended that this review be undertaken in order to investigate the cost 
effectiveness of the MMR process.  The proposal has been included in year 
two of the programme as there are no resources within the team to carry this 
piece of work out at present. 

 
At each of their meetings in July, the scrutiny committees agreed to undertake 
projects over the summer period using more streamlined methodologies.  Final 
decisions on their work programmes have been made by the Safer and Stronger 
Communities and Sustainable Development and Enterprise sub committees.  
These are attached as Appendices Two and Three respectively.  Children and 
Yong People and Adult Health and Social Care sub committees will submit their 
finally agreed work programme to the Overview and Scrutiny committee meeting 
in November.    
 

128



A report on the deliberations of the corporate assessment challenge panel, 
commissioned by Overview and Scrutiny committee is included on this meeting’s 
agenda.  In order to assess the efficacy of the new methodologies, all scrutiny 
councillors will be invited to participate in an evaluation seminar which will take 
place in November 2006.  The findings of this seminar and the results of 
consultation with officers who have participated in these processes will be 
presented to Overview and Scrutiny committee in January 2007. 
 
The report also includes, as Appendix Four, the complete list of agenda items for 
all committees for 2006 –07. 
 
Options considered 
Options for inclusion in the work programme are included in the appropriate 
appendices. 
 
Consultation 
Consultation on the development of the work programme was undertaken with: 
•  Relevant Executive Directors and Directors; 
•  The community via Harrow’s website; 
•  All Members of council; 
•  Key partners – Harrow PCT, Metropolitan Police Service 
 
Financial Implications 
The scrutiny budget for 2006/07 is £340,400 which is made up of £282,090 for 
salaries and £58,310 for projects and other expenditure.  These projects will be 
delivered within this provision. 
 
Legal Implications 
There are none specific to this report 
 
Equalities Impact 
Scrutiny reviews make a significant contribution to the improvement of services 
for Harrow’s multicultural community.   When considering any item on the work 
programme across the year, the committee specifically takes into consideration 
how to engage with and meet the diverse needs of residents. 
 
Section 17 Crime and Disorder Act 1998 Considerations 
Individual scrutiny reviews may impact on crime and disorder and details are 
given in the Appendices. 
 

129



Section 3: Supporting Information/ Background Documents 
 
Appendix One: Suggested topics for the Overview and Scrutiny committee 

work programme 2006 – 2010 
Appendix Two: Agreed topics for the Safer and Stronger Communities 

scrutiny sub committee work programme 2006 – 2010 
Appendix Three: Agreed topics for the Sustainable Development and 

Enterprise scrutiny sub committee work programme 2006 – 
2010 

Appendix Four: Complete list of agenda items for all committees for 2006 –
07 

 

130



A
pp

en
di

x 
O

ne
: S

ug
ge

st
ed

 to
pi

cs
 fo

r t
he

 O
ve

rv
ie

w
 a

nd
 S

cr
ut

in
y 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

20
06

 –
 2

01
0 

 Ye
ar

 O
ne

 
Ye

ar
 T

w
o 

Ye
ar

 T
hr

ee
 

Ye
ar

 F
ou

r 
Bu

dg
et

 
½

 d
ay

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
pa

ne
l 

Bu
dg

et
 

½
 d

ay
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

pa
ne

l 
Bu

dg
et

 
½

 d
ay

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
pa

ne
l 

Bu
dg

et
 

½
 d

ay
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

pa
ne

l 
Im

pa
ct

 o
f N

H
S 

fin
an

ci
al

 
si

tu
at

io
n 

W
or

ki
ng

 p
ar

ty
 

Im
pa

ct
 o

f N
H

S 
fin

an
ci

al
 

si
tu

at
io

n 
W

or
ki

ng
 p

ar
ty

 

 
 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
• 

M
an

ag
em

en
t/ 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
ID

R
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
in

g 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ID

R
 

• 
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
ID

R
 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
• 

M
an

ag
em

en
t/ 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
ID

R
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
in

g 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ID

R
 

• 
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
ID

R
 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
• 

M
an

ag
em

en
t/ 

m
on

ito
rin

g 
ID

R
 

• 
D

el
iv

er
in

g 
sa

vi
ng

s 
ID

R
 

• 
Pr

oc
ur

em
en

t p
ar

tn
er

sh
ip

s 
ID

R
 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t  

• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t/ 
m

on
ito

rin
g 

ID
R

 
• 

D
el

iv
er

in
g 

sa
vi

ng
s 

ID
R

 
• 

Pr
oc

ur
em

en
t p

ar
tn

er
sh

ip
s 

ID
R

 
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 E

ng
ag

em
en

t 
st

ra
te

gy
 

R
ep

or
t 

N
H

P 
Va

lu
e 

fo
r M

on
ey

 L
TR

 
 

 

C
om

m
un

ity
 s

tra
te

gy
 

R
ep

or
t 

Se
rv

ic
es

 fo
r P

eo
pl

e 
w

ith
 S

pe
ci

al
 

Ed
uc

at
io

na
l N

ee
ds

 ID
R

 
 

 

C
or

po
ra

te
 a

ss
es

sm
en

t 
½

 d
ay

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
pa

ne
l 

 
 

 

Po
w

er
 e

nq
ui

ry
 

R
ep

or
t 

 
 

 

H
R

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e 

• 
M

ot
iv

at
in

g 
an

d 
re

w
ar

di
ng

 
st

af
f -

 ID
R

 
• 

H
ar

ro
w

 c
ou

nc
il 

as
 a

n 
em

pl
oy

er
 ID

R
 

• 
In

te
rn

al
 c

om
m

un
ic

at
io

ns
 

LT
R

 
• 

R
ec

ru
iti

ng
 B

M
E 

st
af

f I
D

R
 

• 
R

ev
is

ed
 s

tra
te

gy
 fo

r 
pe

op
le

 –
 ½

 d
ay

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 

 
 

 

131



• 
M

an
ag

em
en

t d
ev

el
op

m
en

t 
po

st
 M

M
R

 –
 L

TR
 

 O
ly

m
pi

cs
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
O

ly
m

pi
cs

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

O
ly

m
pi

cs
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
O

ly
m

pi
cs

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

Au
di

t/R
is

k 
½

 d
ay

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
pa

ne
l 

Au
di

t/R
is

k 
½

 d
ay

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
pa

ne
l 

Au
di

t/R
is

k 
½

 d
ay

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
pa

ne
l 

Au
di

t/R
is

k 
½

 d
ay

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
pa

ne
l 

M
O

R
I o

ut
co

m
es

 
R

ep
or

t 
M

O
R

I o
ut

co
m

es
 

R
ep

or
t 

 
 

 
Eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

Eq
ua

lit
ie

s 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
Eq

ua
lit

ie
s 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

C
om

m
un

ity
 c

al
ls

 to
 a

ct
io

n 
– 

im
pl

ic
at

io
ns

 o
f t

he
 L

oc
al

 
G

ov
er

nm
en

t w
hi

te
 p

ap
er

(s
) 

R
ep

or
t 

 
 

 

O
m

bu
ds

m
an

’s
 a

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t 

R
ep

or
t 

O
m

bu
ds

m
an

’s
 a

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t 

R
ep

or
t 

O
m

bu
ds

m
an

’s
 a

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t 

R
ep

or
t 

O
m

bu
ds

m
an

’s
 a

nn
ua

l r
ep

or
t 

R
ep

or
t 

 
Se

rv
ic

e 
an

d 
co

rp
or

at
e 

pl
an

ni
ng

 
LT

R
 

 
 

 
Em

be
dd

in
g 

pe
rfo

rm
an

ce
 

m
an

ag
em

en
t  

LT
R

 

 
 

C
ul

tu
re

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

 
• 

C
ul

tu
ra

l s
tra

te
gy

 ½
 d

ay
 

ch
al

le
ng

e 
pa

ne
l 

• 
Ar

ts
 c

ul
tu

re
 H

ar
ro

w
 L

TR
 

C
ul

tu
re

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

C
ul

tu
re

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

C
ul

tu
re

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

In
ve

st
or

 in
 P

eo
pl

e 
 

½
 d

ay
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

pa
ne

l 
 

 
 

Lo
ca

l A
re

a 
Ag

re
em

en
t r

ef
re

sh
 

½
 d

ay
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

pa
ne

l 
 

 
 

 

132



A
pp

en
di

x 
Tw

o:
 A

gr
ee

d 
to

pi
cs

 fo
r 

th
e 

Sa
fe

r 
an

d 
St

ro
ng

er
 C

om
m

un
iti

es
 s

cr
ut

in
y 

su
b 

co
m

m
itt

ee
 w

or
k 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

20
06

 –
 2

01
0 

 Ye
ar

 O
ne

 
Ye

ar
 T

w
o 

Ye
ar

 T
hr

ee
 

Ye
ar

 F
ou

r 
Sa

fe
r c

om
m

un
iti

es
 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

• 
D

ec
is

io
n 

m
ak

in
g 

pr
oc

es
se

s 
(S

17
 

m
ai

ns
tre

am
in

g)
 - 

ch
al

le
ng

e 

Sa
fe

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
• 

R
FO

C
 –

 re
po

rt 
• 

Pe
op

le
 (A

SB
, s

oc
ia

l 
co

he
si

on
) –

 ID
R

 
• 

Ph
ys

ic
al

 (L
ic

en
si

ng
, 

en
fo

rc
em

en
t, 

en
vi

ro
cr

im
e 

– 
ID

R
 

Sa
fe

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
• 

Fe
ar

 o
f c

rim
e 

re
as

se
ss

m
en

t –
 re

po
rt 

• 
AS

B 
– 

ID
R

 
• 

En
fo

rc
em

en
t/ 

En
vi

ro
cr

im
e 

- I
D

R
 

Sa
fe

r c
om

m
un

iti
es

 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
• 

Fe
ar

 o
f c

rim
e 

re
as

se
ss

m
en

t  
– 

re
po

rt 
• 

AS
B 

– 
ID

R
 

• 
En

fo
rc

em
en

t/ 
En

vi
ro

cr
im

e 
– 

ID
R

 

C
D

R
P 

6 
– 

m
on

th
ly

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 

R
ep

or
t/c

ha
lle

ng
e 

C
D

R
P 

6 
– 

m
on

th
ly

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 

R
ep

or
t/c

ha
lle

ng
e 

C
D

R
P 

6 
– 

m
on

th
ly

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 

R
ep

or
t/c

ha
lle

ng
e 

C
D

R
P 

6 
– 

m
on

th
ly

 
as

se
ss

m
en

ts
 

R
ep

or
t/c

ha
lle

ng
e 

An
ti-

po
ve

rty
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
• 

Fi
na

nc
ia

l i
nc

lu
si

on
 (l

in
ks

 
to

 v
ol

un
ta

ry
 s

ec
to

r 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
– 

ca
pa

ci
ty

 
bu

ild
in

g)
 

• 
Fu

el
 p

ov
er

ty
 

ID
R

 

 
 

 

St
ra

te
gi

c 
O

bj
ec

tiv
es

 fo
r 

co
m

m
un

ity
 c

oh
es

io
n 

R
ep

or
t 

 
 

 

   

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

ct
or

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 th

e 
se

ct
or

 
• 

Fu
tu

re
 ro

le
/p

ur
po

se
 o

f 

Vo
lu

nt
ar

y 
Se

ct
or

 P
ro

gr
am

m
e

• 
D

ev
el

op
in

g 
a 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
re

la
tio

ns
hi

p 
w

ith
 th

e 
se

ct
or

 
• 

Fu
tu

re
 ro

le
/p

ur
po

se
 o

f 

 

133



gr
an

t f
un

di
ng

 
• 

Ar
ts

 c
ul

tu
re

 H
ar

ro
w

 
• 

In
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

se
ct

or
’s

 c
ap

ac
ity

 

gr
an

t f
un

di
ng

 
• 

Ar
ts

 c
ul

tu
re

 H
ar

ro
w

 
• 

In
cr

ea
si

ng
 th

e 
vo

lu
nt

ar
y 

se
ct

or
’s

 c
ap

ac
ity

 
 

Pu
bl

ic
 R

ea
lm

 in
fra

st
ru

ct
ur

e 
Li

ve
ab

ilit
y 

an
d 

pu
bl

ic
 s

pa
ce

s 
ID

R
 

 
 

 
Ph

on
e 

bo
ot

h 
pr

ov
is

io
n 

LT
R

 
 

 

 
Ar

ea
 w

or
ki

ng
 p

ro
gr

am
m

e 
• 

Ex
te

nd
ed

 s
ch

oo
ls

 –
 L

TR
 

• 
N

ei
gh

bo
ur

ho
od

 w
or

ki
ng

 

Ar
ea

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

• 
Ex

te
nd

ed
 s

ch
oo

ls
 –

 L
TR

 
• 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 w

or
ki

ng
 

Ar
ea

 w
or

ki
ng

 p
ro

gr
am

m
e 

• 
Ex

te
nd

ed
 s

ch
oo

ls
 –

 L
TR

 
• 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 w

or
ki

ng
 

C
om

m
un

ity
 p

la
n 

R
ep

or
t 

 
 

 
 

134



A
pp

en
di

x 
Th

re
e:

 A
gr

ee
d 

to
pi

cs
 f

or
 t

he
 S

us
ta

in
ab

le
 D

ev
el

op
m

en
t 

an
d 

En
te

rp
ris

e 
sc

ru
tin

y 
su

b 
co

m
m

itt
ee

 w
or

k 
pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
20

06
 –

 2
01

0 
 Ye

ar
 O

ne
 

Ye
ar

 T
w

o 
Ye

ar
 T

hr
ee

 
Ye

ar
 F

ou
r 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

Im
pa

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
es

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 
de

m
og

ra
ph

y 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 

Im
pa

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
es

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 
de

m
og

ra
ph

y 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 

Im
pa

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
es

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 
de

m
og

ra
ph

y 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 

Im
pa

ct
 o

f c
ha

ng
es

 in
 H

ar
ro

w
’s

 
de

m
og

ra
ph

y 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
D

ro
ug

ht
 p

re
pa

ra
tio

ns
 

½
 d

ay
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

pa
ne

l 
C

O
M

PL
ET

E 

 
 

 

Bo
ro

ug
h-

w
id

e 
ec

on
om

ic
 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

½
 d

ay
 c

ha
lle

ng
e 

pa
ne

l 
R

EP
O

R
T 

IN
 N

O
VE

M
BE

R
 

 
 

 

To
ur

is
m

 R
ev

ie
w

 
½

 d
ay

 c
ha

lle
ng

e 
pa

ne
l 

R
EP

O
R

T 
IN

 N
O

VE
M

BE
R

 

 
 

 

R
es

id
en

ts
’ I

nf
or

m
at

io
n 

Pa
ck

 
LT

R
 

C
O

M
PL

ET
E 

En
er

gy
 c

on
su

m
pt

io
n 

LT
R

 
 

 

 
W

es
t L

on
do

n 
Al

lia
nc

e 
(A

C
L 

ca
se

 
st

ud
y)

 
ID

R
 

Ac
ce

ss
ib

ilit
y 

LT
R

 
 

 
 

Tr
af

fic
 m

an
ag

em
en

t 
ID

R
 

 

 
H

ou
si

ng
 

Pr
og

ra
m

m
e 

of
 w

or
k 

/ w
or

ki
ng

 p
ty

 
  

H
ou

si
ng

 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 w
or

k 
/ w

or
ki

ng
 p

ty
 

H
ou

si
ng

 
Pr

og
ra

m
m

e 
of

 w
or

k 
/ w

or
ki

ng
 p

ty
 

  

135



Appendix Four: Complete draft list of agenda items for all committees for 
2006 –07 
 

DRAFT LIST OF AGENDA ITEMS FOR 2006/07 
 

OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY COMMITTEE 
 

Meeting Item 
10 October 2006  
 •  Business Transformation Partnership/IT Update 
 •  Health and Safety Executive Inspection Update 
 •  Business Continuity Planning – Update  
 •  Community Strategy – Refresh 
 •  Efficiency Projects 
 •  Corporate Assessment Challenge Panel Report 
 •  Scopes - IIP Scope/ Budget Scope/ St Scrutiny 

Review of NHS finances (O&S) 
 •  Scrutiny Project Plan/Work Programme 
 •  Corporate Governance 
 •  Procurement 
 •  Scrutiny Discussion Forum 
 •  MMR Update for October 

 
 •  Financial Position 
14 Nov 2006 (Special)  
 •  Question and Answer Session with the Leader and 

the Acting Chief Executive (Budget)/Deputy Leader 
 •  Open Budget Process 
 •  Budget Challenge Panel 
21 Nov 2006  
 •  Q&A Session on -  

- Delivering the Corporate Strategy 
 - Budget/Financial issues 
 - Access Harrow  
           - Acting Chief Executive's priorities. 
 

 •  One Stop Shop – Update/ Business Transformation 
Partnership/IT Update 

 •  Cultural Services Programme 
 •  MORI  
 •  Local Area Agreement (LAA) – Current Performance 
 •  Procurement - Scope 
 •  Communications Strategy for Scrutiny 
 •  Olympics 2012 

136



Meeting Item 
 •  Teachers’ Centre report 
 •  Improvement Approaches in Local Government 

(including update on Peer Review) 
29 Jan 2007 
(Theme - Human 
Resouces) 

 

 •  Invite HR Portfolio Holder 
 •  Strategy for People (Q&A) 
 •  Level 4 Equality Standards + comparison with other 

boroughs 
 •  IIP 
 •  MORI  
 •  Local Area Agreement (LAA) - Current Performance 
 •  Review of New Way of Working 
 •  Results of the Budget Challenge Panel 
 •  NHS Finance Review 
 •  Business Transformation Partnership/IT Update 
 •  Corporate Governance 
 •  Future of Inspection 
27 March 2007  
 •  Business Transformation Partnership/IT Update 
 •  Corporate Assessment Result 
 •  Community Engagement Strategy 
 •  Hear Say Review 
24 April 2007  
 •  Business Transformation Partnership/IT Update 
 •  Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee  
 •  Scrutiny Report Format 
 •  IPAD 
 •  Update on Corporate Governance 
 •  Best Value Performance Plan 
 •  Corporate Plan 
 •  Review of Reconfiguration of Scrutiny Committees 

 
NB: Regular reports at each meeting 
•  Strategic Performance Report 
•  Progress Reports on Reviews - Members’ Verbal Updates 
•  Current Scrutiny Work Programme Info Circ 
 
6 Monthly Reports 
•  Update on Corporate Governance 

137



 
Also need to programme in:- 
•  Six-monthly/annual attendance by the Leader and the Chief Executive and 

the Business Development PH (re: Performance) 
•  Outcome of Executive consideration of completed reviews 
•  Reports on issues arising related to risk  
•  Reporting of External Assessments once they have been considered by 

Cabinet 
•  Reporting of Improvement Plans arising from Best Value reviews once they 

have been approved by Cabinet 

138



DRAFT LIST OF AGENDA ITEMS FOR 2006/07 
 

SUSTAINABLE DEVELOPMENT AND ENTERPRISE SCRUTINY SUB-
COMMITTEE 

 
Meeting Item 
September 25  
 Report of Light Touch Review of Residents’ Information Pack 
 Report of Challenge Panel Investigation of Drought Planning 
 Work Programme 
 Demography Review Programme – Information on Scoping 
 Borough-Wide Economic Development – Planning 
 Tourism – Planning 
  
 Strategic Performance Report (info circ) 
November 28  
   
 Demography Review Programme – Scope 
 Report of Challenge Panel Investigation of Borough-Wide 

Economic Development 
 Report of Challenge Panel Investigation of Tourism Review 
  
 Parking and Planning Issues 

Single report to consider various parking issues and other 
matters related to the Local Development Framework. Portfolio 
Holder to attend.  

 Community Strategy  
 Update on Local Area Agreement 
 Feedback on Comprehensive Performance Assessment 

(verbal) 
March 8  
 Demography Review – Update 
 Housing Programme – Information on Scoping 
 West London Alliance – Scope 
 Energy Use – Scope 
 Confirmation of 2007/08 work programme 
 Water management review update 
  
June (date tbc)  
 Demography Review – Report on First Topic and Scope on 

Second Topic 
 Housing Programme – Scope  
 ACL / West London Alliance – Update 
 Energy Use – Update 
  

139



Meeting Item 
 Annual Update – 2005/06 Review of Adult and Community 

Learning 
 Attendance of Portfolio Holder 
 Town Centre Redevelopment – Update 
 Update on Local Area Agreement 
September (date tbc)  
 Demography Review – Update on Second Topic 
 West London Alliance – Update 
 Energy Use – Report 
  

 
NB: Regular reports at each meeting 
•  Reporting of relevant extracts from the Strategic Performance Report (Min 

216 of O&S on 19/10/04 refers).  
•  Progress Reports on Reviews 
•  Quarterly Monitoring of NHP Public Realm Maintenance Implementation (to 

include Community Safety LPSA targets) Info Circ 
•  Work Programme for the Sustainable Development and Enterprise Scrutiny 

Sub-Committee 2006/07 Info Circ 
 
6 Monthly Reports 
 
•  Update on Corporate Governance 

 
Also need to programme in:- 
•  Annual/six-monthly attendance by the Urban Living - Public Realm/Property, 

Housing Planning (Development) & Planning (Strategic) Portfolio Holders 
•  Outcome of Executive consideration of completed reviews 
•  Monitoring of recommendations arising from completed reviews 
•  Reporting of External Assessments once they have been considered by 

Cabinet 
•  Reporting of Improvement Plans arising from Best Value reviews once they 

have been approved by Cabinet 
 

140



ADULT HEALTH & SOCIAL CARE SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE  
 

Meeting Item 
21 June 2006  
 •  Policy Context for Adult Health and Social Care 

Scrutiny Sub-Committee 
 

 •  Work Programme for 2006/07 
 •  Local Area Agreement  
 •  Harrow PCT - Update on the Financial Position 
 •  Planning for a Flu Pandemic 

- Report from Harrow PCT  
- Pandemic Flu Arrangements 

 •  Harrow Primary Care Trust Community 
Facilities Review (Update) 

 •  Burns and Plastics at Mount Vernon Hospital 
 •  Wheelchair Services – Harrow PCT 
 •  Northwick Park Hospital – Update on Maternity 

Services Action Plan 
 •  Joint Overview and Scrutiny Committee for 

Northwick Park Hospital redevelopment 
13 Sept 2006  
 •  Department of Health White Paper – ‘Our 

Health, Our Care, Our Say’ 
 •  Harrow Primary Care Trust – Update on 

Financial Position, including Recovery Plan  
 •  North West London Hospitals Trust – update 

on financial position including financial recovery 
plan 

 •  Northwick Park Hospital – Maternity Issues and 
General Developments 

 •  Harrow PCT Community Facilities 
Consultation:  Update and Outcomes  

 •  Outcomes from the PCT Review of Sexual 
Health 

 •  Letter of response from the Sub-Committee to 
the PCT regarding consultation on transferral of 
clinic services 
INFO CIRC 

 •  Burns and plastics at Mount Vernon Hospital  
INFO CIRC 

 •  Community Plan for Harrow 2006-2020 
(formerly Community Strategy Refresh)  

 •  Central and North West London NHS Mental 
Health Trust – Application to become an NHS 
Foundatin Trust 

141



Meeting Item 
31 Oct 2006  
 •  Strategic Performance Report (2006/07 quarter 

1) 
INFO CIRC 

 •  Outcomes from the North West London 
Strategic Health Authority Review of 
Healthcare in North West London (Our Healthy 
Future) 

 •  Draft scope for a review on domiciliary care 
 •  Obesity strategy for Harrow 
 •  Community Strategy - Refresh 
 NB Consultation on strategic options for North 

West London Hospitals Trust  Scrutiny 
working group on NHS finances, but any plans 
for consultation pre-Nov should come to AHSC 
Committee 
 
 

12 Dec 2006  
 •  CSCI Annual Review Monitoring Letter & Star 

Rating and Published Tables of the Personal 
Social Services Performance Assessment 
Framework (PAF) Indicators 

 •  Annual Report on Social Services Complaints 
 •  Annual Report of Director of Infection 

Prevention and Control for NWL Hospitals 
 •  Draft scope for review on obesity 
 •  Outcomes from the inspection of mental health 

services 
 •  Preparations for Question and Answer session 

with Portfolio Holder  
 •  Strategic Performance Report (2006/07 quarter 

2) 
INFO CIRC 

 NB Response to NWLHT consultation Scrutiny will be 
conducted by Scrutiny working group on NHS finances 

20 March 2007  
 •  Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
 •  Scrutiny response to NHS Trusts’ Annual 

Health Check Submissions 
 •  Report of the review on domiciliary care 
 •  Question and Answer session with portfolio 

holder(s) 

142



Meeting Item 
 •  Strategic Performance Report (2006/07 quarter 

3) 
INFO CIRC 
 

18 April 2007  
 •  Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee 
 •  Northwick Park Hospital – update on 

implementing maternity services action plan 
and maintaining changes post-action plan 

 •  Draft scrutiny work programme for 2006/07 
 
 
Also for inclusion in 2006/2007 Work Programme: 
•  Mount Vernon Hospital Service Plan and other developments 
•  Cancer Strategy (Strategic Health Authority Review) 
•  Work Programme – scope, prioritisation and methodology, Min 13(2), 21 

June 2006 
 
NB: Regular reports at each meeting 
•  Reporting of relevant extracts from the Strategic Performance Report (Min 

216 of O&S on 19/10/04 refers).  
•  Progress Reports on Reviews – written update report 
•  Work Programme for the Adult Health and Social Care Scrutiny Sub-

Committee 2006/07 Info Circ  
 
Also need to programme in:- 
•  Annual/six-monthly attendance by the People First/Issues Facing Older 

People/Issues Facing People with Special Needs Portfolio Holders and any 
other relevant portfolio holders 

•  Outcome of Executive consideration of completed reviews 
•  Monitoring of recommendations arising from completed reviews 
•  Reporting of External Assessments once they have been considered by 

Cabinet 
•  Reporting of Improvement Plans arising from Best Value reviews once they 

have been approved by Cabinet 
 
Dec 2006 meeting 
 
Annual Report of Director of Infection Prevention and Control for NWL Hospitals 
[INCLUDED ABOVE] 
 

143



DRAFT LIST OF AGENDA ITEMS FOR 2006/07 
 

CHILDREN AND YOUNG PEOPLE SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE  
 

Meeting Item 
  
27 June 2006  
 •  Update on Children Services Issues  

- Children and Young People’s Plan 
- SEN – Summary Report 
- Healthy Lifestyles 
- Harrow Sixth Form Collegiate 

 •  Work Programme 2006/07  
18 Oct  2006   
 •  Governors Web Forum 
 •  Harrow Teachers’ Centre – Update 
 •  Sub-Committee Work Programme, 2006/07 Info Circ 
 •  Report of the Light Touch review of Looked after 

Children  
 •  Report of the Light Touch Review of School Nursing
 •  Update on Extended Schools 
 •  Verbal Feedback on the challenge session looking 

at the Corporate Assessment and JAR self-
assessment (conducted by O&S in Sept) 

 •  Review of Catering Services – with special 
reference to provision of drinking water in schools 

 •  Community Strategy - Refresh 
 •  Update on Children’s Services Issues – Parent 

Partnership Services – questions from Members 
 •  Adoption Inspection – progress report – Action Plan 
4 Dec 2006  
(Informal – preparation of 
Q&A Session for 9 Jan 
meeting) 

This special has traditionally been a single item meeting to enable 
consultation on the Council’s proposed education budget to take 
place.  However, the Government has decided to provide ring-
fenced funding for schools from the Department of Education and 
Skills (DfES) to local authorities (known as the Dedicated Schools 
Grant), rather than general local government funding and Council 
Tax. Local authorities retain responsibility for distributing this funding 
to schools according to local needs and priorities.  In 2005-06 the 
December special was cancelled and the budget considered as part 
the People First budget item considered in January as part of the 
budget and service planning cycle.   

  
 
 
 
 

144



Meeting Item 
9 Jan 2007  
Q&A Session with 
Portfolio Holder(s) 

 

               •  People First Education Budget 2006/07 and Medium 
Term Budget Strategy 

 •  JAR Outcomes and action plan 
 •  Q&A Session with PHs 
 •  Update on Harrow Sixth Form Collegiate 
13 Feb 2007  
 •  Distribution of SEN statements 
 •  Achievement and attainment including performance 

information for schools 
 •  Children and Young people Plan - Update 
 •  School Governor Vacancies 
 •  Adult and Community Learning Scrutiny Review update 

on progress against the action plan 
 •  Annual Report of the Overview and Scrutiny 

Committee  
17 April 2007  
 •  Every Child Matters – achieve economic well-being 
 •  Annual report of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee 
 •  Draft Scrutiny Work Programme for 2007/08 

 
NB: Regular reports at each meeting 
•  Performance Reporting (Min 216 of O&S on 19/10/04 refers).  
•  Progress Reports on Reviews – Members’ Verbal Updates 
•  Work Programme for the Children and Young People Scrutiny Sub-Committee 

2006/07 Info Circ 
 
 
NB:  Regular report to Jan meetings 
•  Better Outcomes for Children in Care  - to include information on SATs results (Min 

240 – 19/10/05 refers) 
 
 
 
Also need to programme in:- 
•  Annual/six-monthly attendance by the People First/Issues facing young 

people/Issues facing people with special needs/Community Equality Portfolio 
Holders 

•  Outcome of Executive consideration of completed reviews 
•  Monitoring of recommendations arising from completed reviews 
•  Reporting of External Assessments once they have been considered by 

Cabinet/Portfolio Holder 
•  Reporting of Improvement Plans arising from Best Value reviews once they have 

been approved by Cabinet 
 
October 2006 
•  Update report on the Harrow Teachers’ Centre (Min 243 – 19/10/05 refers) 
 

145



Six-monthly 
•  Update on the Harrow Sixth Form Collegiate (Min 11 res 6 – 27 June 2006) 

[INCLUDED ABOVE] 
 
Joint meeting of H&SC and LL 
 
1. Preparation for the Joint Area Review (Min 23, Joint meeting held on 18 Jan 

2006 refers) – Joint Committees to consider the inspection report as part of the 
Work Programme, following approval at Cabinet. 

 
2. Update on the Development of People First (Min 25, Joint meeting held on 

18 Jan 2006 refers) – to inform the Sub-Committees of the structure once 
approved by Cabinet.  (ACTIONED) 

 
3. Adoption Inspection, September 2005 (Min 26, Joint meeting held on 18 Jan 

2006 refers) – the action plan to be considered at the next meeting of the Joint 
Committee.    

146



 
 

 
DRAFT LIST OF AGENDA ITEMS FOR 2006/07 

 
SAFER AND STRONGER COMMUNITIES SCRUTINY SUB-COMMITTEE   

 
Meeting Item 
5 July 2006  
 •  Crime & Disorder Act Review Recommendations – 

Implications for Scrutiny 
 •  Scrutiny Work Programme 06/07 
 •  Partnership Working in Harrow and the HSP 
 •  Scrutiny Policy Briefings 
 •  Removal of Public Call Boxes 
 •  Urban Living Briefing 
 •  Reducing Fear of Crime – Update on progress 

against the recommendations 
28 Sept 2006  
 •  Q&A with portfolio holder for Urban Living - Public 

Realm 
 •  Section 17 of the Crime & Disorder Act 1998 – 

challenge panel report 
 •  Community plan refresh 
 •  Scrutiny work programme 
23 Jan 2007  
 •  Alcohol Misuse Strategy 
 •  Attendance by Borough Commander, Harrow 

Police 
 •  Local Area Agreement refresh and outcomes from 

the MORI survey 
 •  Reducing fear of crime scrutiny review – Update on 

progress against the recommendations 
 •  Crime & Disorder Act Review Recommendations 
Meeting  
5 April 2007 •  Scrutiny Annual Report 
 •  Crime and Disorder Act review 
 •  Strategic objectives for community cohesion 
 •  Clean Neighbourhoods and Environment Act 
 
NB: Regular reports at each meeting 

•  Strategic Performance Report (Min 216, O&S, 19/10/04 refers) 
•  Progress Reports on Reviews 
•  Work Programme for the Safer and Stronger Communities Scrutiny Sub-

Committee 2006/07 Info Circ  
 

147



Also need to programme in:- 
•  Annual/six-monthly attendance by the Urban Living – Public Realm 

Portfolio Holder 
•  Outcome of Executive consideration of completed reviews 
•  Monitoring of recommendations arising from completed reviews 
•  Reporting of External Assessments once they have been considered by 

Cabinet/Portfolio Holder 
•  Reporting of Improvement Plans arising from Best Value reviews once 

they have been approved by Cabinet 
 

Six –monthly reports 
•  Reducing Fear of Crime Scrutiny Review – progress report (Min 14, 5 July 

2006) 
 

 
 

 
 

148



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\5\AI00032557\OSReport1006KGv40.doc 1

 
 

 
Meeting:   
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee  

Date: 
 

10th October 2006 

Subject: 
 

Business Continuity Management  
Update Report  

Responsible Officer: 
 

Myfanwy Barrett – Director of Finance and 
Business Strategy 
 

Contact Officer: 
 

Kan Grover – Business Continuity Officer  

Portfolio Holder:  
 

Councillor David Ashton  

Key Decision: 
 

No 

Status: 
 

Part 1 – Public  

 
 
 
Section 1: Summary 
 
Decision Required 
 

•  To note the current position with regard to Business Continuity 
Management within the Council and the promotion of business continuity 
generally to local small and medium sized enterprises. 

 
 
Reason for report 
 

•  At its meeting on 25th April 2006 the Committee considered a report on 
Business Continuity Management and requested an update report in 
October.   

 
 

Agenda Item 19
Pages 149 to 156

149



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\5\AI00032557\OSReport1006KGv40.doc 2

 
Benefits 
 

•  Compliance with our statutory duty under the Civil Contingencies Act 
2004.   

•  Ensure that we are providing Business Continuity advice that is consistent 
with our neighbouring boroughs in West London.     

•  Effective launch of the Business Continuity Management process in 
Harrow.    

•  Assist the local business community in using the Business Continuity 
Management process, thereby increasing the community’s resilience 
generally.   

 
 
Cost of Proposals  
 

•  No extra costs involved as already contained within budget.   
 
 
Risks 
 

•  Non-compliance with the statutory duty under the Civil Contingencies Act 
2004.    

•  The absence of Business Continuity planning in the local business 
community could lead to the loss of profit and possible business closures, 
in the event of an incident such as flu pandemic, flood, power outage, or 
terrorism.   

 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 

•  None made.    
 

 

150



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\5\AI00032557\OSReport1006KGv40.doc 3

 
Section 2: Report 
 
2.1 Brief History 

 
2.1.1 The Civil Contingencies Act 2004 placed a number of duties on Local 

Authorities, including the obligation to make plans to continue providing 
essential services following a major incident, and to provide Business 
Continuity advice to the local business community.  The Act came into force 
in November 2005, on the understanding that neighbouring Local 
Authorities could work together and deliver this long-term initiative over a 
period of time.   

 
2.2 Options considered 
 
2.2.1 Business Continuity Management (BCM) is a management process that 

helps manage the risks to the smooth running of an organisation or delivery 
of a service, ensuring it can continue to operate to the extent required in the 
event of a disruption.  These risks could be from the external environment 
(e.g. power outages, severe weather) or from within an organisation (e.g. 
systems failure, loss of key staff).   

 
2.2.2 The Business Continuity Institute defines this process as follows: “Business 

Continuity Management is a holistic process that identifies potential 
business impacts that threaten an organisation and provides a framework 
for building resilience with the capability for an effective response that 
safeguards the interests of its key stakeholders, reputation, brand and value 
creating activities.”   

 
2.2.3 The Business Continuity Institute has developed a five-stage process, 

which has become widely accepted and has been incorporated into a 
British Standards Institute Publicly Available Specification – PAS 56.  This 
model provides a generic framework that is applicable across the public, 
private and voluntary sectors.   

  
2.2.4 The five stages of the Business Continuity Institute process are:   
 

•  Stage 1: Understanding your business: Using business impact and 
risk assessments to identify the critical deliverables, evaluate 
recovery priorities and assess the risks that could lead to a 
disruption to service delivery.   

 
•  Stage 2: BCM Strategies: Identifying the alternative strategies 

available to the business to mitigate loss, assessing their potential 
effectiveness in maintaining the business’s ability to deliver its 
critical functions.   

 
•  Stage 3: Developing and implementing a BCM response: 

Developing the response to business continuity challenges and the 
plans underpinning this.   

 

151



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\5\AI00032557\OSReport1006KGv40.doc 4

•  Stage 4: Establishing a BCM culture: This stage looks at the need 
for businesses to ensure that a continuity culture is embedded in 
their organisation by raising awareness throughout the organisation 
and its key stakeholders, and offering training to key staff on BCM 
issues.   

 
•  Stage 5: Maintaining and auditing BCM: Ensuring plans are fit for 

purpose, kept up to date and quality assured.  This should involve 
exercising plans, rehearsing key staff and testing systems.   

 
2.2.5 Effective BCM is built on “seven Ps”:   

•  Programme – proactively managing the process   
•  People – roles and responsibilities, awareness and education   
•  Processes – all organisational processes, including ICT   
•  Premises – buildings and facilities   
•  Providers – supply chain, including outsourcing   
•  Profile – brand, image and reputation   
•  Performance – benchmarking, evaluation and audit   

 
2.2.6 The Council appointed a Business Continuity Officer (BCO) within the 

Audit and Risk Group in February 2006.  The BCO set up a work stream 
for 2006-07 and 2007-08 to deliver Business Continuity training to assist 
with Business Impact Analysis and the development of Business 
Continuity Plans throughout the Council, and to promote Business 
Continuity generally to the local business community.   

 
2.2.7 The previous report of 25th April 2006 to the Committee included the work 

stream for 2006-07 and 2007-08 as background documents.  The BCO is 
pleased to report that the delivery of the Business Continuity work stream 
to Harrow Council is running according to the original plan and schedule.   

 
2.2.8 The BCO’s approach and work stream are based on the Business 

Continuity Institute’s five stage approach and the British Standards 
Institute Publicly Available Specification – PAS 56.  The BCO has 
attended meetings with other local government colleagues from the West 
London Alliance.  The BCO has fully supported the setting up of the West 
London Business Continuity Group and has attended their meetings, 
ensuring that Harrow Council is following a recognised process in line with 
its neighbouring London Boroughs.    

 
2.2.9 During March and April 2006, the BCO, working together with the 

Emergency Planning Team, delivered Business Continuity training 
specifically for Pandemic Flu to Domiciliary Care and Residential Care 
providers in Harrow.  This included guidance material, plan templates and 
workshops.   

 
2.2.10 Also in April 2006, the BCO attended the Strike Action Group meetings, to 

discuss the Business Continuity arrangements to cope with the threat of 
strike action to coincide with the local government elections in England 
and Wales.   

 

152



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\5\AI00032557\OSReport1006KGv40.doc 5

2.2.11 The BCO assisted the Emergency Planning Team in its council wide live 
training exercise in June 2006.  Exercise Adelaide involved council staff 
and outside agencies, such as the WRVS, Salvation Army, St Johns 
Ambulance, Red Cross, Police Service, Fire Brigade, Ambulance Service, 
RAF personnel and more.  The exercise was deemed a success, testing 
Emergency Planning and Business Continuity procedures.    

 
2.2.12 In June 2006, an introduction to Business Continuity was delivered as part 

of the Harrow Rules mandatory training for managers.  Module 6 of 
Harrow Rules – Risky Business, incorporates Health & Safety and 
Business Continuity training for managers.  Further sessions are planned 
for December 2006 and spring 2007.   

 
2.2.13 The Council has a duty to promote Business Continuity to local small and 

medium sized enterprises.  In July 2006, a presentation was made to local 
businesses at the Harrow Business Consultative Forum.  Local 
businesses were able to ask questions and seek guidance on obtaining 
more information on Business Continuity.   

 
2.2.14 In July 2006, the BCO started delivering workshops to help managers 

identify their critical services, and write their Critical Service Assessments 
(CSA) for their service areas.  It is planned that all managers will have 
attended this training by December 2006.   

 
2.2.15 In spring 2007, the results from all the Critical Service Assessments will be 

compiled into a Business Impact Analysis (BIA).  This BIA will be used by 
the BCO and senior management to analyse the Council’s most critical 
services.  The BCO will then be able to assist senior management in 
formulating the Council’s Business Continuity Plans on a Departmental 
basis 

 
2.2.16 During June, July and August 2006, a series of meetings were held with 

Harrow IT Services, to discuss Business Continuity and specifically IT 
Disaster Recovery issues.  This has fed into Harrow IT Services 
preparation of a draft report highlighting various IT Disaster Recovery 
options.  The options include the construction of a second computer room, 
the use of a back up site, and the retention of a contracted facility 
providing essential users with 100 personal computers and associated 
office facilities.  The draft report has not yet been finalised, but Harrow IT 
Services will give progress updates in due course.     

 
2.2.17 In August 2006, a series of web pages were designed for the Council’s 

Intranet.  These have been approved and will be placed on the Council’s 
website in due course.  Also, external material has been developed in 
conjunction with the West London Alliance, the London Resilience Forum, 
and London Prepared.  This material is in final draft stage, and is due to 
be approved in September 2006.  This will provide a commonality of 
approach across London.   

 
2.2.17 During the autumn of 2006, Business Continuity guidance for the local 

business community will be published in the Council’s local newspaper – 

153



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\5\AI00032557\OSReport1006KGv40.doc 6

Harrow People.  This will include information on the importance of 
Business Continuity, guidance on the fundamentals of Business Continuity 
planning, contact details and links to websites for further information and 
professional advice.  Further Business Continuity presentations are also 
being considered, e.g. with the Brent and Harrow Chamber of Commerce, 
the Federation of Small Businesses, and West London Business.    

 
    
 
 
 
Conclusion 
 

•  To note the current position with regard to Business Continuity 
Management within the Council and the promotion of business continuity 
generally to local small and medium sized enterprises.   

 
 
 

 
2.3 Consultation 

 
2.3.1 London Prepared, neighbouring local authorities and the West London 

Alliance. 
 

2.4 Financial Implications 
 

2.4.1 Costs associated with this report will be contained within the Audit and Risk 
Group budget.  Costs for specific business continuity planning, for small 
and medium sized enterprises, will be the responsibility of those businesses 
respectively.  The Council’s duty is to promote business continuity in 
general terms; it is not in a position to offer specific advice.   
 

2.5 Legal Implications 
 

2.5.1 Under the Civil Contingencies Act 2004, all primary Local Authorities are 
Category 1 Responders, including Harrow Council.  The Act places certain 
duties upon the Council, including the requirement to have business 
continuity plans in place for the provision of services during a major 
incident; and also to promote business continuity generally to local small 
and medium sized enterprises.   
 

2.6 Equalities Impact 
 
2.6.1 Equalities and diversity issues are an integral part of the Council’s 

promotion of Business Continuity Management to local small and medium 
sized enterprises.    

 
2.7    Crime and Disorder Act Considerations 

 

154



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\7\5\5\AI00032557\OSReport1006KGv40.doc 7

2.7.1 Business Continuity planning, in the community, will strengthen the 
borough’s resilience to adverse incidents, which may arise from a variety 
of events including crime and disorder issues.   

 
 
 
Section 3: Supporting Information/ Background Documents 
 
None    
 

155



156

This page is intentionally left blank



 
 

 
Meeting:   
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 
 

10 October 2006 

Subject: 
 

Procurement Update  

Responsible Officer: 
 

Director of Financial & Business Strategy 

Contact Officer: 
 

Group Manager Procurement & Community 
Links 

Portfolio Holder:  
 

Business Development and Performance 

Key Decision: 
 

No 

Status: Part 1 
 
Section 1: Summary 
 
The following report is a general overview of Procurement activity in 2006/7 to date. The 
Overview and Scrutiny Panel have requested this information on a quarterly basis. 
 
Decision Required 
 
The report is for information only. 
 
Benefits 
 
N/A 
 
Cost of Proposals  
 
N/A 
 
Risks 
 
N/A 
 
Implications if recommendations rejected 
 
N/A 
 

Agenda Item 20
Pages 157 to 172

157



Section 2: Report 
 
 
2.1 Brief History 
 
 
Context 
 
Procurement can of course play a vital role in service transformation and can, depending on the 
specification, deliver both performance improvement and savings.  The primary purpose of the 
procurement team is to provide professional advice and support to managers across the 
organisation.  This ensures that managers comply with the law and the Council’s own rules, use 
procurement as effectively as possible and secure value for money.   
 
In the current financial climate, where there is considerable pressure on all managers to reduce 
spending levels, there are service reductions and this considerably reduces the scope for the 
procurement team to find savings. 
 
Social Care is the Council’s major spending area.  However social care, particularly residential 
care, presents particular procurement issues.  It is not easy to go through a tender for 
residential care as, if a new provider is appointed, all the residents will have to move to a new 
site.  Therefore more innovative approaches are required. 
 
However, there is still a role for the Council’s procurement team, working closely with Capita 
staff, to identify efficiencies – this enables the Council to deliver the same service level at a 
lower cost, or a better service level for the same cost.   For example, the telecoms contract has 
been renegotiated such that the same service is now being provided at less cost. 
 
Cabinet agreed a savings plan for 2006-07 on 3 August and this plan covered the remaining 
corporate procurement target of £2m.  The plan also reduced the BTP target to £1.3m this year.  
This is being delivered from efficiencies arising from the new systems as well as better 
procurement.  This report includes more details about the current procurement projects. 
 
Capita are currently working on a review of the Council’s procurement function which will make 
recommendations for the future in relation to both functions and structure.  This will clarify the 
role of the procurement team in the future and ensure that it continues to meet the needs of the 
organisation. 
 
Overview 
 
This report provides an update on the following aspects of Procurement: 
2.1.1  Working with Capita 
2.1.2 Current procurement projects 
2.1.3  Corporate contract management 
2.1.4 Support to Directorates and other work undertaken this year 
2.1.5 Waivers 
2.1.6 Consultancy contracts 
2.1.7 SAP implementation 
2.1.8 Collaboration with other boroughs 
2.1.9 The new Procurement Strategy, Contract Procedure Rules and Small Business Friendly 

Concordat 
 

158



 
2.1.1 Working with Capita 
 
In line with the Business Transformation Project, the Corporate Procurement Team has merged 
with the Capita Procurement stream to work jointly on delivering project savings. The teams are 
now co-located in Civic 6. This is an enabler for knowledge and skills transfer between both 
teams. This is facilitated by regular team meetings and a joint programme of work, supported by 
project management resources. 
 
Currently the BTP Procurement stream is working on the proposed new organisational model 
for the Procurement Team. Once consultation is complete, the proposal will be presented to 
CMT. A detailed plan will clearly analyse the current organisation and identify the issues, 
extending into the Directorates that have their own Procurement teams. A detailed review of the 
scope of the new organisation needs to be undertaken to enable clear understanding of 
resources required. Any new organisation must be aligned with the new SAP processes that will 
be in place from 4 September. 
 
Working together to deliver savings 
 
To enable the benefits or savings, the procurement stream puts the council in a position where 
if it so chooses it could realise the benefit or saving.  A benefit is considered enabled after the 
joint team has proved that by the council, for example, implementing a new system, re-designed 
process or completed negotiation for a supply contract, a saving could be achieved. 
 
This is similar to the way the Corporate Procurement team has always worked with directorates. 
 
The directorate’s role is to ‘realise the benefit’ if it chooses to do so, i.e. “make it happen”. 
Examples of realisation activity could be the use of a re-negotiated supply contract.  
 
So, in summary Procurement and Capita are working in a collaborative and flexible way to 
deliver the benefits originally validated. It is vital that council colleagues support as much as 
possible in identifying possible benefits.  
 
Capita’s role is to bring an external perspective on current ways of working, continuing to 
challenge council colleagues in the pursuit of benefit targets.  
 
The shared approach 
 
There are a number of practical steps to achieving benefits.  
 
First of all, both Harrow and Capita colleagues need to agree if a savings opportunity is 
possible. In doing this, a document called a Savings Identification Document (SID) is completed. 
It is only an idea at this stage, it is not a full commitment by the partnership to carry out the 
saving identified – but it does indicate the intention of both Harrow and Capita to explore this 
possible opportunity together. 
 
The next step is for Capita colleagues to work alongside council colleagues to jointly build the 
benefits card, analyse the current working environment (often referred to as the ‘as is’ state) 
and map the future way of working (or ‘to be’ solution) that is expected to deliver benefit. This 
will involve information gathering and design through joint workshops, questioning and some 
challenge and debate as the card is built.  When the benefit card is complete, with the input of 
both Capita and Harrow colleagues, Harrow colleagues then formally ‘sign off’ the card. This 
means that we are all agreed that the information provided has the potential of leading to a 

159



benefit. It is worth noting, however, that this will be subject to testing which will demonstrate the 
actual benefit. 
 
‘Enablement’ is the more formal name for the step that follows the card sign-off. The type of 
activity this will involve really depends on the potential benefit identified.  
 
Before the level of actual benefit can be confirmed, the new working environment, process, 
contract, etc. needs to be tested. Only if the benefit can demonstrate that it will give Harrow 
more efficient ways to deliver services and create better value for money for our members, 
partners and customers will it be used. To do this, it is run through as near to real life test 
environment specifically designed to objectively prove that the solution delivers the benefit 
stated on the benefits card.  Only when, or if, this test is passed are the benefits achieved and 
formally captured as a benefit (or council saving). 
 
As a partnership, Harrow and Capita are jointly motivated. Capita’s drivers are indeed different 
to Harrow’s in that Capita is a private sector organisation with some different (but also some 
shared) stakeholders. Capita’s profit is linked to finding savings opportunities for Harrow. 
Harrow, however, want to realise all benefits to secure maximum efficiency savings to support 
the Gershon agenda, meet savings targets and deliver better value for money for members, 
partners and customers. 
 
2.1.2 Current procurement projects 
 
Capita / Harrow Projects 
 
These projects have been identified and documented in SIDs (Saving Identification 
Documents). Once the full study is complete and current and proposed pricing is known, a 
Benefit Card logging the benefits and savings will be logged. 
 
The detail of these projects (including the savings targets and monitoring of these) is reviewed 
though the governance structure of the partnership with Capita. Where necessary to realise 
savings, the individual projects will be reported via CMT and Cabinet for a decision. 
 
The below –mentioned projects vary in size, complexity and in the timescale for delivery. The 
Procurement Team and the Service Areas are dedicating time and resource to ensure the best 
possible outcome in terms of value for money and service delivery in each case. 
 
2006-07 Core Capita / Harrow Projects Progress Summary 
 

Description Go-live 
Date 

Notes 

 
Fixed Line Telecoms 

 
Dec-05 

 
Business Case Approved 

Temp. Staff May 06 Business Case Approved 
Recruitment Advertising Oct 06 Data validation and procurement plan in progress 
Remaining telecoms Nov 06 Delayed due to resource availability. Data validation and procurement 

plan in progress 
Travel Sep 06 Business Case due September 2006. Alternatives being explored. CMT 

paper pending. 
Mobile Phones Dec 06 Business Case due September 2006. Effective date December 2006 
Networking/ Cabling  Quotations from alternative suppliers not offering any savings. 

Negotiations with existing supplier in progress 
Tactical Catering Dec 06 Data validation and procurement plan started. 
Integrated Print Sep 06 Aproved CMT & Cabinet. Contract start October 2006. 
Postage (including trail) Sep 06 Business Case due September 2006 
PC’s & Laptops Sep 06 Business Case due September 2006 
Taxi Services Aug 06 Business Case Approved 

160



Decent Homes – Windows Sep 06  
Residential Lifts/Hoists Sep 06 Business Case with budget holder for approval 
Uniforms & PPE Nov 06 Draft Business Case prepared. Tender issued. 
Electrical Testing Oct 06 Business Case with budget holder for approval 
Lease Vehicles Nov 06  
Utilities Nov 06 SID due to be signed 7/9/06 
Temp Staff-nc Nov 06 Non-cashable. Realisation steps to be identified and agreed with Council 

 
Risks & Issues 

•  Stakeholder engagement continues to be challenging 
•  General stakeholder availability during August has been limited due to leave and SAP 

training. Ongoing SAP training and stabilisation during September is expected to also 
limit the availability of some Council stakeholders. These circumstances have caused 
delays to Benefit Card approval during August, and has, therefore contributed to the 
reduction in forecasted 2006-07 savings to the Council. 

 
2.1.3 Corporate contract management 
 
Performance against corporate contracts is summarised below. The actual saving figures are 
£12,731 more than the planned saving, so we are currently on target to meet budgeted saving 
targets. 
 

Contract Notes Saving / 
Rebate 

Budget to  
June 2006 

Actual 
Saving/Rebat

e to June 
2006 

Pertemps Temporary 
Administrative Staff 

£62,500 £100,038 

Eden Brown Temporary 
Specialist and 
Technical Staff to 
June 2006 
(including temp to 
perm savings & NI 
savings to June 
2006) 

£130,000 £113,041 
 
 

ASAP Operational Staff £22,500 £11,903 
The Print Factory Print £6,250 £6,673 
WDAD Recruitment 

Advertising 
£17,500 £15,026 

Unique Office 
Solutions (Rebate) 

Office Furniture  £4,800 

Other    
 TOTAL £238,750 £251,481 
 
2.1.4 Support to Directorates and other work undertaken this year 
 
In order to support delivery of savings in service areas, we have supported Directorates on the 
following projects, which have delivered savings: 
 

Supplier / Contract 
Information 

Details Annual 
Spend Pre 

Procurement 
Exercise 

Department  Actual 
Saving 
2006/7  

161



LW Safety Inspection and 
Maintenance of Fire 
Extinguishers 

£49,577 Urban Living £24,527 

National Westminster 
(Streamline) 

Banking & electronic 
payments using debit 
and credit cards 

£124,408 Business 
Development 

£32,827 

Royal Bank of Scotland Banking Services £335,617 Business 
Development 

 

£84,706 

Chalfont Line 
Computer Cabs 

SEN – transport: 
negotiation with current 
supplier 

£850,000 Urban Living £7,744 

 
Projects completed that do not deliver general fund revenue savings: 
 
The Procurement Team has also worked on the following projects which have delivered savings 
to Capital, Schools, Grant Funded Services, HRA and the PCT. 
 

Supplier Details Annual Spend 
Pre 

Procurement 
Exercise 

 Actual Saving 
2006/7  

Fordham  Research 
limited 

Housing Needs Assessment 
(HRA) 

£98000 
 

£33,975 

Hayward  
Hugh Gardner 

General Building Cleaning (Part 
Schools) 

£295,000 
£435,000 

None 

 
 
Other Activities without savings / currently in progress 
 
Finally, the table below shows the team’s other activities. 
 
Tender Supplier Directorate 
Window cleaning (non schools) Strand Cleaners People First 
Consultancy: CPA analysis, for the 
development of Council 
benchmarks, Unit cost and Value 
for Money 

Institute of Public 
Finance 

Business 
Development 

Consultancy: Competency 
Framework to assist with the 
restructure of middle management 

Institute of Public 
Finance 

Business 
Development 

Provision of a Classroom/Learning 
centre & Steel Store at Newton 
farm East 

Tingdene Homes 
Limited 

Urban Living 

Insurance Services Risk Management 
Partners Ltd (AIG 
Insurance); 
HSB Engineering 
Insurance Ltd; 
ACE European 
Group Ltd; 
Capita Absence 
Management 

Business 
Development 

162



Services 
IP Telephony PC  World Business / 

BT-TNS 
Business 
Development 

Public Realm Accord MP Urban Living 
Harrow Town Centre Strategy Urban Initiatives Ltd Urban Living 
Financial Adviser In progress Business 

Development 
Street Lighting PFI In progress Urban Living 
Special Educational Needs 
placements 

In progress People First 

Fostering - London Centre of 
Excellence 

In progress People First 

Domicillary Care Services In progress People First 
Connexions In progress People First 
Welstoc (West London Libraries 
Stock Consortium) – Contract for 
the purchase of books for libraries 

In progress People First 

Older People floating support 
service (Grant funded -Supporting 
People) 

In progress People First 

Homelessness Initiative (Grant 
funded) – Lodgings For Non-
Statutory Single Homeless 
Households In Harrow 

In progress Urban Living 

Rock salt In progress Urban Living 
Library Management System In progress People First 
 
 
2.1.5 Waivers 
 
The numbers of Waivers authorised from April to June 2006 are recorded below. Details of the 
Waivers are to be found in Appendix 1. 
 
Details of the previous 2 quarters are provided below the current quarter table of information, 
which indicates that there has been a reduction in the volume of Waivers.  
 
The reduction is due in part to large framework contracts such as the Public Realm contract with 
AccordMP, which have been let. 
 
  UL PF BD CE TOTAL 
Apr-06  2 3 3 0 8 
May-06  2 1 1 0 4 
Jun-06  1 3 0 1 5 
Q1 2006/7 5 7 4 1 17 
 
Q4 2005/6  14 13 5 2 34 
Q3 2005/6  15 7 1 0 23 
 
2.1.6 Consultancy contracts 
 
Consultant forms are to be completed prior to the appointment of non-agency staff 
consultancy, i.e. those consultants not employed via the three corporate agency staff contracts 
with Eden Brown, Pertemps or ASAP. Forms are used to track the use of consultants across 
the Council, and provide detailed management information on usage. 

163



 
Since May 2005, 46 Consultant Proforma’s have been signed and logged with the Procurement 
Team. Details of these forms can be requested from the Procurement Team. During 2006/7, the 
Procurement Team have registered 11 forms. 
 
2.1.7 SAP implementation 
 
Over the last 11 months, the Council has been running corporate procurement forums to enable 
the SAP Procurement function to deliver effectively across all functions.  Post 4 September, the 
Council will have a single view of its procurement activity. The SAP system will drive compliance 
to corporate contracts and approved vendors, enabling procurement to be a much more 
proactive function in planning and delivering benefits. This will give full management information 
to allow aggregation of spend a central contracts database and efficiencies around the ‘procure 
to pay’ cycle, e.g. no need for manual signatures on invoices / requisitions. 
 
 
 
2.1.8 Collaboration with other boroughs 
 
The West London Alliance of procurement officers in West London boroughs meets regularly, 
which enables benchmarking and the identification of future opportunities to collaborate. The 
meetings have recently been extended to include a quarterly West London Finance directors 
meeting to assist and drive the process.  Additionally, a joint West London bid for funding from 
the London Centre of Excellence is being sought in order to review opportunities for shared 
services across West London. The Director of the Business Transformation Project would lead 
on this project for Harrow. 
 
In addition, Harrow is participating in 5 London Centre of Excellence collaborative projects to 
utilise any potential benefits that arise. This has also enabled Harrow to benchmark information 
across the Council and use the feedback in order to make improvements in process and value 
for money. (Refer Appendix 2 for a map showing distribution of participating boroughs across 
London) 
 
2.1.9 The new Procurement Strategy, Contract Procedure Rules and Small Business 
Friendly Concordat 
 
In line with the launch of the SAP ERP system on 4 September 2006, various changes in EU 
legislation and Council processes, the Procurement Strategy and Contract Procedure Rules, 
which govern the processes around procurement within the Council, have been updated and 
will be re-launched with the go-live of SAP.  These were approved at Cabinet on 3 August. The 
rules and strategy will be communicated to the Council as part of the wider ERP go-live 
communication plan, but will be followed by a communication programme, which will be 
launched as part of elevating the profile of corporate procurement in the Council. 
 
Details of the significant changes to these documents are listed below: 
 
The main changes to the Contract Procedure Rules are: 

•  Highlighting the importance of procurement decisions to deliver value for money for the 
Council and the consequences of failure to comply with the Contract Procedure Rules 

•  Clarity on the roles and responsibilities of Executive Directors, Directors and Officers 
•  Updates to reflect changes due to the implementation of the new SAP ERP system 
•  Inclusion of partnership principles and engagement with SME’s (signature of the Small 

Business Concordat attached will assist in driving engagement with SME’s) 
164



•  Emphasis on the importance of socially responsible procurement, including economic 
regeneration, sustainability and environmental management and equality and diversity 

•  Revision of number of quotations for purchases under £1,000 to one written quotation 

The main changes to the Corporate Procurement Strategy are: 
 
The Corporate Procurement Strategy supersedes the previous Procurement Strategy issued 
after the Best Value Review on Procurement in 2001/2, refreshing the strategy in line with 
Corporate, National and European requirements. 

The main objectives of the revised Corporate Procurement Strategy are: 

•  to ensure compliance with EU legislation and national Regulations 
•  to continue to evaluate and improve current procurement practices to achieve better value 

for money and ensure customer/client needs are met 
•  to ensure good practice examples are identified and applied consistently across the Council 
•  to align procurement activities with other strategies adopted by the Council and to ensure 

that corporate objectives are addressed 
•  to ensure that current and future procurement activities are planned, monitored and reviewed 

effectively 
•  to identify opportunities for working with others, both public and private sector, in order to 

widen the scope for maximising purchasing power and identifying innovation 
•  to ensure the Council procurement processes take account of diversity, equality, 

sustainability, economic regeneration, the green agenda, fair trade and fair employment  
•  the adoption of the ‘Small Business Friendly Concordat’ and consideration within procurement 

processes of the Compact with the Voluntary and Community Sector which was approved by 
the Harrow Strategic Partnership in May 2004. 

 
Small Business Friendly Concordat: 
 
Along with the Contract Procedure rules and the Procurement Strategy, on 3 August, Cabinet 
also agreed to adopt the Small Business Friendly Concordat, demonstrating commitment to 
actively engaging with a diverse range of suppliers, including small businesses. 
 
The National Procurement Strategy was jointly published by the Office of the Deputy Prime 
Minister  (ODPM) and the Local Government Organisation (LGA) in 2003. The Strategy seeks 
for Councils to achieve community benefits through procurement, by actively engaging with a 
diverse range of suppliers, including small businesses, by adopting the Small Business Friendly 
Concordat by the end of 2005. Only 71 local authorities have done so to date (10 London 
boroughs). 
 
The Concordat documents what local authorities can do to support the small business sector. 
The key commitments (and Harrow status on each commitment) of the Concordat are for 
Councils to: 
 

Key commitments Harrow current status 
Publish a corporate procurement strategy  Draft revised Procurement Strategy to go to 

Cabinet 3 August 
Publish guidance for suppliers on how to do 
business with the Council  

Currently in draft format. This will be launched 
when SAP is launched on 4 September. 

Advertise contracts using a range of publications 
to encourage diversity and competition  

SAP system will facilitate this with a link on the 
Business Portal to all current tender opportunities 

Applying tendering processes fairly Current good practice which is in place already 
Offer meaningful feedback to suppliers following Current good practice which is in place already 

165



the procurement process (online feedback form available on the Business 
Portal on the Harrow website) 

 
Small and Medium-sized Enterprises (SME’s) are a powerful engine for economic growth and 
are a crucial part of the economy, as it has been recognised that small businesses can provide 
value for money in procurement both by engaging with small businesses directly and via 
subcontracting. They are often able to provide greater innovation and flexibility and drive much 
business and employment growth in every locality. 
 
A further benefit of evidencing Harrow’s commitment to the Concordat, will be recognition of 
Harrow as a Council committed to local regeneration and small businesses.  
 
2.2 Options considered 

N/A 
 
2.3 Consultation 

N/A 
 
2.4 Financial Implications 

N/A 
 
2.5 Legal Implications 

N/A 
 
Section 3: Background Documents 
 
All documents are available on request: 
1. Contract Procedure Rules 
2. Procurement Strategy 
3. Small Business Friendly Concordat 
4. Waiver Log 
  

166



A
pp

en
di

x 
1 

W
ai

ve
rs

 - 
A

pr
il 

20
06

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
ai

ve
r N

o.
 D

at
e 

si
gn

ed
O

ffi
ce

r/A
pp

ro
ve

r 
Su

pp
lie

r 
N

at
ur

e 
of

 G
oo

ds
/S

er
vi

ce
 

R
ea

so
n 

fo
r W

ai
ve

r 
R

ea
so

n 
ty

pe
 

O
rd

er
 v

al
ue

 
(£

) 
B

U
SI

N
ES

S 
D

EV
EL

O
PM

EN
T 

W
A4

60
 

06
-A

pr
-0

6 
Pa

ul
 N

aj
sa

re
k 

M
O

R
I S

oc
ia

l R
es

ea
rc

h 
In

st
itu

te
, M

or
i H

ou
se

, 
79

-8
1 

Bo
ro

ug
h 

R
oa

d,
 

Lo
nd

on
, S

E1
 1

FY
 

H
ar

ro
w

 Q
ua

lit
y 

of
 L

ife
 S

ur
ve

y 
20

06
 - 

3 
ye

ar
 c

on
tra

ct
 

Su
rv

ey
 re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r t
he

 L
AA

 h
y 

H
ar

ro
w

 S
tra

te
gi

c 
Pa

rtn
er

sh
ip

 fo
r 

an
nu

al
 re

po
rti

ng
 to

 C
en

tra
l 

G
ov

er
nm

en
t. 

M
O

R
I c

on
du

ct
ed

 
la

st
 y

ea
rs

 s
ur

ve
y 

al
lo

w
in

g 
fo

r 
co

m
pa

ra
tiv

e 
an

al
ys

is
 a

nd
 a

 
re

du
ct

io
n 

in
 c

os
t d

ue
 to

 m
in

im
al

 
se

t-u
p 

co
st

s.
  

C
 

£3
1,

80
0.

00
 

PE
O

PL
E 

FI
R

ST
 

W
A4

33
 

24
-A

pr
-0

6 
An

dr
ew

 T
re

he
rn

 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
hu

rc
he

s 
H

ou
si

ng
 A

ss
oc

ia
tio

n,
 

Pe
nn

 H
ou

se
, 1

6 
Pe

te
rb

or
ou

gh
 R

oa
d,

 
H

ar
ro

w
, H

A1
 2

BQ
 

H
IV

 / 
Ai

ds
 H

ou
si

ng
 P

ur
ch

as
e 

sc
he

m
e

Th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t i

s 
fo

r a
 re

gi
st

er
ed

 
so

ci
al

 la
nd

lo
rd

 w
hi

ch
 h

as
 li

m
ite

d 
th

e 
m

ar
ke

t. 
Af

te
r a

 n
um

be
r o

f 
in

te
re

st
ed

 p
ar

tie
s 

w
er

e 
in

vi
te

d 
to

 a
 

w
or

ks
ho

p/
pr

es
en

ta
tio

n 
to

 e
xp

la
in

 
th

e 
se

rv
ic

e 
re

qu
ire

d,
 o

nl
y 

th
re

e 
pa

rti
es

 w
er

e 
in

te
re

st
ed

 in
 p

ur
su

in
g 

th
e 

te
nd

er
 p

ro
ce

ss
, a

nd
 

su
bs

eq
ue

nt
ly

, o
nl

y 
on

e 
R

SL
 

su
bm

itt
ed

 a
 te

nd
er

. T
he

 R
SL

 h
as

 
th

e 
sk

ills
 a

nd
 e

xp
er

ie
nc

e 
to

 
un

de
rta

ke
 th

e 
pr

oj
ec

t. 
T 

£1
,9

00
,0

00
.0

0 

W
A4

67
 

24
-A

pr
-0

6 
Pe

nn
y 

Fu
rn

es
s 

Sm
ith

 

N
or

th
er

n 
H

ou
si

ng
 

C
on

so
rti

um
, W

eb
st

er
s 

R
op

er
y,

 D
ep

tfo
rd

 
Te

rra
ce

, D
ep

tfo
rd

, 
Su

nd
er

la
nd

, T
yn

e 
an

d 
W

ea
r, 

SR
4 

6D
J 

Te
le

ca
re

 e
qu

ip
m

en
t (

As
si

st
iv

e 
Te

ch
no

lo
gy

) a
nd

 c
on

su
lta

nc
y 

se
rv

ic
es

 

Th
e 

N
H

C
 h

av
e 

ru
n 

a 
fu

ll 
EU

 
pr

oc
ur

em
en

t p
ro

ce
ss

 to
 a

pp
oi

nt
 2

 
su

pp
lie

rs
 a

bl
e 

to
 s

up
pl

y 
eq

ui
pm

en
t. 

H
ar

ro
w

 w
ill 

en
ga

ge
 

Tu
ns

ta
ll 

Lt
d.

 C
ur

re
nt

 re
so

ur
ce

s 
do

n'
t a

llo
w

 H
ar

ro
w

 to
 ru

n 
a 

fu
ll 

EU
 

pr
oc

es
s 

w
hi

ch
 w

ill 
m

ee
t t

im
in

g 
re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
. 

C
 

£3
00

,0
00

.0
0 

W
A4

79
 

24
-A

pr
-0

6 
Pe

nn
y 

Fu
rn

es
s 

Sm
ith

 

Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l 
D

ev
el

op
m

en
t T

ea
m

, H
ill 

Vi
ew

 b
ui

sn
es

s 
Pa

rk
, O

ld
 

Ip
sw

ic
h 

R
oa

d,
 C

la
yd

on
, 

Ip
sw

ic
h,

 IP
6 

0A
J 

Tr
ai

ni
ng

 a
nd

 D
ev

el
op

m
en

t: 
1.

 P
er

so
n 

C
en

tre
d 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 T
ra

in
in

g 
- 

Fa
ci

lit
at

or
s,

 2
. A

ct
io

n 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 S

et
s 

- 
D

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
 a

nd
 R

es
id

en
tia

l S
ta

ff.
 3

. 
M

od
er

ni
si

ng
 D

ay
 S

er
vi

ce
s.

 

Th
e 

N
at

io
na

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t T
ea

m
 

ar
e 

a 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t o

rg
an

is
at

io
n 

th
at

 
ha

ve
 e

xt
en

si
ve

 a
nd

 v
al

ua
bl

e 
ex

pe
rie

nc
e 

of
 w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 th

e 
lo

ca
l a

ut
ho

rit
ie

s 
on

 m
od

er
ni

sa
tio

n 
pr

oj
ec

ts
 a

cr
os

s 
Br

ita
in

. 
C

 
£3

1,
80

0.
00

 

167



W
A4

81
 

20
-A

pr
-0

6 
Al

le
n 

G
ib

bo
ns

 
D

el
l C

or
po

ra
tio

n 
Lt

d,
 

Pu
gh

 C
om

pu
te

rs
 L

td
 

IC
T 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t a
nd

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
to

 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
Le

ar
ni

ng
 G

at
ew

ay
 fo

r t
he

 
H

ar
ro

w
 C

ol
le

gi
at

e.
 T

he
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

G
at

ew
ay

 w
ill 

pr
ov

id
e 

a 
vi

rtu
al

 le
ar

ni
ng

 
en

vi
ro

nm
en

t f
or

 s
tu

de
nt

s 
an

d 
a 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

en
vi

ro
nm

en
t f

or
 s

ta
ff 

w
hi

ch
 c

an
 b

e 
ac

ce
ss

ed
 fr

om
 a

ny
 

co
m

pu
te

r c
on

ne
ct

ed
 to

 th
e 

in
te

rn
et

. 

Eq
ui

pm
en

t a
nd

 s
of

tw
ar

e 
to

 li
nk

 
w

ith
 th

at
 e

xi
st

in
g 

at
 H

ar
ro

w
 

C
ol

le
ge

. T
im

es
ca

le
 re

qu
ire

d 
fo

r 
th

is
 p

ro
je

ct
 c

an
 b

e 
m

et
 b

y 
su

pp
lie

rs
. S

av
in

g 
on

 V
AT

 c
an

 b
e 

ac
hi

ev
ed

 if
 o

rd
er

s 
ar

e 
pl

ac
ed

 b
y 

H
ar

ro
w

 C
ou

nc
il.

 
C

 
£8

9,
86

1.
97

 
U

R
B

A
N

 L
IV

IN
G

 

W
A4

86
 

05
-A

pr
-0

6 
An

dr
ew

 T
re

he
rn

 
Q

ua
dr

an
t V

id
eo

 
Sy

st
em

s 

C
C

TV
 C

am
er

as
 - 

fo
llo

w
in

g 
an

 a
tta

ck
 

on
 m

em
be

r o
f s

ta
ff,

 C
llr

 B
ur

ch
el

l 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 p

la
ce

m
en

t o
f a

dd
iti

on
al

 
C

C
TV

 c
am

er
as

 

Vi
a 

th
e 

EU
 p

ro
ce

ss
es

, t
he

 
co

nt
ra

ct
or

 h
as

 b
ee

n 
aw

ar
de

d 
th

e 
co

nt
ra

ct
 to

 b
ui

ld
 th

e 
ne

w
 C

C
TV

 
co

nt
ro

l r
oo

m
. T

he
 p

ro
po

se
d 

ad
di

tio
ns

 w
ill 

ne
ed

 to
 li

nk
 in

 w
ith

 
th

e 
pr

op
se

d 
sy

st
em

. 
C

 
£4

5,
00

0.
00

 
 W

ai
ve

rs
 - 

M
ay

 2
00

6  
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

W
ai

ve
r N

o.
 D

at
e 

si
gn

ed
O

ffi
ce

r/A
pp

ro
ve

r 
Su

pp
lie

r 
N

at
ur

e 
of

 G
oo

ds
/S

er
vi

ce
 

R
ea

so
n 

fo
r W

ai
ve

r 
R

ea
so

n 
ty

pe
 

O
rd

er
 v

al
ue

 (£
) 

B
U

SI
N

ES
S 

D
EV

EL
O

PM
EN

T 

W
A4

91
 

23
-M

ay
-0

6 
M

yf
an

w
y 

Ba
rre

tt 

H
ym

an
s 

R
ob

er
ts

on
 

LL
p,

 2
0 

W
at

er
lo

o 
St

re
et

, G
la

sg
ow

, G
2 

6B
D

 

C
on

tin
ue

d 
sp

ec
ia

lis
t a

ct
ua

ria
l 

se
rv

ic
es

 a
nd

 in
ve

st
m

en
t a

dv
ic

e 
fo

r 
th

e 
H

ar
ro

w
 P

en
si

on
 F

un
d 

H
ym

an
s-

R
ob

er
ts

on
 L

LP
 h

as
 

be
en

 p
ro

vi
di

ng
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

dv
ic

e 
to

 th
e 

H
ar

ro
w

 
Pe

ns
io

n 
Fu

nd
 fo

r m
an

y 
ye

ar
s 

on
 

an
 a

d 
ho

c 
ba

si
s.

 T
hi

s 
is

 n
ow

 
be

in
g 

fo
rm

al
is

ed
 fo

r 2
00

6/
7 

an
d 

20
07

/8
 a

s 
it 

is
 n

ot
 fe

as
ib

le
 to

 
ac

tio
n 

a 
fu

ll 
te

nd
er

 in
 th

e 
cu

rre
nt

 
ye

ar
, d

ue
 to

 th
e 

re
qu

ire
m

en
t f

or
 

th
ei

r s
up

po
rt 

in
 te

nd
er

s 
fo

r 
Pr

iv
at

e 
Eq

ui
ty

 a
nd

 C
ur

re
nc

y 
M

an
ag

em
en

t. 
Th

e 
re

qu
ire

m
en

t 
fo

r a
 fu

ll 
te

nd
er

 fo
r s

pe
ci

al
is

t 
ac

tu
ar

ia
l s

er
vi

ce
s 

an
d 

in
ve

st
m

en
t a

dv
ic

e 
 w

ill 
be

 
re

vi
ew

ed
 in

 2
00

6/
7 

C
 

£6
0,

00
0.

00
 

PE
O

PL
E 

FI
R

ST
 

W
A4

92
 

23
-M

ay
-0

6 
Pe

nn
y 

Fu
rn

es
s 

Sm
ith

 
M

ar
ie

 B
er

ga
n 

C
on

su
lta

nt
 In

te
rim

 M
an

ag
er

 

Ti
m

es
ca

le
s 

an
d 

co
m

pe
te

nc
es

 
re

qu
ire

d 
do

 n
ot

 a
llo

w
 fo

r 
co

m
pl

ia
nc

e 
w

ith
 C

on
tra

ct
 

Pr
oc

ed
ur

e 
R

ul
es

 
C

 
£2

0,
92

5.
00

 

168



W
A4

89
 

08
-M

ay
-0

6 
Pa

ul
 C

la
rk

 

PD
S 

C
on

su
lta

nc
y,

 2
2 

R
ic

hm
on

d 
C

lo
se

 
W

ar
e 

H
er

ts
 

Th
e 

C
on

su
lta

nt
 is

 re
qu

ire
d 

to
 p

ro
vi

de
 

st
ra

te
gi

c 
ch

al
le

ng
e 

an
d 

de
ve

lo
pm

en
t 

to
 th

e 
ne

w
 C

hi
ld

re
n 

Se
rv

ic
es

 
M

an
ag

em
en

t T
ea

m
. 

Th
e 

co
nt

ra
ct

 is
 re

qu
ire

d 
w

ith
 a

 
sp

ec
ifi

c 
co

ns
ul

ta
nt

 w
ho

 h
as

 a
 

pr
ov

en
 tr

ac
k 

re
co

rd
 a

nd
 o

f 
w

or
ki

ng
 w

ith
 s

en
io

r m
an

ag
er

s 
at

 
gr

ou
p 

m
an

ag
er

 le
ve

l a
nd

 a
bo

ve
 

to
 in

flu
en

ce
 a

nd
 d

ev
el

op
 

in
te

rg
ra

te
d 

le
ad

er
sh

ip
 a

nd
 

M
an

ag
em

en
t. 

C
 

£1
0,

00
0.

00
 

U
R

B
A

N
 L

IV
IN

G
 

W
A4

88
 

22
-M

ay
-0

6 
An

dr
ew

 T
re

he
rn

 
Pl

an
ni

ng
 A

id
 fo

r 
Lo

nd
on

 

Fa
ci

lit
at

in
g 

pu
bl

ic
 m

ee
tin

g 
on

 th
e 

Lo
ca

l D
ev

el
op

m
en

t F
ra

m
ew

or
k 

- 
Sp

ec
ia

lis
t c

on
su

lta
nc

y 
se

rv
ic

e 
-f

or
 a

n 
ev

en
t o

n 
th

e 
24

th
 o

f M
ay

'2
00

6 

Pl
an

ni
ng

 A
id

 fo
r L

on
do

n 
pr

ov
id

es
 fr

ee
 s

pe
ci

al
is

t 
in

de
pe

nd
en

t p
ro

fe
ss

io
na

l h
el

p,
 

ad
vi

ce
 a

nd
 s

up
po

rt 
to

 
co

m
m

un
ity

 g
ro

up
s 

or
 in

di
vi

du
al

s 
w

ho
 c

an
no

t a
ffo

rd
 to

 h
ire

 a
 

pl
an

ni
ng

 c
on

su
lta

nt
, a

nd
 

co
m

pl
em

en
ts

 th
e 

w
or

k 
of

 lo
ca

l 
au

th
or

iti
es

. 
C

 
£1

,8
00

.0
0 

 W
ai

ve
rs

 - 
Ju

ne
 2

00
6

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

W
ai

ve
r N

o.
 D

at
e 

si
gn

ed
O

ffi
ce

r/A
pp

ro
ve

r 
Su

pp
lie

r 
N

at
ur

e 
of

 G
oo

ds
/S

er
vi

ce
 

R
ea

so
n 

fo
r W

ai
ve

r 
R

ea
so

n 
ty

pe
 

O
rd

er
 v

al
ue

 (£
) 

C
H

IE
F 

EX
EC

S 

W
A4

90
 

22
-J

un
-0

6 
G

ra
ha

m
 J

on
es

 

D
on

al
ds

on
s 

LL
P,

 4
8 

W
ar

w
ic

k 
St

re
et

 
Lo

nd
on

, W
1b

 5
N

L 
Ac

co
m

m
od

at
io

n 
St

ra
te

gy
 - 

co
ns

ul
ta

nc
y 

ad
vi

ce
 

D
on

al
so

ns
 is

 a
 c

ur
re

nt
 

co
nt

ra
ct

or
 S

ho
rt 

tim
es

ca
le

s 
do

 
no

t a
llo

w
 fo

r t
en

de
rs

, C
M

T 
ap

pr
ov

ed
 th

is
 ro

ut
e 

C
 

£6
5,

00
0.

00
 

PE
O

PL
E 

FI
R

ST
 

W
A4

77
 

09
-J

un
-0

6 
G

eo
ff 

W
in

gr
ov

e 
W

in
te

rs
gi

ll 

W
in

te
rs

gi
ll 

co
ns

ul
ta

nc
y 

to
 u

nd
er

ta
ke

 a
 

re
fu

rb
is

hm
en

t p
ro

je
ct

 a
t P

in
ne

r W
oo

d 
Fi

rs
t a

nd
 M

id
dl

e 
Sc

ho
ol

s 
fo

llo
w

in
g 

am
al

ga
m

at
io

n 
of

 th
e 

sc
ho

ol
s,

 to
 

pr
ov

id
e 

jo
in

t a
dm

in
 fa

ci
lit

ie
s,

 jo
in

t s
ta

ff 
fa

ci
lit

ie
s 

an
d 

on
e 

H
ea

dt
ea

ch
er

s 
of

fic
e.

 W
in

te
rs

gi
ll 

ha
ve

 c
ar

rie
d 

ou
t t

he
 

in
iti

al
 fe

as
ib

ilit
y 

st
ud

y 
an

d 
de

ve
lo

pe
d 

Ph
as

e 
1 

of
 th

e 
pr

op
os

ed
 a

m
al

ga
m

at
io

n 
w

or
ks

 
to

 te
nd

er
 s

ta
ge

. F
ee

s 
ar

e 
co

m
pa

ra
bl

e 
to

 o
th

er
 a

rc
hi

te
ct

s 
cu

rre
nt

ly
 e

ng
ag

ed
 o

n 
si

m
ila

r 
pr

oj
ec

ts
. T

he
y 

ha
ve

 p
re

vi
ou

sl
y 

w
or

ke
d 

su
cc

es
sf

ul
ly

 o
n 

ot
he

r 
sc

ho
ol

 p
ro

je
ct

s 
fo

r t
hi

s 
au

th
or

ity
. 

C
 

£7
3,

75
0.

00
 

W
A4

93
 

15
-J

un
-0

6 
Pa

ul
 C

la
rk

 

Pa
ra

lo
gi

c 
N

et
w

or
ks

 
Lt

d 
,U

ni
ts

 2
0 

Br
id

ge
ga

te
 B

ui
sn

es
s 

Pa
rk

, G
at

eh
ou

se
 

W
ay

, A
yl

es
bu

ry
, 

Bu
ck

s 
H

P1
9 

8X
N

 

To
 p

ro
vi

de
 a

 ro
bu

st
, r

es
ilie

nt
 a

nd
 fu

lly
 

fle
xi

bl
e 

IT
 in

fra
st

ru
ct

ur
e 

th
at

 w
ill 

re
pl

ac
e 

th
e 

ex
is

tin
g 

se
t-u

p 
an

d 
pr

ov
id

e 
th

e 
G

ra
ng

e 
M

id
dl

e 
Sc

ho
ol

 
w

ith
 a

 s
ys

te
m

 th
at

 m
ee

ts
 a

ll 
cu

rre
nt

 
an

d 
fu

tu
re

 IT
 re

qu
ire

m
en

ts
 

C
om

pa
tib

ilit
y 

w
ith

 c
ur

re
nt

 IT
 

sy
st

em
 a

nd
 ti

m
e 

sc
al

es
 

C
 

£1
8,

00
0.

00
 

169



W
A4

96
 

22
-J

un
-0

6 
M

yf
an

w
y 

Ba
rre

tt 
Pa

rtn
er

s 
in

 E
du

ca
tio

n 
Lt

d 

C
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

of
 s

up
po

rt 
to

 c
om

pl
et

e 
ca

pi
ta

l p
ro

je
ct

s,
 P

rim
ar

y 
re

or
ga

ni
sa

io
n 

an
d 

am
al

ga
m

at
io

n,
 

N
ei

gh
bo

ur
ho

od
 R

es
ou

rc
e 

C
en

tre
s,

 
LI

FT
/P

FI
, B

es
sb

or
ou

gh
 R

d 
R

es
id

en
tia

l f
ac

ilit
y 

re
pl

ac
em

en
t a

nd
 

Ke
nt

on
 L

ea
rn

in
g 

C
en

tre
. 

Th
is

 is
 a

 c
on

tin
ua

tio
n 

of
 a

 
su

pp
or

t a
lre

ad
y 

in
 p

la
ce

. W
or

k 
is

 v
er

y 
sp

ec
ia

lis
ed

 a
nd

 w
ill 

be
 

ch
ar

ge
d 

to
 e

xi
st

in
g 

ca
pi

ta
l 

pr
og

ra
m

m
e.

 E
xi

st
in

g 
co

nt
ra

ct
 

ba
se

d 
on

 lo
w

es
t o

f 3
 w

rit
te

n 
qu

ot
at

io
ns

. 
C

 

Ex
te

ns
io

n 
of

 
C

on
tra

ct
 3

1/
08

/0
6 

20
K 

un
til

 
31

/1
2/

06
 2

0K
 

U
R

B
A

N
 L

IV
IN

G
 

W
A4

94
 

05
-J

un
-0

6 
An

dr
ew

 T
re

he
rn

 
R

ad
w

ay
s 

D
oo

rs
 &

 
W

in
do

w
s 

Lt
d 

W
in

do
w

 a
nd

 d
oo

r r
ep

la
ce

m
en

ts
 w

ith
in

 
th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 B
or

ou
gh

 o
f H

ar
ro

w
 

Th
e 

pr
oc

ur
em

en
t e

xe
rc

is
e 

ha
s 

be
en

 c
on

du
ct

ed
 in

 li
ne

 w
ith

 th
e 

EU
 le

gi
sl

at
io

n 
(b

y 
th

e 
Lo

nd
on

 
H

ou
si

ng
 C

on
so

rti
um

) a
nd

 in
 

co
lla

bo
ra

tio
n 

w
ith

 o
th

er
 L

on
do

n 
Bo

ro
ug

hs
. H

ar
ro

w
 re

ce
iv

e 
a 

re
ba

te
 o

n 
an

nu
al

 s
pe

nd
 g

re
at

er
 

th
at

 £
2m

.  
C

 
£1

,6
00

,0
00

.0
0 

 W
ai

ve
rs

 fa
ll 

un
de

r t
w

o 
ca

te
go

rie
s:

  
 (1

) T
ec

hn
ic

al
 re

as
on

s 
(T

) (
W

he
re

 o
ffi

ce
rs

 h
av

e 
co

m
pl

ie
d 

w
ith

 C
on

tra
ct

 P
ro

ce
du

re
 R

ul
es

, b
ut

 d
ue

 to
 re

as
on

s 
ou

ts
id

e 
of

 th
ei

r c
on

tro
l, 

ar
e 

un
ab

le
 to

 s
at

is
fy

 th
e 

C
ou

nc
il’s

 re
qu

ire
m

en
ts

), 
i.e

. l
ac

k 
of

 c
om

pe
tit

io
n 

in
 th

e 
m

ar
ke

t w
he

re
 th

e 
ap

pr
op

ria
te

 n
um

be
r o

f t
en

de
rs

 w
er

e 
is

su
ed

, b
ut

 o
nl

y 
on

e 
or

 tw
o 

su
pp

lie
rs

 s
ub

m
itt

ed
 b

id
s;

 o
r a

 s
ce

na
rio

 w
he

re
 th

e 
su

pp
lie

r m
ay

 s
ub

m
it 

th
e 

te
nd

er
 la

te
, b

ut
 th

e 
C

ou
nc

il 
w

is
he

s 
to

 s
til

l i
nc

lu
de

 th
e 

su
pp

lie
r t

he
re

fo
re

 in
cr

ea
si

ng
 a

nd
 e

ns
ur

in
g 

co
m

pe
tit

io
n.

  
 (2

) C
om

m
er

ci
al

 re
as

on
s 

(C
) (

W
he

re
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 h

av
e 

fa
ile

d 
to

 c
om

pl
y 

w
ith

 th
e 

C
on

tra
ct

 P
ro

ce
du

re
 R

ul
es

 b
y 

no
t a

pp
ro

ac
hi

ng
 th

e 
co

rre
ct

 n
um

be
r o

f s
up

pl
ie

rs
 fo

r c
er

ta
in

 p
ro

cu
re

m
en

ts
), 

e.
g.

 
a 

pu
rc

ha
se

 b
et

w
ee

n 
£5

0,
00

0 
an

d 
£1

00
,0

00
 re

qu
ire

s 
of

fic
er

s 
to

 re
ce

iv
e 

th
re

e 
te

nd
er

s,
 b

ut
 o

ffi
ce

rs
 m

ay
 h

av
e 

on
ly

 a
pp

ro
ac

he
d 

on
e 

or
 tw

o 
su

pp
lie

rs
; o

r a
 s

ce
na

rio
 w

he
re

 u
rg

en
t w

or
ks

 d
o 

no
t a

llo
w

 ti
m

e 
to

 c
on

du
ct

 a
 p

ro
cu

re
m

en
t e

xe
rc

is
e,

 th
er

ef
or

e 
w

e 
ca

ll 
on

 k
no

w
n 

su
pp

lie
rs

 to
 th

e 
au

th
or

ity
 to

 d
el

iv
er

 th
e 

se
rv

ic
es

 o
r w

or
ks

.  
 170



 
 

A
pp

en
di

x 
2 

171



172

This page is intentionally left blank



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\9\5\AI00032591\20061010Scrutinydiscussionforumv40.doc 

 
Meeting: 
 

Overview and Scrutiny Committee 

Date: 
 

10 October 2006 

Subject: 
 

Scrutiny discussion forum 

Key Decision: 
(Executive-side only) 

Not applicable 

Responsible Officer: 
 

Paul Najsarek, Director People, 
Performance and Policy 

Portfolio Holder: 
 

Cllr David Ashton, Business Development 

Status: 
 

Part I 

Encs: 
 

Appendix A:  Draft acceptable use policy 

 
 
SECTION 1 – SUMMARY AND RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
This report sets out proposals for an online discussion forum for scrutiny 
members. 
 
RECOMMENDATIONS:  
That the Committee  
 

1) Agree to the establishment of a scrutiny discussion forum. 
2) Agree to structure the forum around the headings of scrutiny processes, 

scrutiny projects and scrutiny committees. 
3) Consider, comment on and agree the attached draft acceptable use policy 

for the scrutiny online forum. 
4) Agree that the forum be piloted for a period of three months and that an 

interim report be provided to the Overview and Scrutiny Committee on 
progress at that stage.  

5) Agree that users of the forum be set up with login details and passwords. 
 
Subject to agreement of (1) above, that the Committee recommend to Council 
 

6) That the decision of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee to establish an 

Agenda Item 21
Pages 173 to 178

173



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\9\5\AI00032591\20061010Scrutinydiscussionforumv40.doc 

online forum for the development of scrutiny activity in Harrow be noted. 
7) That access to the scrutiny online discussion forum be restricted to non-

executive members and officers within the scrutiny team.    
 
 
SECTION 2 - REPORT 
 
Background 
This committee has already given significant consideration to the way in which it 
communicates messages about its work both within the council to the 
community.  Currently this includes 
 
•  Regularly updated pages on the council’s internet site 

www.harrow.gov.uk/scrutiny  
•  Information on the council’s intranet pages 
•  A quarterly newsletter for members 
•  Dedicated email address scrutiny@harrow.gov.uk  
 
At the Scrutiny Members evening held in July members suggested that a scrutiny 
discussion forum would help members to share ideas.  A discussion forum is a 
web-based service that allows people to post questions, exchange ideas and 
share information.  It is not the same as a blog (or weblog), which is an online 
diary, usually updated by one person.  Examples of national discussion forums 
include the Centre for Public Scrutiny1 and the Improvement and Development 
Agency.2   
 
It is intended that Harrow’s scrutiny forum be based on the council’s intranet site.  
The technology is more or less ready to use but there are a number of issues to 
consider relating to how the forum should operate which are outlined in this 
report.   
 
Resource implications 
The cost of establishing the discussion forum for scrutiny will be in the region of 
£1000, which will be met from within the existing budget provision for scrutiny.   
 
Options recommended  
A small consultation exercise was undertaken with scrutiny members.  Members 
are now invited to consider the issues outlined below.   
 
1. Access to the forum 
There has been a mixed response to the question around whom should have 
access to the forum and whether this should include non-executive members 
who are not part of scrutiny or executive members.  It is proposed that access be 
restricted to all non-executive members (whether members of scrutiny or not) on 
the basis that they may wish to debate issues either relating to the holding to 
account of the executive or alternatively pertaining to the process of carrying out 
of scrutiny.   In addition it is recommended that members of the scrutiny team 
also have access.  These arrangements could be reviewed at a later stage. 
 
                                                           
1 http://www.cfps.org.uk/talk/  
2 http://www.idea.gov.uk/idk/forum/discussions.do 

174



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\9\5\AI00032591\20061010Scrutinydiscussionforumv40.doc 

2. Acceptable use of the forum 
The forum will be based on the intranet site.  As a closed forum is proposed 
(access would be restricted to those whom it is agreed should have access) it is 
likely that the forum will not need to be moderated.  However, in order to ensure 
propriety, there will need to be some form of acceptable use policy.  A policy has 
been developed corporately for staff and a slightly amended version is attached 
for Members’ consideration.  Members using the forum will of course have regard 
to other existing guidance such as the Code of Conduct for Councillors (Part 5A 
of the Council’s constitution).  Members are requested to consider the 
appropriateness of the attached draft policy. 
 
3. Structure of the forum 
It is recommended that the forum be structured initially around the following 
headings: 
 
•  Scrutiny processes – for example issues relating to methodology, scoping 
•  Scrutiny projects – for example specific reviews or projects 
•  Scrutiny committees – for example agenda setting, developing questions for 

Q&A sessions 
 
4. Registering with the forum 
To access the forum members will need to have remote access to the council’s 
intranet site.  In addition, members will need to register with the forum. 
 
The first option is to request members to go to the discussion forum page and 
then to create login details.  The drawback with this option is that there is likely to 
be a short delay with this option because the member will need to be given 
specific access rights.  The second option is for members to be set up with a 
login and given a password.  This option is potentially less secure, although 
Members will be able to alter the password subsequently.  However, it would 
mean that members could access the forum and start to contribute threads 
immediately; in any case this approach will be less problematic because the 
forum will be closed.   
 
5. Piloting the forum 
It is recommended that the forum be piloted initially for three months in order 
evaluate whether it provides members with the means of discussion that they 
were looking for.  It is recommended that a report be submitted to the January 
meeting of the Committee for this purpose. 
 
The final decision relating to the forum will need to be referred to full Council 
because of the proposal that access be restricted to non-executive Members. 
 
SECTION 3 - STATUTORY OFFICER CLEARANCE 
 
   
 Chief Financial Officer Y  
   
   
Monitoring Officer Y  
   

175



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\9\5\AI00032591\20061010Scrutinydiscussionforumv40.doc 

SECTION 4 - CONTACT DETAILS AND BACKGROUND PAPERS 
 
Contact:   
Heather Smith, Scrutiny Officer, 0202 8420 9203, heather.smith@harrow.gov.uk 
 
Background Papers:   
•  Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 30 January 2006, presentation on Scrutiny 

Communications 
•  Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 October 2005, Communications 

Strategy for Scrutiny 
•  Overview and Scrutiny Committee, 10 October 2005, Principles of scrutiny 
 
IF APPROPRIATE, does the report include the following considerations?  
 
 
1. Consultation  YES 

2. Corporate Priorities  Tackling waste 
and giving real 
value for money 

3. Manifesto Pledge Reference Number D 

 

176



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\9\5\AI00032591\20061010Scrutinydiscussionforumv40.doc 

Appendix A – Online Intranet Discussion Forum – Draft Acceptable Use 
Policy for Scrutiny Online Froum 
 
1. Introduction 
This Acceptable Use Policy is intended to help create an atmosphere in which 
freedom of speech is balanced by self-discipline and a mature attitude to 
discussion.  Members are encouraged to join these discussions and it would 
therefore be very surprising if exchanges did not occasionally become a little 
heated! 
 
By virtue of your participation in a discussion, you are deemed to have agreed to 
abide by the rules. Although the Council cannot take responsibility for monitoring 
every message that is posted to the Intranet, it must reserve the right to remove 
inappropriate messages and prohibit use by anyone who repeatedly ignores 
these rules. Misuse of forums may constitute miscounduct and will be dealt with 
by the Council’s disciplinary procedures.   
 
2. Forum creation 
Requests for new forums must be made to the Web Editor, Communications 
Section. Forums will not generally be moderated but the requestor will be 
deemed to be the owner and will be responsible for informing the HITS system 
administrators (via HITS HelpDesk) of any inappropriate contributions that 
require to be deleted.  For restricted forums, the owner will also be responsible 
for identifying who is to be given access to the forum. 
 
3. Personal identification 
Some forums may be read by all Intranet users; however in order to make 
contributions to a forum, users will need to register using their network username 
and Harrow email address. Do not represent yourself as another person. 
Anonymous contributions will not be accepted. 
 
4. Use of language and conduct of discussion. 
Messages should not be malicious or designed to offend. In particular, the use of 
swear-words or undue profanity is prohibited.  
 
Your message should be within the scope of the subject under discussion. If you 
make a contribution that is inappropriate to the subject under discussion, it may 
be removed or you may be directed by the owner not to raise the matter further 
or to raise it within a separate discussion group. 
 
Reference should not be made to the personality of other participants in a 
discussion nor should attacks be made on an individual's character unless the 
person concerned has already chosen to bring his or her personality into the 
issue under discussion. 
 
One to one arguments, disagreements and disputes of a personal nature must 
not be conducted through public discussion.  The forum should not be used to 
discuss individual cases of Member conduct or allegations of misconduct by 
Members. 
 

177



C:\moderngov\Data\AgendaItemDocs\1\9\5\AI00032591\20061010Scrutinydiscussionforumv40.doc 

You should remember that you are legally responsible for what you write. You 
must not make statements that are libellous, obscene, seek to incite racial hatred 
or otherwise break the laws of the United Kingdom. 
 
5. Private email 
If a person has sent you a private email you may not reproduce it in a public 
discussion group without the prior consent of the person who sent it.  
 
6. Advertising   
No advertising is allowed except where it is for an event, publication or similar 
items that has direct relevance to the subject of discussion. 
Information about locating and sharing knowledge and expertise is welcomed, 
but within the specific discussion category provided. 
 
7. Complaints about a breach of these rules 
Complaints about a breach of these rules should be made by private email to the 
Web Editor who will take timely and appropriate action with regard to the 
complaint. 
 
Please note: 
By virtue of your participation in an online discussion forum on the 
Intranet, you are deemed to have agreed to abide by these rules. 
 
 

178



Agenda Item 23
Pages 179 to 186

179

By virtue of paragraph(s) 3 of Part 1 of Schedule 12A
of the Local Government Act 1972.

Document is Restricted



186

This page is intentionally left blank


